
NOTICE OF REGULAR TELEPHONE/VIDEO   

CONFERENCE MEETING  

JANUARY 26, 2021 

MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL  

STATE OF TEXAS                 AGENDA  

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY  

CITY OF MONTGOMERY  

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC IS HEREBY GIVEN in accordance with the order of the Office 
of the Governor issued March 16, 2020, the Montgomery City Council will conduct a Regular Meeting 
scheduled for 6:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 26, 2021, at City of Montgomery City Hall, 101 Old 
Plantersville Road, Montgomery, Texas via Zoom Teleconferencing.  

  
This meeting will be closed to in-person attendance by the public. A temporary suspension of the Open 
Meetings Act to allow telephone or videoconference public meetings has been granted by Governor 
Greg Abbott. These actions are being taken to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 by avoiding meetings 
that bring people into a group setting and in accordance with Section 418.016 of the Texas Government 
Code.  Telephonic and videoconferencing capabilities will be utilized to allow individuals to address 
the City Council. Members of the public who wish to submit their written comments on a listed 
agenda item must submit their comments by email to shensley@ci.montgomery.tx.us by 3:00 p.m. on 
January 26, 2021.    
  
Members of the public are entitled to participate remotely via Zoom Teleconferencing. Citizens may 
join the Zoom Meeting by logging on at https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82169058091 and using Meeting 
ID: 821 6905 8091. They may also join by calling (346) 248-7799 and entering the Meeting ID: 821 
6905 8091. The Meeting Agenda Pack will be posted online at www.montgomerytexas.gov.  The 
meeting will be recorded and uploaded to the City’s website.  
Notice - any person(s) using profane, abusive or threatening language may result in them being 
removed from the Teleconference Meeting.   

CALL TO ORDER  

INVOCATION   
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS  
  
VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:  
Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to speaking, 
each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. City Council may not discuss or take any action on an 
item but may place the issue on a future agenda.  The number of speakers along with the time allowed 
per speaker may be limited.  
  
CONSENT AGENDA:  

1. Matters related to the approval of minutes of the December 22, 2020, Special Meeting and 
January 12, 2021, Regular Meeting.  

  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86514805165
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82169058091
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86514805165
http://www.montgomerytexas.gov/
http://www.montgomerytexas.gov/


























































































6935 Barney Road, Houston, 77092 | ryan.fortner@salesrevenueinc.com | www.sales-revenue.com 
 

     

 

 
CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS 

 
Sales and Use Tax Administration Report  

 
December 2020 

 

 

 

 

 



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 1  
 

To:         Honorable Mayor Sara Countryman, Montgomery City Council, City Staff 

From:    Sales Revenue Inc. 

Re:         Sales Tax Administration Report 

 

 
 
Sales Revenue Inc. has undertaken numerous steps in preparation of this report; it is our 
sincere desire that the City Council will be able to have a full understanding of the long 
and short-term status of sales tax filers and receipts going forward. In order to assess 
the City sales tax effectiveness, Sales Revenue Inc. has undertaking the following steps: 
 

1. SRI representatives have physically canvassed the brick-and-mortar businesses 
operating within the City limits. A copy of our findings is included with this report. 
Going forward, this list of business owners will serve as the “master list” and will 
be updated accordingly. Each time the master list is updated a copy of the latest 
audit is taken into the District and all changes discovered are notated in RED 
TEXT.  
 

2. Each business is evaluated for taxable goods or services, and a sales tax permit 
has been inspected for each entity that qualifies. Additional categories have been 
assigned to business spaces that either do not qualify for sales tax or were vacant 
at the time of inspection. 
 

3. If a business is performing a service which does not currently qualify for the local 
tax it is notated as NOT TAXABLE. Examples of such entities include: most 
medical services, fire and EMS, governmental services, most lending and financial 
institutions, religious organizations, Etc.  
 

4. Businesses that currently perform a service that does not qualify for the local 
sales tax levy but could, at some point, begin to sell taxable products are notated 
as SERVICE ONLY. Entities which qualify for this category include: some hair and 
most nail salons, take-and-go food providers where no seating is provided, and 
charitable organizations.   
 
 
 
 

How to Analyze this Report 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 2  
 

 
 

 
 

5. NEW CONSTRUCTION and recent VACANCIES notated during the canvass are 
listed as such within the report as well.  

 
6. Sales Revenue Inc. has been granted access to confidential information reports 

that pertain to the monthly sales tax filings by individual businesses. This 
information serves as a basis when discovering missing payment and non-
compliant sales tax receipts. These reports are used each month to provide the 
Top 25 annual and monthly tax payer list. Each month SRI representatives receive 
several data sets from the City and State, allowing real-time monitoring of sales 
and use tax permit creations and decommissions. 
 

7. Graphical models are provided listing current and historical sales and use tax 
allocation totals, trend and variance percentages. These graphs are updated each 
month and are presented whenever Sales Revenue Inc. provides an updated 
report to City Council. 
 

8. Non-Compliance Report. Every six months SRI reviews the payment detail, which 
is provided by the State Comptroller. An initial report is drafted by our office and 
provided to the State, utilizing a combination of confidential information as well 
as our physical canvass results. Once the State has rendered a final decision on 
the report it will be presented to City Council. The first non-compliant report has 
been presented to the State.  
 
Per the Comptroller of Public Accounts (CPA), many times a business entity is 
remitting a Jurisdictions local tax correctly but is not added to the confidential 
reports. The CPA states that it is the responsibility of the taxing authority to 
request addition of omitted businesses to the confidential report. In addition to 
requesting a full review of any missing sales tax allocations for each business, 
Sales Revenue Inc. has also requested that each business would be added to all 
reports going forward.  
 
The Comptroller has 44 working business days in which to provide a response to 
the City. Once the determination is final, a refund is issued within 30 days and 
remitted to the City in the following quarter. 

 

How to Analyze this Report (Continued) 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 3  
 

 

 

The City of Montgomery was physically inspected in October 2019. A total of 295 
entities, including vacant spaces in the retail and industrial centers, were notated. Of 
the entities audited, 191 provide a service or product that qualifies for the local sales tax 
levy, these businesses are responsible for adding to the monthly, quarterly, and annual 
allocations received from the State.  

Each business that is inspected is reviewed for correct sales tax application as well as 
qualifications of goods or services for the additional sales tax levy. Each time a physical 
inspection is performed this list will be updated and prior inspections reflected. 

Additional notations are made within the report including vacancies, business closures, 
and new construction. The current report reflects the following business breakdown by  

category: 

 

*Vacancies can include recent spaces formerly occupied by businesses that are no longer operational. 

**Miscellaneous can include game rooms, storage, lockouts, owner refusal, operational businesses that 
were closed, or businesses that were closed with no indicating name or signage that can identify that 
space.  

 

 

 

Month and Year October 2019 March 2019 August 2018 

Total Entities 295 264 234 

Sales Tax Permit 
Holders 

191 176 156 

Non Taxable Entities 52 48 48 

Provide Service Only 22 17 12 

Vacancies*  21  16  16 

Misc.** 9 7 2 

Overview of the City of Montgomery Audit 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 4  
 

 

 

A review of the monthly reports provided by the Comptroller of Public Accounts reflects 
5,201 active taxpayer accounts coded to the City of Montgomery. Many of the accounts 
are either E-Commerce related, or are coded as active but have not made a sale yet, and 
therefore are not reflected in the monthly report(s).  

 

 

The number of taxpayers filing local 
taxes fluctuates throughout the year. 
February and quarterly filing months 
have traditionally reflected the highest 
number of sales tax payers. 
Represented here is a listing of each 
month and the number of taxpayer 
returns filed in the District, quarterly 
filing months are listed in BOLD. 

 

 
 

 
Average number of taxpayers filing each month: 1,880 

11% increase in taxpayers over December 2019  
 

November 2019 reflects the largest single-month number of sales tax filers in the City of 
Montgomery’s history. 

 

 

 

 

 

YEAR MONTH SALES TAX FILERS 
2019 December 1,785 
2020 January 1,689 
2020 February 2,036 
2020 March 1,747 
2020 April 1,710 
2020 May* 1,811 
2020 June 1,867 
2020 July 1,866 
2020 August 2,001 
2020 September 1,913 
2020 October 1,956 
2020 November 2,076 
2020 December 1,988 

Total Sales Tax Payers by Month 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 

Tax Year 2020 Sales Tax Accounts through September 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 5  
 

 

 

Sales tax receipts for Calendar Year 2020 totaled $2,772,356.01. 

For Tax Year 2020* sales tax receipts total $2,489,917.85.  

Reviewing the past twelve month reporting period, the City of Montgomery sales tax 
receipts were derived from an average of 1,888 taxpayers filing local tax returns each 
month with November 2019 reflecting the highest taxpayer count of 2,229.  

 
nuary-Continued 

1 KROGER TEXAS L.P. 
2 MCCOY CORPORATION 
3 BROOKSHIRE BROTHERS INC. 
4 AZZIP ENTERPRISES INC. 
5 ENTERGY TEXAS INC. 
6 O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES LLC 
7 JIM'S HARDWARE INC. 
8 MCKINNEY RESTAURANT 21141 LLC 
9 THE OTHER SIDE INC. 

10 ALLEYTON RESOURCE COMPANY LLC 
11 SCHULTZ PET SUPPLY LLC 
12 HOOKER FURNITURE CORPORATION 
13 KOLKHORST FOODS LLC 
14 GOOGLE LLC 
15 SKIPPER BEVERAGE COMPANY LLC 
16 ELSTER SOLUTIONS LLC 
17 JEETHO BUSINESS INC. 
18 A & A PLANTS AND PRODUCE INC. 
19 THE ECLECTIC TRADING COMPANY 
20 TARA AUSTIN 
21 CHEWY INC. 
22 IANASHER LLC 
23 BFI WASTE SERVICES OF TEXAS LP 
24 NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS LLC 
25 AMAZON.COM SERVICES LLC 

 

Combined local taxes filed: $1,597,7746.80 

*Tax Year refers to the actual months when sales tax is received for the sales tax calendar year. 
In this case, March 2020-February 2021 make up the current annual receipts period. 

Sales Tax Allocations through January 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 
Top 25 Sales Tax Filers - Twelve Months Combined 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 6  
 

 

 

 
1 MCCOY CORPORATION 
2 THE OTHER SIDE INC. 
3 AZZIP ENTERPRISES INC. 
4 ALLEYTON RESOURCE COMPANY LLC 
5 O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES LLC 
6 JIM'S HARDWARE INC. 
7 MCKINNEY RESTAURANT 21141 LLC 
8 SCHULTZ PET SUPPLY LLC 
9 GOOGLE LLC 

10 SKIPPER BEVERAGE COMPANY LLC 
11 CHEWY INC. 
12 KOLKHORST FOODS LLC 
13 THE ECLECTIC TRADING COMPANY 
14 JEETHO BUSINESS INC. 
15 NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS LLC 
16 AMAZON.COM SERVICES INC MARKETPLACE 
17 MPW INDUSTRIAL WATER SERVICES INC. 
18 J RODRIGUEZ INC 
19 AMAZON.COM SERVICES LLC 
20 A & A PLANTS AND PRODUCE INC. 
21 RESTORATION HARDWARE INC. 
22 PELOTON INTERACTIVE INC. 
23 JKG LEIGH LLC 
24 CVS PHARMACY INC. 
25 OVERSTOCK.COM INC. 

 

Combined Total Local Taxes Filed: $112,125.81 

Utilizing data provided by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, this list reflects the 
top 25 businesses remitting the highest local tax filings within the District, and 
represents 49% of the total combined sales tax refunds for December.  

Within City’s most recent sales tax allocation, forty-one (41) businesses filed local taxes 
in excess of $1,000.00. It is important to note that the taxpayer with returns over 
$1,000.00 reflects 57% of the total monthly allocation, with combined filings of 
$131,595.68.  
 

Top 25 Sales Tax Filers-December 2020 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 7  
 

 
 

 

 

         November 2020                                                     December 2020 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     
 
   
 

  Quarterly Filer Month                                               Non-Quarterly Filer Month                        
Allocation: $289,185.45                                                 Allocation: $112,125.81 
    

 

 

 

1 KROGER TEXAS L.P. 
2 MCCOY CORPORATION 
3 BROOKSHIRE BROTHERS INC. 
4 ENTERGY TEXAS INC. 
5 ALLEYTON RESOURCE COMPANY LLC 
6 THE OTHER SIDE INC. 
7 MPW INDUSTRIAL WATER SERVICES INC. 
8 AZZIP ENTERPRISES INC. 
9 O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES LLC 

10 JIM'S HARDWARE INC. 
11 MCKINNEY RESTAURANT 21141 LLC 
12 SCHULTZ PET SUPPLY LLC 
13 A & A PLANTS AND PRODUCE INC. 
14 JIMCO SALES & MANUFACTURING INC. 
15 CHEWY INC. 
16 JKG LEIGH LLC 
17 LOWE'S HOME CENTERS LLC 
18 GOOGLE LLC 
19 JEETHO BUSINESS INC. 
20 SKIPPER BEVERAGE COMPANY LLC 
21 PHILIPELLO INVESTMENTS INC. 
22 AMAZON.COM SERVICES INC MARKETPLACE 
23 TARA AUSTIN 
24 KOLKHORST FOODS LLC 
25 NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS LLC 

1 MCCOY CORPORATION 
2 THE OTHER SIDE INC. 
3 AZZIP ENTERPRISES INC. 
4 ALLEYTON RESOURCE COMPANY LLC 
5 O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES LLC 
6 JIM'S HARDWARE INC. 
7 MCKINNEY RESTAURANT 21141 LLC 
8 SCHULTZ PET SUPPLY LLC 
9 GOOGLE LLC 

10 SKIPPER BEVERAGE COMPANY LLC 
11 CHEWY INC. 
12 KOLKHORST FOODS LLC 
13 THE ECLECTIC TRADING COMPANY 
14 JEETHO BUSINESS INC. 
15 NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS LLC 
16 AMAZON.COM SERVICES INC MARKETPLACE 
17 MPW INDUSTRIAL WATER SERVICES INC. 
18 J RODRIGUEZ INC 
19 AMAZON.COM SERVICES LLC 
20 A & A PLANTS AND PRODUCE INC. 
21 RESTORATION HARDWARE INC. 
22 PELOTON INTERACTIVE INC. 
23 JKG LEIGH LLC 
24 CVS PHARMACY INC. 
25 OVERSTOCK.COM INC. 

November | December Top 25 Taxpayer Comparison 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 8  
 

 

 

During the past twelve months, 96% of all sales tax receipts received came from service 
providers that are charging the local sales tax to individuals within the City boundary, 
but whose physical tax office is located either out of the City limits or, in most cases, out 
of the State. These businesses have been reviewed and have been determined by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts that they constitute a service, which qualifies for 
charging the local tax. 

In December 2020, a total of 68 businesses filed sales tax receipts from locations that 
are physically located within the City, the remaining 1,930 filings came from out of 
District goods and service providers.  
 

 
          

 

 

 

The City of Montgomery, Texas has received $33,518,202.42 in sales tax receipts since 
January 1, 1995. 

The January 2021 allocation to be allocated to the City totals  

$246,166.57 

 

 

96%

Annual Allocation of Sales Tax by Location 

Inside City of Montgomery

Outside Service Provider

Sales Tax Receipts by Business Type/Nexus Twelve Month Totals 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 

Sales Tax Receipts  

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 9  
 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         Total Allocations: $4,589,321.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 SUPER MARKET AND GROCERY SERVICES 
2 CABLE AND OTHER TV SUBSCRIPTIONS 
3 SPECIALTY BUILDING MATERIALS 
4 AUTOMOTIVE SUPPLY 
5 HYDRO ELECTRIC POWER 
6 ELECTRONIC SHOPPING 
7 HARDWARE STORES 
8 WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROVIDERS 
9 SOFTWARE PUBLISHERS 

10 MOBILE FOOD SERVICE 
11 RENTING OFFICE SPACE M&E / F&F 
12 HOSTING DATA PROCESSING 
13 CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS, SAND & GRAVEL 
14 SOFTWARE REPRODUCTION 
15 FABRICATED STRUCTURAL MANUFACTURING 
16 MAIL ORDER HOUSES 
17 COMMERCIAL PRINTING 
18  WIRED/WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
19 ELECTRONIC SHOPPING 
20 WHOLESALE FURNITURE DISTRIBUTION 
21 WHOLESALE DISTRIBUTION 
22 RADIO TV BROADCASTING 
23 INTERNET PUBLICATION 
24 COSMETIC AND BEAUTY SUPPLIES 
25 REAL-ESTATE LEASING 

Top 25 Sales Tax Categories in Montgomery, Texas 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 

This list reflects the top 25 highest 
categories businesses use when filing 
sales tax. While there are hundreds of 

codes under which a business may 
report sales tax, SRI extracts the top 25 

categories with the highest dollar 
amount received by the City. 

The date range used is December 2019 
through December 2020. 

 



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 10  
 

 

        

                                                                                                                                            *44% increase 
The larger allocation, compared to 2020, is due to nearly every major business in the City reporting 
higher filings. Additionally, a number of new businesses posted returns for January 2021 that were 
not operational in 2020. 

        

 

 

                                                                                          Includes recovered and corrected revenue from SRI. 

                                        

 

 

*Tax Year (TY) refers to the actual months when sales tax is received for the sales tax calendar 
year. In this case, March 2020-February 2021 make up the annual receipts period. Recovery 
from a prior month or year may be received at any time. 

 

 

 
 

Receipts of Sales Tax Were as 
Follows 

January 2021* January 2020 
$246,166.57 $170,531.07 

FY 2019 Total 
Allocations 

FY 2018 Total 
Allocations 

FY 2017 Total 
Allocations 

FY 2016 Total 
Allocations 

FY 2015 Total 
Allocations 

2014 Total 
Allocations 

$2,482,046.28 $2,238,975.01 $1,889,285.60 $1,867,030.18 $1,699,926.42 $1,688,374.26 

Total Allocations, 2014-Present 
$16,385,454.80   

Calendar Year 2020 Sales Tax Averages Calendar Year 2019 Sales Tax Averages 

Total: $2,772,356.01 Total: $3,174,602.35 

Mean Allocation:         $251,680.22 Mean Allocation:         $269,617.27 

Median Allocation:     $229,923.02 Median Allocation:     $248,593.00 

Graphical Models Follow on the Next Pages 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

January 2021 | 2020 Comparison 

 2015 Total  January 2016 April 2016 
Total Entities 123 133 140 
Sales Tax Permit 
Holder 

58 70 75 

Non Taxable 
Entities 

9 28 28 

Provide Service 
Only 

43 28 30 

Vacancies 5 4 4 
Misc.* 8 3 3 

 



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 11  
 

 

 
 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

JAN $129,248.00 $107,238.81 $236,764.92 $145,488.55 $174,487.10 $141,238.00 $170,531.07 
FEB $259,993.95 $184,183.00 $200,985.71 $204,006.24 $268,635.98 $289,215.49 $358,073.66 

MAR $64,083.86 $108,979.46 $125,057.26 $139,225.65 $149,964.30 $152,607.97 $232,590.18 
APR $104,356.47 $140,275.54 $130,098.69 $123,234.01 $144,205.61 $165,516.81 $160,911.79 
MAY $159,966.95 $168,012.24 $184,955.47 $182,757.15 $267,397.74 $283,049.52 $315,099.96 
JUN $133,026.37 $145,485.26 $149,145.60 $153,336.53 $151,071.81 $191,260.13 $219,615.98 
JUL $110,188.27 $118,871.30 $134,137.44 $132,394.32 $153,156.83 $189,741.79 $231,928.50 

AUG $187,363.72 $164,234.26 $202,380.82 $190,648.43 $304,422.57 $398,641.13 $375,019.12 
SEP $160,524.07 $135,004.07 $144,903.50 $181,625.33 $127,165.52 $599,991.27 $225,114.39 
OCT $132,291.80 $118,139.09 $94,652.13 $125,361.52 $141,162.59 $248,593.82 $227,917.54 
NOV $166,880.00 $187,778.09 $207,611.58 $253,111.48 $303,708.43 $305,939.66 $416,557.44 
DEC $128,470.68 $52,683.59 $134,305.68 $179,308.88 $192,957.46 $208,806.76 $229,773.80 

$0.00

$100,000.00

$200,000.00

$300,000.00

$400,000.00

$500,000.00

$600,000.00

$700,000.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Monthly Allocations

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 12  
 

 

 
 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

JAN/FEB 101% 72% -15% 40% 54% 105% 110% 
FEB/MAR -75% -41% -38% -32% -44% -47% -35% 
MAR/APR 63% 29% 4% -11% -4% 8% -31% 
APR/MAY 53% 20% 42% 48% 85% 71% 96% 
MAY/JUN -17% -13% -19% -16% -44% -32% -30% 

JUN/JUL -17% -18% -10% -14% 1% -1% 6% 
JUL/AUG 70% 38% 51% 44% 99% 110% 62% 
AUG/SEP -14% -18% -28% -5% -58% 51% -40% 
SEP/OCT -18% -12% -35% -31% 11% -59% 1% 
OCT/NOV 26% 59% 119% 102% 115% 23% 83% 
NOV/DEC -23% -72% -35% -29% -36% -32% -45% 

-100%

-50%

0%

50%

100%

150%

Month to Month Variance

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 13  
 

 

 
 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

JAN 12% -17% 121% -39% 20% -19% 21% 
FEB 42% -29% 9% 2% 32% 8% 24% 

MAR -42% 70% 15% 11% 8% 2% 52% 
APR -10% 34% -7% -5% 17% 15% -3% 
MAY -9% 5% 10% -1% 46% 6% 11% 
JUN -2% 9% 3% 3% -1% 27% 15% 
JUL -21% 8% 13% -1% 16% 24% 22% 

AUG -1% -12% 23% -6% 60% 31% -6% 
SEP -15% -16% 7% 25% -30% 372% -62% 
OCT 13% -11% -20% 32% 13% 76% -8% 
NOV 29% 13% 11% 22% 20% 1% 36% 
DEC -3% -59% 155% 34% 8% 8% 10% 

-100%

-50%

0%

50%

100%

150%

200%

250%

300%

350%

400%

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Previous Year by Month Variance

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 14  
 

 

 
 

TY 2014 TY 2015  TY 2016 TY 2017 TY2018 TY2019 TY2020 
$1,736,394.14 $1,630,884.71 $1,944,998.80 $2,010,498.09 $2,378,335.94 $3,174,602.35 $3,163,133.43 

0% -6% 19% 3% 18% 33% 0% 
 

 

$0.00

$500,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$1,500,000.00

$2,000,000.00

$2,500,000.00

$3,000,000.00

$3,500,000.00

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Yearly Allocations

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Yearly Variance



                                                                                                                                                

Page | 15  
 

 

 

File Sales Tax Service Only Not Taxable Occupied Vacant 

176 17 48 7 16 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

72%
4%

17%

3% 4%

Business Entity Breakdown
Total: 264

Tax ID Not Charging Not Taxable Occupied Vacant



 
Public Works Department Public Works Department
101 Old Plantersville Rd. 
Montgomery, TX 77316 Montgomery, T

Main: 936-597-6434 Fax: 936-597-6437 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________________________________________________

Monthly Report for December 2020 

 

Water 
- Repaired water leak on 6” main on Simonton St. 
- Chlorine injection solenoid replaced at Water Plant 3. 
- Relocated water service line on Brock’s Ln. 
- Activated/deactivated 15 water accounts. 
- Completed monthly cutoff list for nonpayments. 
- Completed monthly leak notification door hangers. 
- Completed monthly meter verification list. 
- Completed monthly check of idle meter list for consumption. No issues were found. 
- Completed 4 work orders for endpoint maintenance issues. 
- Completed 4 work orders for water leaks. 
- Completed 4 work orders for miscellaneous water issues. 
- Completed 4 work orders for water taps. 

Wastewater 
- Replaced 4 auto dialers at Lift Stations. 
- Located force main air relief valve on Buffalo Springs Dr. 
- Completed 4 work order for sewer taps. 
- Completed 1 work order for sewer-stop up. 

 
Streets/Drainage/ROW 

- Rebuilt flower bed on Eva St. at welcome sign.
- Removed “Public Parking” signs at Cozy Grape parking lot. 
- Mounted 7 “Birthplace of the Texas Flag” signs around downtown. 
- Repainted red fire lane on Emma’s Way. 
- Cleared storm inlets throughout the city. 
- Repaired 3 potholes. 
- Completed 0 work orders for streetlight request. 
- Completed 6 work orders for Street ROW – Ditch/Drainage. 
- Completed 4 work orders for street sign issues. 
- Completed daily utility locates as necessary. 



- Completed daily removal of bandit signs as necessary. 
 

Building/Facility/Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance 
- Repaired leaking kitchen sink drain at Community Center. 
- Replaced broken multi fold towel dispenser at City Hall. 
- Installed glass magnet/marker board for PD. 
- Replaced exhaust fan in PD evidence room. 
- Repaired electric plugs at Community Center Wall. 
- Contractor repaired damaged stone wall at Community Center. 
- Replaced Community Center flags. 
- Completed monthly light bulb check at all facilities. 
- Delivered cases of water to City Hall as requested. 
- Completed weekly cleaning of Community Center. 
- Completed weekly pre trip inspections of crew trucks. 
- Completed monthly check of all irrigation systems and made repairs as necessary. 
- Completed 17 work orders for general-City Hall maintenance. 

 
Parks/Recreation 

- Set and painted new bollards at Cedar Brake to help prevent vehicles driving into the park. 
- Repaired tire ruts in Cedar Brake Park from vehicle traffic. 
- Installed handrails at Cedar Brake restrooms. 
- Replaced lid on suction line inlet for waterfall at Memory Park. 
- Delivered and emptied debris trailer from Memory Park for Rotary Club. 
- Completed 34 work orders for maintenance-parks issues. 
- M/W/F cleaning of all restrooms and grounds. 
- Fernland docents reported 679 visitors and provided 28 tours for the month. 

 
General 

- Completed quarterly Heavy Trash event. 
- Cut out 6 goat silhouettes. 
- Attended “Light up the Park” event. 
- Attended Christmas parade. 
- Francisco Salas attended Utilities Management online class. 
- Jack Brown attended Wastewater Collections online class. 
- Escorted Christmas light contest judges around town. 
- Attended Christmas Parade debriefing meeting. 
- Completed 10 work orders for maintenance-general issues. 
- Completed monthly safety meeting with department and safety officer. 
- Attended bi-weekly conference calls with utility operator and engineer. 
 

Report prepared by: 
Mike Muckleroy 

Director of Public Works 
January 10, 2021 



 
Public Works Department Public Works Department
101 Old Plantersville Rd. 
Montgomery, TX 77316 Montgomery, T

Main: 936-597-6434 Fax: 936-597-6437 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________________________________________________

Monthly Report for N ov ember 2020 

 

Water 
- Repaired water leak at WWTP. 
- Replaced broken meters on Racetrack Ln. 
- Activated/deactivated 8 water accounts. 
- Completed monthly cutoff list for nonpayments. 
- Completed monthly leak notification door hangers. 
- Completed monthly meter verification list. 
- Completed monthly check of idle meter list for consumption. No issues were found. 
- Completed 2 work orders for endpoint maintenance issues. 
- Completed 3 work orders for water leaks. 
- Completed 4 work orders for miscellaneous water issues. 
- Completed 8 work orders for water taps. 

 
Wastewater 

- Completed 8 work order for sewer taps. 
- Completed 1 work order for sewer-stop up. 

Streets/Drainage/ROW 
- Replaced decorative light post on McCown St. 
- Excavated ditch at 1006 Old Plantersville Rd. 
- Trimmed low limbs on Old Plantersville Rd. and Worsham St. 
- Cleared storm inlets throughout the city. 
- Repaired 0 potholes. 
- Completed 0 work orders for streetlight request. 
- Completed 5 work orders for Street ROW – Ditch/Drainage. 
- Completed 0 work orders for street sign issues. 
- Completed daily utility locates as necessary. 
- Completed daily removal of bandit signs as necessary. 

Building/Facility/Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance 
- Raised section of sidewalk at Community Center to match grade.



- Installed wall mounted safe for PD. 
- Installed temporary handicapped parking signs for elections at City Hall. 
- Replaced flags at City Hall. 
- Replaced all flag ropes on all City owned flagpoles. 
- Replaced front brake pads on PW-1501. 
- Completed monthly light bulb check at all facilities. 
- Delivered cases of water to City Hall as requested. 
- Completed weekly cleaning of Community Center. 
- Completed weekly pre trip inspections of crew trucks. 
- Completed monthly check of all irrigation systems and made repairs as necessary. 
- Completed 27 work orders for general-City Hall maintenance. 

 
Parks/Recreation 

- Cleaned and repainted basketball backboard at Homecoming Park. 
- Straightened one light pole at Cedar Brake Park. 
- Replaced 4 light fixtures under pavilion and one for basketball court at Homecoming Park.  
- Replaced rotten handrail posts for blacksmith shop at Fernland Park. 
- Delivered and emptied debris trailer from Memory Park for Rotary Club. 
- Completed 25 work orders for maintenance-parks issues. 
- M/W/F cleaning of all restrooms and grounds. 
- Fernland docents reported 716 visitors and provided 51 tours for the month. 

 
General 

- Set up and clean up for Addison-Gandy sign dedication ceremony. 
- Completed installation of all Christmas decorations. 
- Repainted “Welcome to Montgomery” sign. 
- Completed 10 work orders for maintenance-general issues. 
- Completed monthly safety meeting with department and safety officer. 
- Attended bi-weekly conference calls with utility operator and engineer. 
- Attended Open Enrollment for health insurance. 
- Attended onsite inspection with TDEM for Atkins Creek utility line repairs. 
- Attended Park Board discussion with City Administrator.   
- Attended projects meeting with engineers and city staff. 
- Attended “Light up the Park” meeting. 
 

 
 

Report prepared by: 
Mike Muckleroy 

Director of Public Works 
January 7, 2021 



                                            

Montgomery Police Department Annual 
Report At A Glance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The City of Montgomery Police Department is a municipal law enforcement agency located in Southeast 
Texas just north of Houston.  Montgomery is a small city located in Montgomery County, which is the 
next county north of Harris county.  The City is located on Highway 105 which is the main thoroughfare 
from Conroe to College Station where Texas A&M is located.  We are also located 10 minutes from 
Lake Conroe, a popular summer destination.   The agency maintains a staff of 14 sworn full time officers 
and one police department administrative assistant.  The City has an estimated 1800 residents but also 
serves approximately 25,000 daily with traffic along Highway 105.        

The Montgomery Police Department responds to all calls for service inside the city which include 
medical and fire calls.  We have a good working relationship with both entities and regularly work 
together.  The backbone of our agency is our Patrol division.  We also have an Investigations division 
and Training division.  Everyone in the agency wears multiple “hats” to move us forward as a unit.   

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The department is led by Chief Anthony Solomon who was hired from outside the agency on June 3, 
2019.  He came with over 25 years’ experience. In a little over one and a half years, the agency, under 
Chief Solomon, has focused on officer safety, relevant training, and modern equipment to create an elite, 
highly effective department. 

Safety Culture and Programs 

The administration of the Montgomery Police Department consistently encourages an atmosphere of 
Officer Safety and personal well-being.  They have an open-door policy and are willing to discuss any 
idea that could improve the quality of the service we provide and increasing the safety of officers and 
employees.  The Montgomery Police Department has put considerable effort into making sure each 
officer is trained and equipped to the highest standards with the end goal of providing the best service 
and protection to our citizens and officers.   

Training: 

Montgomery PD has implemented a dedicated training division that is responsible for providing the 
officers with regular, modern, and relevant training.  One of the ways this is done was by implementing 
a new hire training program.  The program requires all new officers to complete training in Mentally Ill 
Response, De-escalation of Force, Naloxone (Narcan), Self-Aid/Buddy Aid, Body Worn Camera, and 
Cybersecurity and Malware Awareness before being released off field training.   

Within the first year of employment, they must also complete additional training on Vehicle Pursuits, 
Vehicle Patrol & Accident Prevention, Foot Pursuits, Positional Asphyxia, and Coronavirus (COVID 
19) & Law Enforcement.  MPD Officers have received a total of over 2000 hours of advanced training 
in 2020.  Officers have received an average of over 100 hours of training in the last year alone.  For 
comparison, the Texas state mandate is a minimum of 40 hours of continuing education every two years.   

We are particularly proud of our de-escalation training results.  In 2017, the Montgomery Police 
Department had 35 documented uses of force for the agency.  In 2018, there were 13 documented uses 
of force for the agency.  After Chief Solomon took over in June of 2019 and initiated the dedicated 
training division which implemented all new-hires and current officers received mandatory de-escalation 
of force training.  As a result of this, our documented uses of force in 2019 went down to three and only 
four for 2020.  (This is especially noteworthy because the agency has more officers now than in 2017-
2018.)  



Over the last couple of years, we have had several calls where our officers were able to employ de-
escalation techniques and the verbal skills learned in training to “talk down” people in mental health 
crisis or in need of mental health evaluations.  Many of the times our officers were able to convince the 
subject to voluntarily accompany EMS to get a mental health evaluation done.   

Some of the other topics covered in training have been Active Shooter Response, Blood Borne Pathogen, 
CPR/AED, SWAT, Advanced SWAT, Basic Instructor, Advanced Instructor, Court Security, Advanced 
Human Trafficking, etc.   

In December of 2019, the Montgomery Police Department hosted a joint Active Shooter Response 
Course. The purpose of the course was for officers from Montgomery PD and the Montgomery 
Independent School District Police Department to train together so everyone was trained the same way.  
Both agencies had many of their personnel go through the course which was conducted entirely on 
location at one of the large schools in the area. The middle school we trained at was very happy we chose 
to use the facility.  We utilized outer agency peace officers as role players as well as well as some teenage 
volunteers for realism.   

 

 

 

     

 

 

Less Lethal: 

Montgomery PD  is committed to the peaceful resolution of all incidents if possible.  In order to give 
officers, the highest likelihood of attaining that goal, all officers go through annual refresher courses on 
de-escalation, use of force laws, and recertification of less lethal options.  Each individual Officer is 
certified in and issued Oleoresin Capsicum (OC) and a Taser X26P with two cartridges.   

Certain individuals are also certified in Less Lethal 12-gauge shotguns that fire bean bag rounds and 
Pepper ball guns that fire a pave powder projectile.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



We had one situation where a suspect on a traffic stop ran from officers into a nearby business park.  
Officers gave chase and at appropriate times, deployed their Tasers twice. (The tasers proved ineffective 
at the time due to each only getting one prong in.)  Because of their training the officers knew this 
situation was not a lethal force threat scenario, so they continued to pursue the suspect rather than 
escalate the force even though it was a high stress situation.  During the foot chase one of our officers 
was injured with a broken leg going over a fence.  Despite having an “officer down” call our officers 
stayed focused on the task at hand.  The suspect ran into a restaurant in the strip center where an officer 
deployed a third taser and was able to take him into custody.   

Firearms:   

Each Patrol Officer is trained on and issued a semi-automatic Glock 17 pistol with three spare 
magazines, a Ruger AR556 patrol rifle with two magazines, and Remington 870 Police 12-gauge 
shotgun.  All three weapon systems are issued with white lights attached and slings on the long guns.  
The agency has also chosen to implement qualification twice a year as opposed to the state mandated 
qualification of once annually.   

We do one daylight qualification and one low light qualification each year.    

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

Medical: 

The Montgomery Police Department has a strong belief that life is precious.  The need to have the 
skills and equipment to save lives translates into multiple disciplines so we need to be proficient in 
many.  By policy, every officer is issued a tourniquet and are required to wear it on their person.  Each 
Officer is also issued a IFAK or (Individual First Aid Kit) which includes another TQ, pressure 
bandage, chest seal, nitrile gloves, hemostatic impregnated gauze.    

Each patrol vehicle is assigned a Downed Officer Kit/Emergency Medical backpack that includes an 
AED, a Stop the Bleed Kit, a CPR Respiration Kit, an emergency carry litter, and nitrile gloves.  (not 
pictured, North American Rescue Emergency carry litter) 

 

 

 

 



 

 

All officers are put through advanced training in Self Aid/Buddy Aid and Stop the Bleed courses at a 
minimum.   

In February of 2021, all officers are going through Lone Star Medics Dynamic Patrol medical course.  
This course is taught by Caleb Causey who is a well-known Military/ SWAT Medic and TCCC 
Instructor with over 20 years’ experience in the field and tactical medical industry.  

All these courses are designed to train the officers in the proficient use of tourniquets, pressure 
bandages, chest seals and other equipment to treat traumatic wounds and blood loss.  All officers are 
also certified in CPR/AED use.   

In November of this year our nightshift units responded to assist the county Sheriff’s Office on a 
shooting in the parking lot of a nearby bar.  One of our officers was the first on scene and applied a 
chest seal on the victims wound before EMS could get there.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Montgomery PD also has two officers on staff who are certified Stop the Bleed Instructors.  These 
officers conduct in-service refresher training for the department but also offer the class to the public at 
least quarterly beginning in January 2021. Every Officer is also trained on and issued Narcan and 
required by policy to wear it on their person during patrol.  Thankfully, we have not had a situation 
where it has been needed but are prepared when it arises.   

Community Safety and Education 

In the beginning of 2020, the Montgomery Police Department initiated a Church Safety Assessment 
program.  Every church in the City was offered a free security assessment and Active Shooter Seminar.  
Many of the churches accepted and the police department conducted several assessments and seminars 
over the following weeks.  Hundreds of people were educated on what they can do in the event of an 
active shooter.  The initiative was so successful it was offered to businesses and day care centers in and 
around the City as well.  



  

The department also initiated a Citizens Police Academy where citizens will participate in a 6-week 
program to familiarize them with the workings of the police department and give them an opportunity 
to partner with us to serve the community.  (This was set to go live in March of 2020 but was 
postponed due to COVID-19.)  The creation of the Montgomery Police Department's Citizens' 
Academy will allow citizens to become more educated about their local police and get a taste of what 
police work is all about. Citizens will gain an insider's knowledge of the police agency, enabling them 
to make informed decisions on issues affecting the police and the community. The program will also 
help citizens and police officers receive insight into the views held by each other about policing. Due 
to COVID-19 the CPA classes have been delayed but we are looking to move forward when the 
pandemic is under control.  

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Montgomery Police Department is also a strong proponent of pedestrian and bicycle safety.  This 
year one of our officers was featured and interviewed for a law enforcement training course on bicycle 
and pedestrian safety for the National Highway and Traffic Safety Administration.  This course is 
being used to train officers across the country.   

Flood Water and Emergency Assistance 

Being in southeast Texas has certain unique considerations.  Not the least of which is the likelihood of 
hurricanes and flash flooding.  After Hurricane Harvey it became evident that this type of vehicle was 
needed to save lives. 

Two High Water Assistance vehicles were obtained through the LESO Program to assist citizens and 
outer agencies where flood waters have prevented the passing of standard emergency vehicles.  The 
agency selected two Light Mobile Transport or (LMTs) and repurposed them as high-water assistance 
vehicles.  Thankfully, we have not had to implement these vehicles has of yet to the needed for server 
weather causing high water however when needed we will be prepared to respond.  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Officer Safety Equipment 

We here at the Montgomery Police Department takes the safety of every individual officer seriously.  
Because of that, every officer of the Montgomery Police Department is equipped with the best safety 
equipment available.   This includes hi-visibility reflective traffic vests.  These vests are to be worn 
during all traffic investigations or direction details. 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Soft body armor with a IIIA rating is standard issue in an outer vest carrier (photo below).  The threats 
that law enforcement faces don’t stop at handguns, so every officer is also issued rifle plates in a mole 
webbing plate carrier and ballistic helmets for active shooter or tactical situations.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



For hazmat, homicide, or decomp death investigations officers are issued PPE kits that include Tyvek 
suits, gloves, goggles, and N95 face masks.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Conclusion 

Montgomery, Texas is known for being the “Birthplace of the Texas Flag”, but the Police Department 
hopes to add to that reputation as well.  We want to be known as a small city whose officers are the 
most well trained, most proficient, most effective, and helpful.  The desire is to be an agency that 
others can model to more effectively serve the citizens of their jurisdictions.  Our agency is made up of 
a variety of experience levels with one common goal- To be the best and most professional we can 
possibly be at utilizing every resource at our disposal to protect and improve the lives of those we 
serve. Every officer here truly wants to help and protect this city.   

While our training program is comparatively young, it has been highly effective in a short amount of 
time despite the unique challenges this year brought.  It takes more time to implement some things than 
others, but we have a plan to keep moving onward and upward and to help raise the standards of our 
officers, the agencies around us, and Law Enforcement as a whole.  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Montgomery Police Department 
Chief Anthony Solomon 

 

Activity Report  

January 1, 2020 – December 31, 2020 
 
Patrol Division 

Calls for Service   -  1789 
Total Reports   -  337 
Citations Issued   -  1400 
Warnings Issued   -  2773 
Arrests - 99
Accidents    -  89 

 
Investigation Division 

Total number of assigned cases to C.I.D. for the year: 42 
 
 

Goals, Objectives, and Initiatives  
 

T h e  l a w  e n f o r c e m e n t  p r o f e s s i o n  i s  f l u i d  a n d  a s  P o l i c e  l e a d e r s ,  c o m i n g  i n t o  a  n e w  
o r g a n i z a t i o n  w e  m u s t  b e  a b l e  t o  a s s e s s  t h e  n e e d s  o f  t h e  d e p a r t m e n t  t h e n  
f o r e c a s t  e m e r g i n g  t r e n d s  t h a t  w i l l  a l l o w  u s  t o  p l a n  s t r a t e g i c a l l y  f o r  t h e  f u t u r e  o f  t h e  
d e p a r t m e n t .  O v e r  t h e  y e a r s  t h i s  h a s  b e c o m e  i n c r e a s i n g l y  d i f f i c u l t  a s  t h e  e c o n o m y  
b e c o m e s  m o r e  u n p r e d i c t a b l e .  
S m a l l e r  a g e n c i e s  o f t e n  f a c e  a n  u p h i l l  b a t t l e  d u e  t o  l i m i t e d  r e s o u r c e s  a n d  c o m p e t i t i v e  g r a n t  
o p p o r t u n i t i e s  t h a t  s o m e t i m e s  r e q u i r e  a n  u n a t t a i n a b l e  m a t c h .   
H o w e v e r ,  a s  a n  a g e n c y ,  w e  s t i l l  t a k e  p r i d e  i n  p r o v i d i n g  t h e  s a m e  q u a l i t y  o f  s e r v i c e  t o  o u r  
c o m m u n i t i e s ,  e v e n  w h e n  s o m e t i m e s  w e  h a v e  t o  d o  m o r e  w i t h  l e s s .  S o  t h a t ’ s  w h y  p l a n n i n g  
f o r  a n y  l a w  e n f o r c e m e n t  a g e n c y  s e r v e s  a s  a  d o c u m e n t  t h a t  p r o v i d e s  t h e  v i s i o n  a n d  g o a l s  
f o r  t h e  o r g a n i z a t i o n  a n d  g i v e s  t h e m  a  c l e a r  r o a d m a p  t o  f o l l o w .  

Mission Statement 
  

T h e  M o n t g o m e r y  P o l i c e  D e p a r t m e n t  i s  d e d i c a t e d  t o  f o r g i n g  a  p a r t n e r s h i p  w i t h  t h e  
c o m m u n i t y  w e  s e r v e .  I t  i s  t h e  m i s s i o n  o f  t h e  M o n t g o m e r y  P o l i c e  D e p a r t m e n t  t o  e f f e c t i v e l y  
a n d  e f f i c i e n t l y  p r o v i d e  f o r  t h e  p r o t e c t i o n  o f  l i v e s  a n d  p r o p e r t y ,  p r e s e r v e  t h e  p u b l i c  p e a c e ,  
a n d  p r o v i d e  n e e d e d  c o m m u n i t y  s e r v i c e s  w i t h  t h e  h i g h e s t  l e v e l  o f  p r o f e s s i o n a l i s m  a n d  
e t h i c a l  s t a n d a r d s .  
  
We exist to add to the quality of life of this community. 



  
  
Our Core Values: 
  

A - Accountability - Responsible for all our decisions and actions. 
S - Stewardship - Dedicated to the responsible use of resources 
P - Professionalism - Maintain public confidence, trust, and pride. We will be always 

truthful and trustworthy. 
I - Integrity - Doing the right things, for the right reasons, all of the time 
R - Respect - Treat all with courtesy, compassion, fairness, and dignity.  
E - Excellence - Committed to the highest ethical and legal standards in everything we 

do.  
 
 Three-year plans, Goals, and Objectives  
 

• Continue to establish policies that gives both supervisors and officers a clear direction when 
Initiating his or her duties.  

 
• Work on improving and patrol coverage for the city leaving no area of the city uncovered.  

 
• Continue working towards making the FTO program a viable training tool for new officers. 

Using the knowledge, we have gained from the past training, we have begun to develop 
programs that will better serve the PPO and better prepare him or her for the task ahead.  

 
• Continue to find ways to improve training and information pass on during roll call in order to 

get the maximum assurance that all information is getting to each officer and CID. 
 

• Continue to use mid-year performance meeting with each supervisor as a tool by which the 
Supervisors can learn and grow. And use that opportunity to focus on needed areas of training. 



                                       
 
 
 
 
 

Montgomery Police Department 
Chief Anthony Solomon 

 

Activity Report  
 

November 1, 2020 – November 30, 2020 
 

Patrol Division 
 

Calls for Service   -  181 
Total Reports    -  38 
Citations Issued   -  238 
Warnings Issued   -  426 
Arrests    -  16 
Accidents    -  19 
 
Personnel/Training 
 
Mrs. Goode attended a Public Information Act Seminar hosted by the Texas Police Association in 
November. 
 
Investigation Division 

Total number of assigned cases to C.I.D. for the month: 5 
 
 

Breakdown by Offense Category 
 

DWI        8 
 
Burglary       1 
 
Theft        2 
 
Drug Arrests       10 
 
Theft of Motor Vehicle     1 
 
Criminal Mischief      2 
 
Assault Family Violence     2 
 
 
Major Incidents  
 
No Major Incidents in November. 



 
 
 
Upcoming Events 
 
The Police Department’s R.A.D. Classes and Citizen’s Police Academy have been postponed. New 
dates are to be determined. 
 
Traffic and Safety Initiatives 
 
There is now a survey on the police department website. We are asking citizens to fill out this 
survey based on their interactions with our officers. This is to identify our strengths and 
weaknesses, which will help establish our priorities for the future. 
 
During the month of November, our department was proud to participate in TXDoT’s Click It or 
Ticket Campaign. Below are the statistics from this 2 week period. 
 

 DWI Arrest - 5  
 Narcotics arrest - 3 all felony charges  
 Theft Arrest - 1 (Felony do to being 3rd theft) 
 Harboring a runaway Arrest - 1  
 Felony warrant Service Arrest - 1 
 Public Intoxication  Arrest -1 
 Runaway Recovery 1 (from a traffic stop) 
 Misdemeanor Arrests - 7  
 Felony Arrests - 5 
 Warnings issued - 284 
 Citations issued - 168 











 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOTAL REVENUE 

Utilities $130,255.79 

Permits $15,417.00 

Vendor/Golf Cart/ Etc. Permits $225.00 

Right of Way Fees $2.26 

Flags Sold $80.00 

Community Building Deposit $300.00 

Community Building/ Park Rentals $150.00 

Plat/ Zoning/ Variance Fees $10.00 

Accident Report $36.00 

Arrest Fees $5.00 

Escrow Fees $5,000.00 

Online Transaction Fees- Web 
Payments 

$422.50 

Monthly Total: $151,903.55 

UTILITY/GENERAL FUND REPORT – DECEMBER 2020 



ARREARS 

 60 Days 90 Days 120+ Days 

Number of Accounts 9 3 12 

Amount $519.63 $265.68 $1,605.40 

GRAND TOTAL: $2,390.71 

 

 

PERMITS 

Type Permit Total 

Building-Residential 3 

Building- Commercial  1 

Plumbing 15 

Pool 1 

Irrigation 3 

Mechanical 11 

Generator 1 

Electrical 9 

TOTAL 44 



0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

Cooling Tower Feed City Hall & Irrigation Memory Park

Large Consumption Accounts

Nov-20 Dec-20 Dec-19

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

UTILITIES 

New Water Accts. 18 

Disconnected Water Accts. 12 

Total Number of Active Accts. 863 

CITY ACCOUNT WATER USAGE 
ACCOUNT NAME ACCT # NOV 2020 DEC 2020 DEC 2019 

Community Building Irrigation (01-8732-00) 10,000 3,000 2,000 
Community Building (01-0130-00) 1,000 6,000 1,000 

City Cemetery (01-1110-00) 0 0 0 
City Welcome Sign Irrigation (01-8733-00) 0 0 0 
Cedar Brake Park Irrigation (01-8736-00) 7,000 2,000 0 

Cedar Brake Park Restrooms (01-8735-00) 3,000 1,000 1,000 
Fernland Park (01-8737-00) 5,000 0 1,000 
Memory Park (01-5885-00) 53,000 15,000 20,000 

Community Building Stage Irrigation (01-6180-00) 2,000 0 0 
City Hall & Irrigation (01-6190-00) 17,000 4,000 4,000 

Homecoming Park Restrooms (01-8820-00) 1,000 0 0 
Homecoming Park Drinking Fountain (01-8738-00) 0 0 0 

Buffalo Springs Sewer Plant (01-8821-00) 3,000 1,000 2,000 
Cooling Tower Feed (01-0355-00) 16,000 44,000 120,000 

Welcome Flags (01-8734-00) 0 0 0 





 

 

 

 
 

TOTAL REVENUE 

Utilities $157,887.43 

Permits $22,916.00 

Vendor/Golf Cart/ Etc. Permits $95.00 

Right of Way Fees $1,569.35 

Flags Sold $136.00 

MEDC- Christmas Parade Fee 
Donation 

$100.00 

Sign Permit Fees $150.00 

Community Building Deposit $300.00 

Christmas Parade Fees $1,105.00 

Franchise Fees $2,222.69 

Community Building/ Park Rentals $450.00 

Plat/ Zoning/ Variance Fees $700.00 

Light Up the Park Pole Reservation 
Fees 

$25.00 

PD Auction (8/7/2020) Sold Patrol 
Vehicle 

$3,494.82 

TML Claim Community Building 
Wall Repairs 

$2,500.00 

Online Transaction Fees- Web 
Payments 

$457.50 

Monthly Total: $194,108.79 

UTILITY/GENERAL FUND REPORT – NOVEMBER 2020 



 

 

 

 
 

ARREARS 

 
60 Days 90 Days 120+ Days 

Number of Accounts 8 1 13 

Amount $573.51 $49.61 $1,607.12 

GRAND TOTAL: $2,230.24 

 

 

PERMITS 

Type Permit Total 

Building-Residential 7 

Plumbing 6 

Irrigation 2 

Mechanical 12 

Electrical 2 

TOTAL 29 

UTILITIES 

New Water Accts. 23 

Disconnected Water Accts. 10 

Total Number of Active Accts. 865 



 

 

 

 

  

CITY ACCOUNT WATER USAGE 

ACCOUNT NAME ACCT # OCT 2020 NOV 2020 NOV 2019 

Community Building Irrigation (01-8732-00) 13,000 10,000 9,000 
Community Building (01-0130-00) 2,000 1,000 1,000 

City Cemetery (01-1110-00) 0 0 0 
City Welcome Sign Irrigation (01-8733-00) 1,000 0 0 
Cedar Brake Park Irrigation (01-8736-00) 5,000 7,000 1,000 

Cedar Brake Park Restrooms (01-8735-00) 2,000 3,000 2,000 
Fernland Park (01-8737-00) 5,000 5,000 1,000 
Memory Park (01-5885-00) 75,000 53,000 34,000 

Community Building Stage Irrigation (01-6180-00) 1,000 2,000 1,000 
City Hall & Irrigation (01-6190-00) 22,000 17,000 15,000 

Homecoming Park Restrooms (01-8820-00) 0 1,000 1,000 
Homecoming Park Drinking Fountain (01-8738-00) 0 0 0 

Buffalo Springs Sewer Plant (01-8821-00) 2,000 3,000 1,000 
Cooling Tower Feed (01-0355-00) 22,000 16,000 104,000 

Welcome Flags (01-8734-00) 1,000 0 0 



 

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

Memory Park City Hall & Irrigation Cooling Tower Feed

City of Montgomery Large Consumption

Oct-20 Nov-20 Nov-19



 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOTAL REVENUE 

Utilities $130,255.79 

Permits $15,417.00 

Vendor/Golf Cart/ Etc. Permits $225.00 

Right of Way Fees $2.26 

Flags Sold $80.00 

Community Building Deposit $300.00 

Community Building/ Park Rentals $150.00 

Plat/ Zoning/ Variance Fees $10.00 

Accident Report $36.00 

Arrest Fees $5.00 

Escrow Fees $5,000.00 

Online Transaction Fees- Web 
Payments 

$422.50 

Monthly Total: $151,903.55 

UTILITY/GENERAL FUND REPORT – DECEMBER 2020 



ARREARS 

 60 Days 90 Days 120+ Days 

Number of Accounts 9 3 12 

Amount $519.63 $265.68 $1,605.40 

GRAND TOTAL: $2,390.71 

 

 

PERMITS 

Type Permit Total 

Building-Residential 3 

Building- Commercial  1 

Plumbing 15 

Pool 1 

Irrigation 3 

Mechanical 11 

Generator 1 

Electrical 9 

TOTAL 44 



0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

Cooling Tower Feed City Hall & Irrigation Memory Park

Large Consumption Accounts

Nov-20 Dec-20 Dec-19

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

UTILITIES 

New Water Accts. 18 

Disconnected Water Accts. 12 

Total Number of Active Accts. 863 

CITY ACCOUNT WATER USAGE 
ACCOUNT NAME ACCT # NOV 2020 DEC 2020 DEC 2019 

Community Building Irrigation (01-8732-00) 10,000 3,000 2,000 
Community Building (01-0130-00) 1,000 6,000 1,000 

City Cemetery (01-1110-00) 0 0 0 
City Welcome Sign Irrigation (01-8733-00) 0 0 0 
Cedar Brake Park Irrigation (01-8736-00) 7,000 2,000 0 

Cedar Brake Park Restrooms (01-8735-00) 3,000 1,000 1,000 
Fernland Park (01-8737-00) 5,000 0 1,000 
Memory Park (01-5885-00) 53,000 15,000 20,000 

Community Building Stage Irrigation (01-6180-00) 2,000 0 0 
City Hall & Irrigation (01-6190-00) 17,000 4,000 4,000 

Homecoming Park Restrooms (01-8820-00) 1,000 0 0 
Homecoming Park Drinking Fountain (01-8738-00) 0 0 0 

Buffalo Springs Sewer Plant (01-8821-00) 3,000 1,000 2,000 
Cooling Tower Feed (01-0355-00) 16,000 44,000 120,000 

Welcome Flags (01-8734-00) 0 0 0 





 

 

 

 
 

TOTAL REVENUE 

Utilities $157,887.43 

Permits $22,916.00 

Vendor/Golf Cart/ Etc. Permits $95.00 

Right of Way Fees $1,569.35 

Flags Sold $136.00 

MEDC- Christmas Parade Fee 
Donation 

$100.00 

Sign Permit Fees $150.00 

Community Building Deposit $300.00 

Christmas Parade Fees $1,105.00 

Franchise Fees $2,222.69 

Community Building/ Park Rentals $450.00 

Plat/ Zoning/ Variance Fees $700.00 

Light Up the Park Pole Reservation 
Fees 

$25.00 

PD Auction (8/7/2020) Sold Patrol 
Vehicle 

$3,494.82 

TML Claim Community Building 
Wall Repairs 

$2,500.00 

Online Transaction Fees- Web 
Payments 

$457.50 

Monthly Total: $194,108.79 

UTILITY/GENERAL FUND REPORT – NOVEMBER 2020 



 

 

 

 
 

ARREARS 

 
60 Days 90 Days 120+ Days 

Number of Accounts 8 1 13 

Amount $573.51 $49.61 $1,607.12 

GRAND TOTAL: $2,230.24 

 

 

PERMITS 

Type Permit Total 

Building-Residential 7 

Plumbing 6 

Irrigation 2 

Mechanical 12 

Electrical 2 

TOTAL 29 

UTILITIES 

New Water Accts. 23 

Disconnected Water Accts. 10 

Total Number of Active Accts. 865 



 

 

 

 

  

CITY ACCOUNT WATER USAGE 

ACCOUNT NAME ACCT # OCT 2020 NOV 2020 NOV 2019 

Community Building Irrigation (01-8732-00) 13,000 10,000 9,000 
Community Building (01-0130-00) 2,000 1,000 1,000 

City Cemetery (01-1110-00) 0 0 0 
City Welcome Sign Irrigation (01-8733-00) 1,000 0 0 
Cedar Brake Park Irrigation (01-8736-00) 5,000 7,000 1,000 

Cedar Brake Park Restrooms (01-8735-00) 2,000 3,000 2,000 
Fernland Park (01-8737-00) 5,000 5,000 1,000 
Memory Park (01-5885-00) 75,000 53,000 34,000 

Community Building Stage Irrigation (01-6180-00) 1,000 2,000 1,000 
City Hall & Irrigation (01-6190-00) 22,000 17,000 15,000 

Homecoming Park Restrooms (01-8820-00) 0 1,000 1,000 
Homecoming Park Drinking Fountain (01-8738-00) 0 0 0 

Buffalo Springs Sewer Plant (01-8821-00) 2,000 3,000 1,000 
Cooling Tower Feed (01-0355-00) 22,000 16,000 104,000 

Welcome Flags (01-8734-00) 1,000 0 0 



 

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

Memory Park City Hall & Irrigation Cooling Tower Feed

City of Montgomery Large Consumption

Oct-20 Nov-20 Nov-19



 
 
 
 

 

 
City of Montgomery 

Operations Report  
December 2020 

11/18/20-12/17/20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 2 of 8 
 

 
 
Dear City of Montgomery Council Members: 
 
 
We are pleased to provide you with the monthly operations report.  This report summarizes the 
major events that occurred during the operating month. Our mission, as always, is to assist the 
district in providing safe and reliable water to the residents. 
 
The water plants, wastewater plant and drinking water quality is checked on a daily basis.  
Wastewater collection system lift stations are checked three times a week.  Alarms are 
monitored, and our staff is on 24-hour call.  Our construction crews are minutes away from the 
City. 
 
Our operators collect and enter all facility data into Kardia.  Our operators note any issues or 
problems that are observed during the day.  Mission Control is instantly aware of the issue and 
immediately begins the resolution process.  This approach benefits our clients because decisions 
can be made based on relevant data.  
 
 
All the district’s data can be accessed on-line.  The data is username and password protected.  
The data is integrated with Kardia and updated daily.  District alerts that are generated by Kardia 
can be sent to board designated recipients. H2O Innovation appreciates the trust and confidence 
that the board has in our team. We work diligently to provide our clients with accurate and useful 
information.  
 
 
 
 
 
Michael Williams 
 
 
 
Vice President 
H2O Innovation  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 8 
 

District Alerts   
 
11/21/2020 – Lift station 9, Power/pump failure 
Upon arrival operator found facility running normally. Operator reset equipment, no further 
issues. 
 
11/25/2020– Leak reported, Near City Hall 
Operator found a leaking fire hydrant valve near city hall, contractor was notified not to use 
valve on hydrant meter to shut off water, hydrant was turned off correctly and leak stopped. 
 
11/27/2020 – WWTP1, Blower failure 
Upon arrival operator found facility running normally, call out due to a possible power surge. 
Operator reset equipment, no further issues. 
 
11/27/2020 – Water plant 1, Power failure 
Upon arrival operator found facility with no power due to storm in the area. Operator reset 
equipment, monitored facility and no further issues reported.  
 
11/27/2020– Lift Station 2, 3 and 5, High level and power failure 
Upon arrival operator found facility calling out for high level and power failure due to storm in 
the area. Operator reset equipment, operator monitored facility and no further issues reported. 
 
12/01/2020 – Water plant 2, Low level 
Upon arrival operator found facility at low level, call out due to recent storms in the area. 
Operator reset equipment, no further issues. 
 
12/02/2020 – Lift station 2, Pump failure  
Operator found lift pump 1 not pumping. Maintenance was notified to pull and clean pumps.  
 
12/07/2020 – Lift station 2, High wet well 
Operator found lift station at high level. Equipment reset and operator monitored facility.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 4 of 8 
 

Wastewater Plant Flow Detail 
 

 
 
 

 Flow for the month of November – December was 5,234,000 gallons   
 

 Daily peak flow November 29, 2020 was 427,000 gallons  
 

 Average Daily Flow 174,00 gallons 
 

o 44% of permitted capacity   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
0.5
1
1.5
2
2.5
3
3.5
4
4.5
5

11
/1

8/
20

20
11

/1
9/

20
20

11
/2

0/
20

20
11

/2
1/

20
20

11
/2

2/
20

20
11

/2
3/

20
20

11
/2

4/
20

20
11

/2
5/

20
20

11
/2

6/
20

20
11

/2
7/

20
20

11
/2

8/
20

20
11

/2
9/

20
20

11
/3

0/
20

20
12

/1
/2

02
0

12
/2

/2
02

0
12

/3
/2

02
0

12
/4

/2
02

0
12

/5
/2

02
0

12
/6

/2
02

0
12

/7
/2

02
0

12
/8

/2
02

0
12

/9
/2

02
0

12
/1

0/
20

20
12

/1
1/

20
20

12
/1

2/
20

20
12

/1
3/

20
20

12
/1

4/
20

20
12

/1
5/

20
20

12
/1

6/
20

20
12

/1
7/

20
20

0
100000
200000
300000
400000
500000
600000
700000
800000
900000

1000000

November - December Daily Effluent Trend

Rain Inches Daily Effluent Permit Limit

75% Permit 90% Permit Average Daily Flow



 

Page 5 of 8 
 

 
 
 
 
Discharge Limitations 
 

 Daily Average Flow 400,000 gallons (0.4 MGD) 
 2-Hour Peak Flow 833 gpm 
 CBOD daily average 10 mg/l 
 Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 15 mg/l 
 Ammonium Nitrogen (NH3) 2 mg/l 
 Chlorine Residual >1.0 mg/l < 4.0 mg/l 

 The current permit expires 06/01/2022 
 
 
Effluent 
 
TSS, DO, E.Coli, NH3N, PH sample results were all comfortable within the parameters set by the 
State of Texas. 
 
  Buffalo Springs WWTP Effluent Monitoring Report 

Effluent Permitted Values Parameter Measured Excursion 

Average Monthly T.S.S. 15 mg/l 0.30 no 

Average Monthly NH3 2 mg/l 0.24 no 

Minimal CL2 Residual 1 mg/l 1.14 no 

Max CL2 Residual 4 mg/l 3.66 no 

Rainfall for the Month 
 

9.75 inches  
  There were no excursions for the month of December 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 6 of 8 
 

 
Water Report 
 
11/18/2020-12/17/2020  
 

2020 

Well Name Recorded Flow 
MGD % of Total Rating MGD/Day YTD Pumpage 

MGD YTD % Permitted 
Value 

Remaining 
Permit % 

Well 2 4.012 22.73% 0.864 7.194 6.24% 
92.930 39.27% 

Well 3 3.103 47.00% 0.864 49.245 42.71% 

Well 4 1.743 30.27% 2.160 58.874 51.06% 90.000 34.58% 

Total 8.858 100.00% 3.888 115.313 100% 182.930   

Flushing 0.304             

Subtotal 8.554             

Sold 7.991             

% Accounted 94%             

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Accountability  
Total Water Sourced 8.858 
Flushing 0.304 

Subtotal 8.554 
Sold 7.991 
Accountability % 94% 

CONNECTIONS 
School 12 
Commercial Inside 162 
Commercial Outside 1 
Residential Inside 738 
Residential Outside 29 
Church 14 
City 15 
Hydrant 7 
Multifamily 14 
n/a 3 
Total 995 



 

Page 7 of 8 
 

 
 

 

Date Total  Well_1 Well_2 Well_3 Well_4 

AVG 10.4 0.000 0.896 4.187 5.314 

12/19/2019 7.771 0.000 0.017 1.457 6.297 

1/19/2020 7.021 0.000 0.887 1.106 5.028 

2/19/2020 7.324 0.000 0.095 2.279 4.950 

3/19/2020 8.276 0.000 0.163 3.632 4.481 

4/19/2020 7.259 0.000 0.083 1.929 5.247 

5/19/2020 9.146 0.000 0.000 2.995 6.151 

6/19/2020 10.96 0.000 0.398 3.371 7.191 

7/19/2020 13.246 0.000 0.315 4.927 8.004 

8/19/2020 15.059 0.000 0.129 8.883 6.047 

9/19/2020 15.691 0.000 0.441 9.731 5.519 

10/19/2020 12.546 0.000 2.380 5.374 4.792 

11/19/2020 12.018 0.000 2.732 5.648 3.638 

12/19/2020 8.858 0.000 4.012 3.103 1.743 

Total  135.18 0.000 11.652 54.435 69.088 
 
 

0

2
4

6

8
10

12

14
16

Ground Water Production

Well 1

Well 2

Well 3

Well 4



 

Page 8 of 8 
 

 
 
 

Date Accountability  Unaccounted  
Total 

Sourced  
Water 
Sold  

Flushing/ 
Leaks 

Unbilled 
Water 

12/19/2019 98% 0.120 7.771 7.474 0.177 0.297 

1/19/2020 96% 0.257 7.021 6.598 0.166 0.423 

2/19/2020 97% 0.209 7.324 6.598 0.517 0.726 

3/19/2020 97% 0.246 8.276 6.962 1.068 1.314 

4/19/2020 100% -0.017 7.259 7.084 0.192 0.175 

5/19/2020 96% 0.325 9.146 8.599 0.222 0.547 

6/19/2020 104% -0.413 10.960 11.215 0.158 -0.255 

7/19/2020 92% 1.098 13.246 11.931 0.217 1.315 

8/19/2020 100% 0.033 15.059 14.799 0.227 0.260 

9/19/2020 99% 0.150 15.691 14.875 0.666 0.816 

10/19/2020 93% 0.846 12.546 11.645 0.055 0.901 

11/19/2020 95% 0.635 12.018 11.265 0.118 0.753 

12/19/2020 94% 0.563 8.858 7.991 0.304 0.867 
 

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20
22
24

Water Accountability

Total
Sourced
Water
Sold
Unbilled
Water



CHECKING ACCT PRIOR MONTH END TOTAL FUNDS
BALANCES INVESTMENTS AVAILABLE

GENERAL FUNDS
OPERATING FUND     #1017375 1,763,768.85$    1,763,768.85$    
HOME GRANT FUNDS /COPS UNIVERSAL  #1032895 10.00$    10.00$    
ESCROW FUND    #1025873 -$    -$    
PARK FUND    #7014236 -$    -$    
POLICE DRUG & MISC FUND     #1025675 10,675.64$    10,675.64$    
INVESTMENTS - GENERAL FUND    100,000.00$     100,000.00$    
TEXPOOL - GENERAL FUND    # 00003 14,716.74$     14,716.74$    
TEXPOOL - RESERVE FUND    # 00001 253,408.46$     253,408.46$    
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 1,774,454.49$    368,125.20$     2,142,579.69$    

CONSTRUCTION FUND
BUILDING FUND     #1058528 -$    -$    
CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT    #1058544 13,637.87$    13,637.87$    
BOK Fnancial Series 2017A 105,529.65$    105,529.65$    
BOK Fnancial Series 2017BA 1,514,887.08$    1,514,887.08$    
TEXPOOL - CONST   # 00009 697.51$     697.51$    
INVESTMENTS - CONSTRUCTION -$   -$   
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION FUND 1,634,054.60$    697.51$     1,634,752.11$    

DEBT SERVICE FUND
DEBT SERVICE FUND  #7024730 211,489.30$    211,489.30$    
TEXPOOL DEBT SERVICE      # 00008 -$   236,998.56$    236,998.56$    
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND 211,489.30$    236,998.56$     448,487.86$    

COURT SECURITY FUND  #1070580 7,275.69$    -$   7,275.69$   

COURT TECHNICAL FUND     #1058361 39,895.44$    -$   39,895.44$   

GRANT FUND
HOME GRANT ACCOUNT   #1059104 5,737.63$    5,737.63$    
GRANT ACCOUNT   #1048479 80.73$    80.73$    
TOTAL GRANT FUND 5,818.36$    -$   5,818.36$   

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND     #1025253 15,661.00$    -$   15,661.00$   

MEDC 
CHECKING ACCOUNT   #1017938 146,802.29$    146,802.29$    
TEXPOOL - MEDC  # 00006 731,039.73$     731,039.73$    
TEXPOOL - MEDC  # 00005 108,387.09$     108,387.09$    
TOTAL MEDC 146,802.29$    839,426.82$     986,229.11$    

POLICE ASSET FORFEITURES    #1047745 12,086.80$    12,086.80$    

UTILITY FUND
UTILITY FUND     #1017383 1,163,715.55$    1,163,715.55$    
TEXPOOL - UTILITY FUND    # 00002 759,248.86$     759,248.86$    
TOTAL UTILITY FUND 1,163,715.55$    759,248.86$     1,922,964.41$    

TOTAL ALL FUNDS 5,011,253.52$    2,204,496.95$     7,215,750.47$    

TEXPOOL - GENERAL FUND 268,125.20$    
INVESTMENTS - GENERAL FUND 100,000.00$    

TEXPOOL - CONST   # 00009 697.51$    

TEXPOOL - DEBT SERVICE   # 00008 236,998.56$    

TEXPOOL - MEDC 731,039.73$    
INVESTMENTS - MEDC 108,387.09$    

TEXPOOL - UTILITY 759,248.86$    

TOTAL ALL INVESTMENTS 2,204,496.95$    

*Note:

CITY OF MONTGOMERY
ACCOUNT BALANCES 12-31-20
For Meeting of January 26, 2021

INVESTMENTS

1

1



December 31, 2020

Bookkeeper's Report

City of Montgomery

611 Longmire Rd Suite 1  •  Conroe, Texas 77304  •  Phone: 936.756.1644  •  Fax: 936.756.1844
2



City of Montgomery

Account Balances 
As of  December  31,  2020

Financial Institution
(Acct Number)

Issue 
Date

Maturity 
Date

Interest 
Rate

Account 
Balance Notes

Fund: Operating
Certificates of Deposit
THIRD COAST BANK, SSB (XXXX7256) 07/30/2020 01/26/2021 0.70 % 100,000.00

Money Market Funds
TEXPOOL (XXXX0003) 08/01/2005 0.09 % 14,716.74
TEXPOOL (XXXX0001) 02/07/2020 0.09 % 253,408.46 Reimbursement 

Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX7375) 0.00 % 1,763,768.85 Checking Account
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX5675) 0.00 % 10,675.64 Police Drug & Misc Fund
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX5873) 0.00 % 0.00 Escrow
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX2895) 0.00 % 10.00 Home Grant / COPS Universal
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX4236) 0.00 % 0.00 Park 

Totals for Operating Fund: $2,142,579.69
Fund: Capital Projects
Money Market Funds
TEXPOOL (XXXX0009) 12/27/2012 0.09 % 697.51

Checking Account(s)
BOK Financial (XXXX3014) 0.00 % 105,529.65 BOKF, NA  Escrow - Series 2017A
BOK Financial (XXXX4012) 0.00 % 1,514,887.08 BOKF, NA  Escrow - Series 2017B
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX8528) 0.00 % 0.00 Building Fund
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX8544) 0.00 % 13,637.87 Const Ckg-W&S Proj 1058544

Totals for Capital Projects Fund: $1,634,752.11
Fund: Debt Service
Money Market Funds
TEXPOOL (XXXX0008) 12/27/2012 0.09 % 236,998.56

Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX4730) 0.00 % 211,489.30 Checking Account

Totals for Debt Service Fund: $448,487.86
Fund: CT Security
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX0580) 0.00 % 7,275.69 Cash In Bank

Totals for CT Security Fund: $7,275.69
Fund: CT Tech
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX8361) 0.00 % 39,895.44 Cash In Bank

Totals for CT Tech Fund: $39,895.44
Fund: Grant
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX8479) 0.00 % 80.73 Grant Account
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX9104) 0.00 % 5,737.63 Checking Account

Totals for Grant Fund: $5,818.36

3



City of Montgomery

Account Balances 
As of  December  31,  2020

Financial Institution
(Acct Number)

Issue 
Date

Maturity 
Date

Interest 
Rate

Account 
Balance Notes

Fund: Hotel Occupancy Tax
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX5253) 0.00 % 15,661.00 Cash In Bank

Totals for Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund: $15,661.00
Fund: MEDC
Money Market Funds
TEXPOOL (XXXX0006) 08/01/2005 0.09 % 731,039.73
TEXPOOL (XXXX0005) 02/07/2020 0.09 % 108,387.09 Reimbursement

Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX7938) 0.00 % 146,802.29 MEDC Checking

Totals for MEDC Fund: $986,229.11
Fund: Policy Asset Forfeiture
Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX7745) 0.00 % 12,086.80 Cash In Bank

Totals for Policy Asset Forfeiture Fund: $12,086.80
Fund: Utility
Money Market Funds
TEXPOOL (XXXX0002) 08/01/2005 0.09 % 759,248.86

Checking Account(s)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX7383) 0.00 % 1,163,715.55 Water & Sewer Fund
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX7417) 0.00 % 0.00 Customer Deposit Acct
FIRST FINANCIAL BANK (XXXX3840) 0.00 % 0.00 Water Works

Totals for Utility Fund: $1,922,964.41

Grand total for  City of Montgomery: $7,215,750.47

4



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $909,555.04

Receipts
200.00

416,557.44
19,700.63

549.49
11,916.09

9.09
31,411.69
14,737.38
1,858.36
2,102.60

21,216.17
33,289.86
2,474.00

449.05
43.75

301,648.00
229,773.80
17,618.50
29,805.00

50.84
146,697.65
285,312.69

337.73
19,091.75
20,648.78
38,762.47

244.00
20,975.26

Bank Error - Reversal from October 2020
Sales Tax - November 2020
Transfer From Utility Fund Checking
Amt due from MEDC thru 11/19/2020
Transfer From Utility Fund Checking
Tax P&I CL 11/20
Tax Revenue CL10/20
Tax Rev OS  11/20
Tax Rev EOM  11/20
Court Rev OS 11/20
Court Revenue CL 11/20
Miscellaneous Revenue CL 11/30/20
Miscellaneous Revenue OS 11/30/20
Centerpoint Energy payment 11/2020
Interest
HOME Grant - Texas Dept of Housing and Community Affairs 
Sales Tax - December 2020
Transfer From Utility Fund Checking
HOME Grant - Texas Dept of Housing and Community Affairs 
Interest
Tax Rev OS  12/20
Tax Revenue CL12/20
Tax P&I CL 12/20
Tax Rev OS  12/20
Tax Rev PID  12/20
Court Revenue CL 12/20
Court Rev OS 12/20
Miscellaneous Revenue CL 12/31/20
Miscellaneous Revenue OS 12/31/20 250.00

Total Receipts 1,667,732.07

Disbursements
30755 Daspit, Laurence F Payroll 11/06/20 (108.51)
30756 Amazon Capital Services Operating Supplies (245.93)
30757 Christian Brothers Automotive Repairs -  Public Works Vehicles - RO 2877 ; 3089 (101.25)
30758 City of Montgomery - Utility Fund /Water Usage @ Parks, City Hall, Com Center - Se (1,358.47)
30759 Coburn's Conroe Inc. 503747770 Operating Supp (1,752.96)
30760 Cody's Lawn Service LLC Mowing (5,540.00)
30761 Entergy Utilities per spreadsheet  10/20 (1,298.91)
30762 Home Depot Credit Services Acct # ***-9951    September Invoices (1,674.19)
30763 Jones & Carter, Inc Engineering Invoices - August & September 2020 (13,897.51)
30764 K & K Construction, Inc. Inv 20-6341 ; 20-6389 - 2.0 Sack Stabilized Sand Pic (175.20)
30765 Municipal Accounts & Consulting, L.P. Bookkeeping- Inv 66096  10/31/20 (4,685.00)
30766 Northwest Pest Patrol Acct-32791-Mosquito fogging / Inv#355017, 018, (580.00)
30767 Rick Hanna, CBO Inspections (4,500.00)
30768 Robert Rosenquist Municipal Court Judge - 10/20 (1,000.00)
30769 Sam's Club Acct #040241083268-7 (134.86)
30770 Sara Countryman Comm Bldg Deposit Refund (250.00)
30771 Tyler Technologies, Inc Inv 025-312351 Incode Court (3,803.11)
30772 UniFirst Holdings, Inc. Inv 8440920955 ; 0956 ; 1812 ; 1813 ; 2661 ; 2662 ; (453.66)

5



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Disbursements
30773 Verizon Wireless 521590387-00001 (48.25)
30774 OCS, Inc. Computers / Website - Inv 100036 (4,000.00)
30775 Optiquest Internet Services, Inc Computer Tech (197.00)
30776 All Traffic Solutions, Inc. Speed Trap - Invoice SIN026816 (15,585.00)
30777 Amazon Capital Services Operating Supplies (271.65)
30778 Christian Brothers Automotive Repairs -  Public Works Vehicles - RO 2279 ; 3249 (135.60)
30779 City of Conroe Acct#52035 - Fleet Service Maintenance Inv 01573 (100.93)
30780 Consolidated Communications 936-597-6434 Telephone Service 10/1-10/31/20 (1,256.56)
30781 Entergy Utilities per spreadsheet  10/20 (26.44)
30782 GALLS, LLC Ballistic Vests- Inv016659178 (1,058.35)
30783 Information Professionals, Inc. Subscription to eWorkOrders from 12/01/20- 11/ (2,220.00)
30784 Jim's Hardware Inc.   Acct #102 -Several Invoices  10/1-10/31/20 (831.54)
30785 Klogik LLC COPSync Fee - Invoice 7019692 (7,080.00)
30786 LDC CM100017 Gas    101 Plantersville  10/31/20 (54.15)
30787 Lone Star Products & Equipment, LLC Police Equipment Inv 31249 / 31250 - Installation (5,429.24)
30788 Milton Weinzettle Inv 225126 - Fabricated  Shovel & Rake Holders & (300.00)
30789 Montgomery County ESD #2 CPR Training - Staff - Invoice CPR102020 (520.00)
30790 Motorola Purchase of new Radios  Inv 16123734 (10,815.00)
30791 Nova Medical Centers Inv 1636790 (139.63)
30792 O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. 700907 - Invoices 1838-231655 - September 2020 (380.34)
30793 Optiquest Internet Services, Inc Computer Tech (220.00)
30794 Sterlington Medical Medical Operating Supplies - Invoice 20668 (6,550.00)
30795 Stowe's Collision Repair LLC Police -  Auto repairs  Inv 7386 ; 7443 ; 7426 ; 7494 (189.00)
30796 Texas Court Clerks Association Inv#02689 Membership renewal.Level:TCCA-Gulf (110.00)
30797 Texas Department of Motor Vehicles Vehicle Inspection Fees and Title Requirements  - (8.25)
30798 TML-IRP Contract# 6827 Insurance Premium November 202 (6,562.25)
30799 Tracker Products LLC Annual-"Cloud Based" CAL License Site 5c914578 (3,700.00)
30800 Tyler Technologies, Inc Inv 130-17153 Incode Police (5,190.00)
30801 Wex Bank Invoice 68050015 - October 2020 - Gas/Oil (2,066.84)
30802 George Hernandez Tuition Reimbursement agreement on file - George (482.00)
30803 Medical Air Services Association Monthly Membership for 8 Emergent Plus  Invoice (112.00)
30804 Daspit, Laurence F Payroll 11/20/20 (166.23)
30805 ABLE Glass Conroe Invoice 029158652 (31.50)
30806 Amazon Capital Services Operating Supplies (12.67)
30807 Card Service Center First Financial Credit Card Account XXXX 0869 -  (5,791.88)
30808 Coburn's Conroe Inc. 503786503 Operating Supp (109.56)
30809 Eagle Mountain Flag & Flagpole Invoice 8439 (97.87)
30810 Easley Enterprises of Texas, Inc. City Hall General Cleaning  10/20 (1,525.00)
30811 Entergy Acct # 140207580 / Inv#245005371087 (1,095.63)
30812 Gordon B. Dudley. Jr. Prosecutor 11/12/20 - 18:00 (450.00)
30813 Houston Chronicle INV 34034277 - Ordinance Hills of Town Creek Se (126.00)
30814 Iron Mountain Document Shredding DNBT571 (3.11)
30815 James Neill Com Bldg Deposit refund (150.00)
30816 McCoy's Building Supply Corporation Office Supplies - 10/31/2020 Invoices (170.50)
30817 Melissa Benner Com Bldg Deposit refund (125.00)
30818 Michael Shirley Court Prosecutor  11/12/2020 (450.00)
30819 OCS, Inc. Computers / Website - Inv 13529 (1,383.00)
30820 Personalized Communications, Inc. Answering Service Inv#18253-111120 (48.46)
30821 Rick Hanna, CBO Inspections (5,821.44)
30822 Solomon Electric, Inc. Inv 22405 - Replace Bad LED Wall Pack (338.00)
30823 UBEO LLC, Acct No. 124715  Inv #69082900  10/1-11/30/20 (4,100.30)
30824 Verizon Connect NWF, Inc OS000002270498 ; INVE0210874 10/1-10/31/20 (94.99)

6



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Disbursements
30825 Amazon Capital Services Operating Supplies (546.09)
30826 Anita Stevens Community Building Deposit Refund (150.00)
30827 Consolidated Communications 936-043-5910/0  11/11/20-12/03/2020 (124.42)
30828 K & K Construction, Inc. Inv 20-6869 - 2.0 Sack Stabilized Sand Picked Up - (91.25)
30829 OCS, Inc. Computers / Website - Inv 13540 (33.12)
30830 Daspit, Laurence F Payroll 12/04/20 (110.82)
30831 Amazon Capital Services Operating Supplies (222.95)
30832 Brannen's, Inc. Inv B994938-IN - Tools (99.95)
30833 City of Montgomery - Utility Fund /Water Usage @ Parks, City Hall, Com Center - Oc (1,077.21)
30834 Cody's Lawn Service LLC Mowing (5,540.00)
30835 Crown Paper and Chemical Inc. Supplies #137627 (273.96)
30836 Dataprose LLC Montgomery Planning & Zoning December  Inv 3 (169.44)
30837 Entergy Utilities per spreadsheet  11/20 (569.75)
30838 Jones & Carter, Inc Engineering Invoices - October 2020 (2,388.75)
30839 Kimberly Duckett Reimbursement of Expense - Supplies and Equipm (49.25)
30840 Kronbergs Flags & Flagpoles Operating Supplies - Invoice 144602 (216.00)
30841 OCS, Inc. Computers / Website - Inv 100352 (4,000.00)
30842 Optiquest Internet Services, Inc Computer Tech (198.16)
30843 Outdoor Equipment Outlet, Inc Tools - Inv 298363 (7.00)
30844 Rick Hanna, CBO Inspections (2,700.00)
30845 Robert Rosenquist Municipal Court Judge - 11/20 (1,000.00)
30846 Sam's Club Acct #040241083268-7 (73.10)
30847 UBEO, LLC Cust #MC50 - Overage 9/1-11/30/20 - Inv 11837 (309.63)
30848 Vulcan Materials Company Inv# 62209038 (198.52)
30849 TML-IRP Contract# 6827 Insurance Premium December 202 (5,199.35)
30850 Michael Shirley Court Prosecutor  12/03/2020 (450.00)
30851 Tyler Technologies, Inc Inv 025-316808a License Fees Incode (7,796.50)
30852 BMP Industrial Service LLC New Motor ; Mechanical Seal ; Balance Impeller - I (2,740.00)
30853 City of Conroe Acct#52035 - Fleet Service Maintenance Inv 01614 (3,932.76)
30854 Coburn's Conroe Inc. 503879337 Operating Supp (33.90)
30855 Entergy Utilities per spreadsheet  11/20 (839.04)
30856 Ger Nay Pest Control Pest control INV 94644 ; 94645 (212.00)
30857 Ginny Morrison Community Building Deposit Refund (150.00)
30858 GT Distributors, Inc Police - Inv 803387 (413.70)
30859 Guardian Alliance Technologies, Inc. Social Media Screening Services - Invoice 12968 ; 1 (80.00)
30860 Jim's Hardware Inc.   Acct #102 -Several Invoices  11/1-11/30/20 (594.17)
30861 Johnson Petrov LLP Legal Fees - September 2020 (4,002.43)
30862 Lake Creek Lion Band Christmas Parade Refund (50.00)
30863 LDC CM100017 Gas    101 Plantersville  11/30/20 (56.55)
30864 Medical Air Services Association Monthly Membership for 9 Emergent Plus  Invoice (126.00)
30865 Montgomery Central Appraisal District 1st Qtr Fees 2021 (2,367.22)
30866 Office Depot Business Credit Supplies 11/30/2020 (1,489.67)
30867 Perdue, Brandon, Fielder, Collins, & Mott Attorney fees for Collections-Fines and Fees -  10/ (2,051.37)
30868 R.A.D. Systems License Renewal - Ref # 21RCT 1222 (75.00)
30869 Reed Edelman Crisis Intervention Training - Reed Edelman (220.00)
30870 StopStick, Ltd. 9' Stop Stick Rack Kit - Red - Invoice 0019105-IN (1,441.00)
30871 Stowe's Collision Repair LLC Police -  Auto repairs  Inv 7487 (25.50)
30872 TCOLE Instructor Certification for G. Hernandez (35.00)
30873 Texas Department of Criminal Justice  Acct# C001035  Park Equipment, Grill, Bench, Fla (2,492.00)
30874 TransUnion Acct 300819 thru 11/30/20 (456.00)
30875 UniFirst Holdings, Inc. Inv 8440924426 ; 4427 ; 5307 ; 5308 ; 6287 ; 6288 ; (776.41)
30876 Verizon Wireless 521590387-00001 (48.25)

7



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Disbursements
30877 Wex Bank Invoice 68578370 - November 2020 - Gas/Oil (2,221.41)
30878 RM Quality Construction HOME Program - 905 MLK ; 519 Simonton ; 510 (29,805.00)
30879 ERS-Texas Social Security Program Acct 9291051 -  Annual Admin Fee 2021 (35.00)
30880 Daspit, Laurence F Payroll 12/18/20 (55.41)
30881 Amazon Capital Services Operating Supplies (93.88)
30882 Applied Concepts, Inc. Invoice 375701 (140.00)
30883 Christian Brothers Automotive Repairs - Police Vehicles - RO 3190 ; 3299 ; 3384 (587.99)
30884 Conroe Courier. 570514883 - H1807016- 02/27/2021 (26.00)
30885 Consolidated Communications 936-597-6434 Telephone Service 11/1-11/30/20 (1,253.80)
30886 Daniel B. Lawson Vehicle Tinting - Police Department (450.00)
30887 Easley Enterprises of Texas, Inc. City Hall General Cleaning  11/20 (775.00)
30888 Entergy Acct # 140207580 / Inv#215005655801 (1,107.18)
30889 McCoy's Building Supply Corporation Office Supplies - 11/30/2020 Invoices (194.43)
30890 Municode Municode - Meetings Subscription (1,200.00)
30891 O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. 700907 - Invoices 1838-245229 ; 7893 ; 9952 ; 5162 (230.18)
30892 Personalized Communications, Inc. Answering Service Inv#18253-120920 (86.35)
30893 Sales Revenue, Inc. Sales Tax Tracking Inv 3681  12/20 (1,400.00)
30894 Stowe's Collision Repair LLC Police -  Auto repairs  Inv 7767 (422.50)
30895 Stowe's Wrecker Service LLC Auto Repairs - Invoice 4417 (400.00)
30896 The Mail Stop Package ID - 181750 / 181983 (62.18)
30897 Tyler Technologies, Inc Inv 025-290160 Court / Utility Receipt Printer 2/1 (245.63)
30898 UBEO LLC, Acct No. 124715  Inv #70499111  12/1-12/31/20 (2,015.00)
30899 United States Treasury ID #74-2063592, form 941, Tax period 12/31/19 (82.45)
30900 Verizon Connect NWF, Inc Customer ID# PUBL005 - Invoice OSV000002297 (78.25)
30901 Amazon Capital Services Operating Supplies (20.11)
30902 Card Service Center First Financial Credit Card Account XXXX 0869 -  (4,605.07)
30903 Consolidated Communications 936-043-5910/0  12/11/20-01/03/2021 (125.51)
30904 Gordon B. Dudley. Jr. Prosecutor 12/17/20 - 18:00 (450.00)
30905 Jones & Carter, Inc Engineering Invoices - October / November 2020 (10,851.25)
30906 Perez Masonry Inv#402794 - Stone Wall Repair - Community Cent (2,500.00)
30907 Rick Hanna, CBO Inspections (6,347.20)
30908 Sales Revenue, Inc. Sales Tax Tracking Inv 3626 / 3734  11/20 ; 01/21 (2,800.00)
30909 Solomon Electric, Inc. Memory Park- Inv 22551 - Emergency Contact Box (1,175.00)
30910 Wex Bank Invoice 69110748 - November 2020 - Gas/Oil (2,313.20)
30911 Montgomery Area Chamber of Commerce Membership dues for 2021 Invoice# 3087 (125.00)
ACH EFTPS Payroll Taxes - November 2020 (266.64)
ACH Office of the Attorney General Child Support (1,205.54)
ACH EFTPS Payroll Taxes - November 2020 (17,333.04)
ACH TML-Health Health, Life  & AD&D Insurance Period 2020-11   (19,723.64)
ACH EFTPS Payroll Taxes - November 2020 (720.84)
ACH Office of the Attorney General Child Support (1,205.54)
ACH EFTPS Payroll Taxes - November 2020 (17,611.98)
ACH TMRS Retirement - November 2020 (18,614.02)
ACH TML-Health Health, Life  & AD&D Insurance Period 2020-12   (21,720.02)
ACH EFTPS Payroll Taxes - December 2020 (20,574.08)
ACH Office of the Attorney General Child Support (1,205.54)
ACH EFTPS Payroll Taxes - December (345.00)
ACH Office of the Attorney General Child Support (1,205.54)
ACH EFTPS Payroll Taxes - December 2020 (16,595.96)
ACH Aflac Aflac - December 2020 (592.59)
ACH Office of the Attorney General Child Support (1,205.54)
ACH EFTPS Payroll Taxes - December (17,587.48)

8



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Disbursements
ACH TMRS Retirement - December 2020 (29,362.84)
AL First Financial Bank Transfer to Hotel Occupancy Tax Checking (621.00)
AL First Financial Bank Transfer to Debt Service Checking (10,404.01)
AL First Financial Bank Transfer to Court Security Fund Checking (20.10)
AL First Financial Bank Transfer to Court Tech Fund Checking (28.75)
AL First Financial Bank Transfer to MEDC Fund Checking (100.00)
AL ETS Corporation ETS Corporation - Bank Fees to be transferred to (786.86)
AL First Financial Bank Sales Tax Revenue Transfer thru 12/11/20 (57,443.45)
AL First Financial Bank Transfer to Debt Service Checking (14,200.63)
AL First Financial Bank Transfer to Court Security Fund Checking (37.38)
AL First Financial Bank Transfer to Court Tech Fund Checking (49.83)
AL First Financial Bank Transfer to MEDC Fund Checking (125.00)
AL First Financial Bank Transfer to Police Asset Forfeiture (3,494.82)
AL ETS Corporation ETS Corporation - Bank Fees to be transferred to (675.92)
ALR First Financial Bank Reversal of Bank Error (400.00)
DD Salas, Francisco A. 40 Hour Vacation Cash Out (610.16)
DD Aguirre, Abel Payroll 11/06/20 (1,711.20)
DD Bauer, Timothy M Payroll 11/06/20 (2,026.56)
DD Belmares, Jose N. Payroll 11/06/20 (2,425.66)
DD Brown, Jackson A Payroll 11/06/20 (1,090.88)
DD Chambers, Albert E Payroll 11/06/20 (2,210.47)
DD Ciulla, Hailey N Payroll 11/06/20 (1,073.76)
DD Cooley, Diana M Payroll 11/06/20 (1,381.39)
DD Duckett, Kimberly T. Payroll 11/06/20 (1,749.16)
DD Goode, Kristen N Payroll 11/06/20 (1,341.61)
DD Graves, Nathaniel L. Payroll 11/06/20 (1,900.18)
DD Hensley, Kyle R Payroll 11/06/20 (1,652.27)
DD Hensley, Susan L Payroll 11/06/20 (2,141.41)
DD Hernandez, George J. Payroll 11/06/20 (1,666.65)
DD Kohl, Julie J Payroll 11/06/20 (368.47)
DD Kowarsch, Robert D Payroll 11/06/20 (36.94)
DD Lasky, Anthony R Payroll 11/06/20 (2,010.08)
DD Lozano, Daniel T Payroll 11/06/20 (1,819.17)
DD McCorquodale, David D. Payroll 11/06/20 (2,199.67)
DD McRae, Jacob I Payroll 11/06/20 (1,899.24)
DD Muckleroy, Micha D. Payroll 11/06/20 (2,011.93)
DD Rains, Eva S. Payroll 11/06/20 (226.26)
DD Ramirez, Juan C Payroll 11/06/20 (1,051.67)
DD Reed, Christy M Payroll 11/06/20 (1,017.70)
DD Saah, Lucille N. Payroll 11/06/20 (1,840.87)
DD Salas, Francisco A. Payroll 11/06/20 (1,342.38)
DD Solomon, Anthony D Payroll 11/06/20 (2,624.44)
DD Standifer, Eric L. Payroll 11/06/20 (1,721.37)
DD Thomas, Ryan A Payroll 11/06/20 (1,466.71)
DD Tramm, Richard J Payroll 11/06/20 (4,551.27)
DD Voytko, Michael L Payroll 11/06/20 (1,618.82)
DD Hensley, Susan L Payroll - 11/13/20 - Cash out 64 Hrs of Vacation (1,712.15)
DD Aguirre, Abel Payroll 11/20/20 (1,793.03)
DD Bauer, Timothy M Payroll 11/20/20 (1,795.18)
DD Belmares, Jose N. Payroll 11/20/20 (2,425.66)
DD Brown, Jackson A Payroll 11/20/20 (1,086.88)
DD Chambers, Albert E Payroll 11/20/20 (2,305.67)

9



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Disbursements
DD Ciulla, Hailey N Payroll 11/20/20 (1,073.76)
DD Cooley, Diana M Payroll 11/20/20 (1,381.39)
DD Duckett, Kimberly T. Payroll 11/20/20 (1,749.16)
DD Edelman, Reed D Payroll 11/20/20 (1,592.46)
DD Goode, Kristen N Payroll 11/20/20 (1,341.61)
DD Graves, Nathaniel L. Payroll 11/20/20 (1,840.06)
DD Hensley, Kyle R Payroll 11/20/20 (1,652.23)
DD Hensley, Susan L Payroll 11/20/20 (2,141.41)
DD Hernandez, George J. Payroll 11/20/20 (1,882.91)
DD Kohl, Julie J Payroll 11/20/20 (484.84)
DD Kowarsch, Robert D Payroll 11/20/20 (36.94)
DD Lasky, Anthony R Payroll 11/20/20 (2,010.07)
DD Lozano, Daniel T Payroll 11/20/20 (1,723.05)
DD McCorquodale, David D. Payroll 11/20/20 (2,199.67)
DD McRae, Jacob I Payroll 11/20/20 (1,502.57)
DD Muckleroy, Micha D. Payroll 11/20/20 (2,011.93)
DD Ramirez, Juan C Payroll 11/20/20 (1,047.67)
DD Reed, Christy M Payroll 11/20/20 (1,067.86)
DD Saah, Lucille N. Payroll 11/20/20 (1,726.83)
DD Salas, Francisco A. Payroll 11/20/20 (1,366.65)
DD Solomon, Anthony D Payroll 11/20/20 (2,624.44)
DD Standifer, Eric L. Payroll 11/20/20 (1,703.13)
DD Thomas, Ryan A Payroll 11/20/20 (1,466.71)
DD Tramm, Richard J Payroll 11/20/20 (4,325.00)
DD Voytko, Michael L Payroll 11/20/20 (1,530.79)
DD Aguirre, Abel Payroll 12/04/20 (2,219.98)
DD Bauer, Timothy M Payroll 12/04/20 (2,071.78)
DD Belmares, Jose N. Payroll 12/04/20 (2,753.26)
DD Brown, Jackson A Payroll 12/04/20 (1,148.23)
DD Chambers, Albert E Payroll 12/04/20 (2,241.62)
DD Ciulla, Hailey N Payroll 12/04/20 (1,073.76)
DD Cooley, Diana M Payroll 12/04/20 (1,432.42)
DD Duckett, Kimberly T. Payroll 12/04/20 (1,936.24)
DD Edelman, Reed D Payroll 12/04/20 (1,879.21)
DD Goode, Kristen N Payroll 12/04/20 (1,395.06)
DD Graves, Nathaniel L. Payroll 12/04/20 (2,628.99)
DD Hensley, Kyle R Payroll 12/04/20 (1,835.79)
DD Hensley, Susan L Payroll 12/04/20 (2,319.98)
DD Hernandez, George J. Payroll 12/04/20 (2,913.43)
DD Kohl, Julie J Payroll 12/04/20 (432.19)
DD Kowarsch, Robert D Payroll 12/04/20 (147.76)
DD Lasky, Anthony R Payroll 12/04/20 (2,010.08)
DD Lozano, Daniel T Payroll 12/04/20 (1,649.84)
DD McCorquodale, David D. Payroll 12/04/20 (2,250.44)
DD McRae, Jacob I Payroll 12/04/20 (2,361.36)
DD Muckleroy, Micha D. Payroll 12/04/20 (2,228.85)
DD Ramirez, Juan C Payroll 12/04/20 (1,051.67)
DD Reed, Christy M Payroll 12/04/20 (1,080.22)
DD Saah, Lucille N. Payroll 12/04/20 (1,853.12)
DD Salas, Francisco A. Payroll 12/04/20 (1,450.12)
DD Solomon, Anthony D Payroll 12/04/20 (2,653.58)
DD Standifer, Eric L. Payroll 12/04/20 (1,899.46)

10



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Disbursements
DD Thomas, Ryan A Payroll 12/04/20 (1,619.41)
DD Tramm, Richard J Payroll 12/04/20 (4,400.15)
DD Voytko, Michael L Payroll 12/04/20 (2,218.71)
DD Belmares, Jose N. 40 Hour Cash Out of Vacation (1,233.98)
DD Aguirre, Abel Payroll 12/18/20 (1,793.37)
DD Bauer, Timothy M Payroll 12/18/20 (1,519.60)
DD Belmares, Jose N. Payroll 12/18/20 (2,296.76)
DD Brown, Jackson A Payroll 12/18/20 (1,153.36)
DD Chambers, Albert E Payroll 12/18/20 (2,295.53)
DD Ciulla, Hailey N Payroll 12/18/20 (1,098.40)
DD Cooley, Diana M Payroll 12/18/20 (1,381.39)
DD Duckett, Kimberly T. Payroll 12/18/20 (1,749.16)
DD Edelman, Reed D Payroll 12/18/20 (1,541.10)
DD Goode, Kristen N Payroll 12/18/20 (1,469.85)
DD Graves, Nathaniel L. Payroll 12/18/20 (1,556.74)
DD Hensley, Kyle R Payroll 12/18/20 (1,661.66)
DD Hensley, Susan L Payroll 12/18/20 (2,122.12)
DD Hernandez, George J. Payroll 12/18/20 (1,641.32)
DD Kohl, Julie J Payroll 12/18/20 (434.97)
DD Kowarsch, Robert D Payroll 12/18/20 (147.76)
DD Lasky, Anthony R Payroll 12/18/20 (1,848.80)
DD Lozano, Daniel T Payroll 12/18/20 (1,852.53)
DD McCorquodale, David D. Payroll 12/18/20 (2,112.30)
DD McRae, Jacob I Payroll 12/18/20 (1,290.40)
DD Muckleroy, Micha D. Payroll 12/18/20 (2,006.80)
DD Rains, Eva S. Payroll 12/18/20 (55.41)
DD Ramirez, Juan C Payroll 12/18/20 (1,137.06)
DD Reed, Christy M Payroll 12/18/20 (1,074.67)
DD Saah, Lucille N. Payroll 12/18/20 (2,096.94)
DD Salas, Francisco A. Payroll 12/18/20 (1,859.48)
DD Solomon, Anthony D Payroll 12/18/20 (2,494.89)
DD Standifer, Eric L. Payroll 12/18/20 (1,695.13)
DD Thomas, Ryan A Payroll 12/18/20 (1,572.45)
DD Tramm, Richard J Payroll 12/18/20 (4,687.46)
DD Voytko, Michael L Payroll 12/18/20 (1,395.70)
DD Aguirre, Abel Payroll 12/31/20 (2,099.59)
DD Bauer, Timothy M Payroll 12/31/20 (1,904.89)
DD Belmares, Jose N. Payroll 12/31/20 (2,296.76)
DD Brown, Jackson A Payroll 12/31/20 (1,086.53)
DD Chambers, Albert E Payroll 12/31/20 (2,321.14)
DD Ciulla, Hailey N Payroll 12/31/20 (1,065.84)
DD Cooley, Diana M Payroll 12/31/20 (1,381.39)
DD Duckett, Kimberly T. Payroll 12/31/20 (1,749.16)
DD Edelman, Reed D Payroll 12/31/20 (1,779.72)
DD Goode, Kristen N Payroll 12/31/20 (1,409.98)
DD Graves, Nathaniel L. Payroll 12/31/20 (2,127.04)
DD Hensley, Kyle R Payroll 12/31/20 (1,924.95)
DD Hensley, Susan L Payroll 12/31/20 (2,122.12)
DD Hernandez, George J. Payroll 12/31/20 (1,996.10)
DD Kohl, Julie J Payroll 12/31/20 (393.41)
DD Kowarsch, Robert D Payroll 12/31/20 (184.70)
DD Lasky, Anthony R Payroll 12/31/20 (1,964.07)

11



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Disbursements
DD Lozano, Daniel T Payroll 12/31/20 (1,651.27)
DD McCorquodale, David D. Payroll 12/31/20 (2,112.30)
DD McRae, Jacob I Payroll 12/31/20 (1,876.78)
DD Muckleroy, Micha D. Payroll 12/31/20 (2,108.60)
DD Ramirez, Juan C Payroll 12/31/20 (1,100.67)
DD Reed, Christy M Payroll 12/31/20 (1,187.58)
DD Saah, Lucille N. Payroll 12/31/20 (2,134.95)
DD Salas, Francisco A. Payroll 12/31/20 (1,342.38)
DD Solomon, Anthony D Payroll 12/31/20 (2,494.89)
DD Standifer, Eric L. Payroll 12/31/20 (1,695.13)
DD Thomas, Ryan A Payroll 12/31/20 (1,466.71)
DD Tramm, Richard J Payroll 12/31/20 (4,687.46)
DD Voytko, Michael L Payroll 12/31/20 (1,690.82)
Total Disbursements (813,518.26)

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $1,763,768.85

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX7375
12



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Police Drug & Misc Fund Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $10,675.64

Receipts
No Receipts Activity 0.00

Total Receipts 0.00

Disbursements
No Disbursements Activity 0.00

Total Disbursements 0.00

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $10,675.64

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX5675
13



City of Montgomery - General

Cash Flow Report - Home Grant / COPS Universal Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $10.00

Receipts
No Receipts Activity 0.00

Total Receipts 0.00

Disbursements
No Disbursements Activity 0.00

Total Disbursements 0.00

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $10.00

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX2895
14



Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

14000.1 · Taxes & Franchise Fees
14103 · Beverage Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,634.48 7,500.00 -2,865.52 31,000.00
14111 · Franchise Tax 2,671.74 1,000.00 1,671.74 2,671.74 2,000.00 671.74 94,000.00
14320 · Ad Valorem Taxes

14320.1 · PID Tax Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38,815.00
14320 · Ad Valorem Taxes - Other 33,805.69 10,000.00 23,805.69 48,084.64 12,500.00 35,584.64 847,070.00

Total 14320 · Ad Valorem Taxes 33,805.69 10,000.00 23,805.69 48,084.64 12,500.00 35,584.64 885,885.00

14330 · Penalties & Interest on Adv Tax 9.09 416.67 -407.58 1,394.03 833.30 560.73 5,000.00
14331 · Rendition Penalties 1.11 8.33 -7.22 1.11 16.70 -15.59 100.00
14600 · Sales Tax

14600.1 · Sales Tax ILO AdValorem Tax 104,139.36 87,500.00 16,639.36 161,118.75 137,500.00 23,618.75 750,000.00
14600 · Sales Tax - Other 208,278.72 175,000.00 33,278.72 322,237.49 275,000.00 47,237.49 1,500,000.00

Total 14600 · Sales Tax 312,418.08 262,500.00 49,918.08 483,356.24 412,500.00 70,856.24 2,250,000.00

Total 14000.1 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 348,905.71 273,925.00 74,980.71 540,142.24 435,350.00 104,792.24 3,265,985.00

14000.2 · Permits & Licenses
14105 · Building Permits/MEP 22,916.00 20,416.67 2,499.33 36,573.00 40,833.30 -4,260.30 245,000.00
14146 · Vendor/Beverage Permits 20.00 50.00 -30.00 80.00 100.00 -20.00 600.00
14611 · Sign Fee 150.00 166.67 -16.67 150.00 333.30 -183.30 2,000.00
14612 · Misc Permit Fees(plats,& Zoning 725.00 750.00 -25.00 775.00 1,500.00 -725.00 9,000.00

Total 14000.2 · Permits & Licenses 23,811.00 21,383.34 2,427.66 37,578.00 42,766.60 -5,188.60 256,600.00

14000.4 · Fees for Service
14380 · Community Bldg Rental 450.00 250.00 200.00 900.00 500.00 400.00 3,000.00
14385 · Right of Way Use Fees 1,569.35 666.67 902.68 1,569.35 1,333.30 236.05 8,000.00

Total 14000.4 · Fees for Service 2,019.35 916.67 1,102.68 2,469.35 1,833.30 636.05 11,000.00

14000.5 · Court Fines & Forfeitures
14101 · Collection Fees 763.25 1,166.67 -403.42 1,182.34 2,333.30 -1,150.96 14,000.00
14102 · Asset Fortfeitures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
14106 · Child Belt/Safety (Dedicated) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
14110 · Fines 22,410.11 22,916.67 -506.56 47,089.28 45,833.30 1,255.98 275,000.00
14118 · OMNI 50.72 133.33 -82.61 84.59 266.70 -182.11 1,600.00
14125 · Warrant Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00
14126 · Judicial Efficiency (Dedicated) 7.48 58.33 -50.85 11.50 116.70 -105.20 700.00
14130 · Accident Reports 0.00 41.67 -41.67 18.00 83.30 -65.30 500.00

Total 14000.5 · Court Fines & Forfeitures 23,231.56 24,316.67 -1,085.11 48,385.71 48,633.30 -247.59 292,450.00

14000.6 · Other Revenues
14199 · Leose Funds - PD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00
14200 · Christmas Parade Revenues 1,105.00 1,355.00

2:51 PM City of Montgomery - General Fund
01/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis November 2020

Page 1
15



Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

15380 · Unanticipated Income 186.00 1,083.33 -897.33 3,700.54 2,166.70 1,533.84 13,000.00

15391 · Interest Income 43.75 41.67 2.08 90.57 83.30 7.27 500.00
15392 · Interest on Investments 30.86 416.67 -385.81 72.44 833.30 -760.86 5,000.00

Total 14000.6 · Other Revenues 1,365.61 1,541.67 -176.06 5,218.55 3,083.30 2,135.25 19,700.00

15393 · Grant Revenue - Police 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00
15395 · HOME Grant Revenue 301,648.00 301,648.00

Total Income 700,981.23 322,083.35 378,897.88 935,441.85 531,666.50 403,775.35 3,851,735.00

Gross Profit 700,981.23 322,083.35 378,897.88 935,441.85 531,666.50 403,775.35 3,851,735.00

Expense
16000 · Personnel

16353.1 · Health Ins. 14,477.45 15,416.67 -939.22 30,467.05 30,833.30 -366.25 185,000.00
16353.4 · Unemployment Ins. 0.00 325.00 -325.00 0.00 650.00 -650.00 3,900.00
16353.5 · Workers Comp. 1,981.69 2,958.34 -976.65 3,963.38 5,916.60 -1,953.22 35,500.00
16353.6 · Dental & Vision Insurance 1,321.91 1,441.67 -119.76 2,760.42 2,883.30 -122.88 17,300.00
16353.7 · Life & AD&D Insurance 285.51 308.33 -22.82 602.74 616.70 -13.96 3,700.00
16353.8 · Crime-Ins 40.71 50.00 -9.29 81.42 100.00 -18.58 600.00
16560 · Payroll Taxes 9,516.20 11,250.00 -1,733.80 18,354.44 22,500.00 -4,145.56 135,000.00
16600 · Wages 115,217.27 125,445.00 -10,227.73 225,041.42 250,890.00 -25,848.58 1,505,340.00
16600.1 · Overtime 7,849.19 3,750.00 4,099.19 12,059.89 7,500.00 4,559.89 45,000.00
16620 · Retirement Expense 7,407.54 7,916.66 -509.12 14,205.51 15,833.40 -1,627.89 95,000.00

Total 16000 · Personnel 158,097.47 168,861.67 -10,764.20 307,536.27 337,723.30 -30,187.03 2,026,340.00

16001 · Communications
16338 · Advertising/Promotion

16338.1 · Legal Notices and Pub 0.00 541.67 -541.67 0.00 1,083.30 -1,083.30 6,500.00
16338.2 · Recording Fees 0.00 208.33 -208.33 54.00 416.70 -362.70 2,500.00
16338 · Advertising/Promotion - Other 0.00 208.34 -208.34 0.00 416.60 -416.60 2,500.00

Total 16338 · Advertising/Promotion 0.00 958.34 -958.34 54.00 1,916.60 -1,862.60 11,500.00

Total 16001 · Communications 0.00 958.34 -958.34 54.00 1,916.60 -1,862.60 11,500.00

16002 · Contract Services
16102 · General Consultant Fees

16102.1 · Sales Tax Tracking 1,400.00 583.33 816.67 2,800.00 1,166.70 1,633.30 7,000.00
16102 · General Consultant Fees - Other 4,034.11 1,166.67 2,867.44 4,259.11 2,333.30 1,925.81 14,000.00

Total 16102 · General Consultant Fees 5,434.11 1,750.00 3,684.11 7,059.11 3,500.00 3,559.11 21,000.00

16220 · Omni Expense 0.00 208.33 -208.33 570.00 416.70 153.30 2,500.00
16242 · Prosecutors Fees 900.00 833.33 66.67 1,350.00 1,666.70 -316.70 10,000.00
16280 · Mowing 5,540.00 10,181.82 -4,641.82 11,080.00 20,363.64 -9,283.64 112,000.00
16281 · Records Shredding 0.00 104.17 -104.17 3.11 208.30 -205.19 1,250.00
16299 · Inspections/Permits/Backflow Ex 8,521.44 16,041.67 -7,520.23 17,623.51 32,083.30 -14,459.79 192,500.00

2:51 PM City of Montgomery - General Fund
01/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis November 2020

Page 2
16



Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

16310 · Judge's Fee 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 12,000.00
16320 · Legal 0.00 2,708.33 -2,708.33 0.00 5,416.70 -5,416.70 32,500.00

16321 · Audit Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00
16322 · Engineering 0.00 8,500.00 -8,500.00 9,152.50 17,000.00 -7,847.50 102,000.00

16326 · Collection Agency Fees 0.00 1,250.00 -1,250.00 2,051.37 2,500.00 -448.63 15,000.00
16333 · Accounting Fees 0.00 4,166.67 -4,166.67 4,685.00 8,333.30 -3,648.30 50,000.00
16335 · Repairs & Maintenance

16332 · Downtown Repairs 154.91 0.00 154.91 154.91 0.00 154.91 500.00
16335.1 · Maintenance - Vehicles & Equip

16334 · Gas/Oil 4,534.61 3,354.16 1,180.45 7,089.10 6,708.40 380.70 40,250.00
16343 · Tractor & Mower 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
16357 · Auto Repairs 5,070.17 1,916.67 3,153.50 5,848.03 3,833.30 2,014.73 23,000.00
16373 · Equipment repairs 12.77 563.42 -550.65 612.42 1,126.80 -514.38 6,761.00
16374 · Building Repairs-City Hall/Comm -1,851.23 1,387.33 -3,238.56 -1,301.27 2,774.70 -4,075.97 16,648.00
16375 · Street Repairs - Minor

16375.1 · Streets-Preventive Maintenance 0.00 416.67 -416.67 0.00 833.30 -833.30 5,000.00
16375 · Street Repairs - Minor - Other 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 404.89 3,000.00 -2,595.11 18,000.00

Total 16375 · Street Repairs - Minor 0.00 1,916.67 -1,916.67 404.89 3,833.30 -3,428.41 23,000.00

16335.1 · Maintenance - Vehicles & Equip - Oth... 210.23 250.00 -39.77 587.91 500.00 87.91 3,000.00

Total 16335.1 · Maintenance - Vehicles & Equip 7,976.55 9,388.25 -1,411.70 13,241.08 18,776.50 -5,535.42 113,159.00

16335.3 · City Hall Cleaning - COVID 19 0.00 750.00
16335 · Repairs & Maintenance - Other 775.00 858.33 -83.33 1,550.00 1,716.70 -166.70 10,300.00

Total 16335 · Repairs & Maintenance 8,906.46 10,246.58 -1,340.12 15,695.99 20,493.20 -4,797.21 123,959.00

16335.2 · Mosquito Spraying 0.00 458.33 -458.33 580.00 916.70 -336.70 5,500.00
16337 · Street Signs 41.74 143.75 -102.01 41.74 287.50 -245.76 1,725.00
16340 · Printing & Office supplies 1,301.92 725.00 576.92 1,401.90 1,450.00 -48.10 8,700.00

16342 · Computers/Website 0.00 1,393.33 -1,393.33 760.00 2,786.70 -2,026.70 16,720.00
16350 · Postage/Delivery 62.18 437.51 -375.33 960.53 874.90 85.63 5,250.00
16351 · Telephone 2,377.33 2,291.67 85.66 4,766.09 4,583.30 182.79 27,500.00
16360 · Tax Assessor Fees 2,367.22 0.00 2,367.22 2,842.22 1,875.00 967.22 7,500.00
16370 · Election 526.50 1,333.33 -806.83 526.50 2,666.70 -2,140.20 16,000.00
17030 · Mobil Data Terminal 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 12,000.00
17040 · Computer/Technology

17040.1 · COVID-19 Computer Tech 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.00 400.00 -400.00 2,400.00
17040 · Computer/Technology - Other 4,712.39 2,975.00 1,737.39 12,867.93 5,950.00 6,917.93 35,700.00

Total 17040 · Computer/Technology 4,712.39 3,175.00 1,537.39 12,867.93 6,350.00 6,517.93 38,100.00

17510 · State Portion of Fines/Payouts 0.00 11,458.33 -11,458.33 0.00 22,916.70 -22,916.70 137,500.00
16002 · Contract Services - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00

2:51 PM City of Montgomery - General Fund
01/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis November 2020

Page 3
17



Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Total 16002 · Contract Services 41,691.29 79,407.15 -37,715.86 96,017.50 160,689.34 -64,671.84 976,704.00

16003 · Supplies & Equipment
16244 · Radio Fees 0.00 433.33 -433.33 0.00 866.70 -866.70 5,200.00
16328 · Uniforms & Safety Equip 633.11 1,041.66 -408.55 936.85 2,083.40 -1,146.55 12,500.00
16328.1 · Protective Gear 0.00 583.33 -583.33 0.00 1,166.70 -1,166.70 7,000.00
16358 · Copier/Fax Machine Lease 2,324.63 1,708.33 616.30 4,409.93 3,416.70 993.23 20,500.00
16460 · Operating Supplies (Office)

16460.1 · Streets and Drainage 289.77 190.25 99.52 2,693.59 380.50 2,313.09 2,283.00
16460.2 · Cedar Brake Park 35.33 66.25 -30.92 35.33 132.50 -97.17 795.00
16460.3 · Homecoming Park 35.33 7.92 27.41 35.33 15.80 19.53 95.00
16460.4 · Fernland Park 0.00 33.25 -33.25 79.97 66.50 13.47 399.00
16460.5 · Community Building 35.34 107.92 -72.58 35.34 215.80 -180.46 1,295.00
16460.6 · Tools, Etc 163.77 108.33 55.44 496.85 216.70 280.15 1,300.00
16460.7 · Memory Park 0.00 107.92 -107.92 0.00 215.80 -215.80 1,295.00
16460 · Operating Supplies (Office) - Other 1,726.07 1,800.00 -73.93 4,839.89 3,600.00 1,239.89 21,600.00

Total 16460 · Operating Supplies (Office) 2,285.61 2,421.84 -136.23 8,216.30 4,843.60 3,372.70 29,062.00

16503 · Code Enforcement Expenses 0.00 83.33 -83.33 0.00 166.70 -166.70 1,000.00
17010 · Emergency Equipment 1,490.20 1,125.00 365.20 8,158.14 2,250.00 5,908.14 13,500.00
17100 · Capital Purchase Furniture 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00
16003 · Supplies & Equipment - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00

Total 16003 · Supplies & Equipment 6,733.55 7,396.82 -663.27 21,721.22 14,793.80 6,927.42 92,262.00

16004 · Staff Development
16339 · Dues & Subscriptions 43.25 729.17 -685.92 299.25 1,458.30 -1,159.05 8,750.00
16341 · Community Relations 142.87 547.09 -404.22 160.07 1,094.10 -934.03 6,565.00
16354 · Travel & Training (Travel) 1,634.26 3,378.34 -1,744.08 3,647.22 6,756.60 -3,109.38 40,540.00
16004 · Staff Development - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

Total 16004 · Staff Development 1,820.38 4,654.60 -2,834.22 4,106.54 9,309.00 -5,202.46 55,955.00

16005 · Maintenance
16228 · Park Maint-Memory Pk 0.00 416.67 -416.67 2,741.79 833.30 1,908.49 5,000.00
16229 · Park Maint - Fernland 42.79 333.33 -290.54 88.04 666.70 -578.66 4,000.00
16230 · Park Maint-Cedar Brake Park 110.86 500.00 -389.14 2,773.77 1,000.00 1,773.77 6,000.00
16231 · Park Maint. - Homecoming Park 441.20 83.33 357.87 457.86 166.70 291.16 1,000.00

Total 16005 · Maintenance 594.85 1,333.33 -738.48 6,061.46 2,666.70 3,394.76 16,000.00

16006 · Insurance
16353.2 · Liability Ins. 3,691.78 1,973.33 1,718.45 6,309.11 3,946.70 2,362.41 23,680.00
16353.3 · Property Ins. 848.07 1,046.26 -198.19 1,249.04 2,092.40 -843.36 12,555.00
16353.9 · Insurance Bond 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00

Total 16006 · Insurance 4,539.85 3,019.59 1,520.26 7,558.15 6,039.10 1,519.05 36,735.00

16007 · Utilities

2:51 PM City of Montgomery - General Fund
01/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis November 2020

Page 4
18



Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

16352.0 · Electronic Sign-City 64.00 83.33 -19.33 123.58 166.70 -43.12 1,000.00
16352.1 · Street Lights 1,107.18 1,000.00 107.18 2,202.81 2,000.00 202.81 12,000.00
16352.2 · Downtown Utilities 106.59 100.00 6.59 207.14 200.00 7.14 1,200.00
16352.3 · Utilities-Cedar Brake Park 143.93 183.33 -39.40 304.98 366.70 -61.72 2,200.00
16352.4 · Utilities-Homecoming Park 109.76 108.33 1.43 220.21 216.70 3.51 1,300.00
16352.5 · Utilities-Fernland Park 394.22 375.00 19.22 700.09 750.00 -49.91 4,500.00
16352.6 · Utilities - City Hall 775.94 875.00 -99.06 1,781.31 1,750.00 31.31 10,500.00
16352.8 · Utilities - Comm Center Bldg 313.34 358.33 -44.99 600.51 716.70 -116.19 4,300.00
16352.9 · Utilities-Memory Pk 105.80 666.67 -560.87 510.71 1,333.30 -822.59 8,000.00

Total 16007 · Utilities 3,120.76 3,749.99 -629.23 6,651.34 7,500.10 -848.76 45,000.00

16008 · Capital Outlay
17070 · Capital Outlay - Police Cars

17070.1 · Emergency Lights, Decals 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 6,000.00
17070.4 · Tsf To CPF-Vehicle Replacement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00
17070 · Capital Outlay - Police Cars - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 -101.74 0.00 -101.74 0.00

Total 17070 · Capital Outlay - Police Cars 0.00 500.00 -500.00 -101.74 1,000.00 -1,101.74 21,000.00

17071 · Cap Purchase - Computers/Eqip
17071.1 · Copsync 7,080.00 0.00 7,080.00 12,509.24 5,500.00 7,009.24 14,933.00
17071.2 · Radar 140.00 416.67 -276.67 140.00 833.30 -693.30 5,000.00
17071.4 · Laserfiche (Software) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,503.00
17071.6 · Investigative and Testing Equip 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,700.00 3,700.00 0.00 4,000.00
17071.7 · Ballistic Vests & Shields 0.00 250.00 -250.00 1,058.35 500.00 558.35 3,000.00
17071 · Cap Purchase - Computers/Eqip - Other 0.00 1,625.00 -1,625.00 0.00 3,250.00 -3,250.00 19,500.00

Total 17071 · Cap Purchase - Computers/Eqip 7,220.00 2,291.67 4,928.33 17,407.59 13,783.30 3,624.29 52,936.00

17071.5 · Patrol Weapons 413.70 583.33 -169.63 413.70 1,166.70 -753.00 7,000.00
17071.B · Office Maintenance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00
17081 · Cap Outlay-Drainage Improvement 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.00 500.00 -500.00 3,000.00

Total 16008 · Capital Outlay 7,633.70 3,625.00 4,008.70 17,719.55 16,450.00 1,269.55 91,936.00

16009 · Miscellaneous Expenses
16590 · Misc. Expense

16590.4 · Tsf to CPF - Infr Inv (43949.3) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46,700.00
16590.6 · Transfer to Surplus 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 34,100.00
16590.7 · Tsf to CPF -Mob Inv (43949.4) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00
16590.8 · Light up the Park Expenses 358.96 358.96
16590 · Misc. Expense - Other 571.79 249.99 321.80 1,660.01 500.10 1,159.91 3,000.00

Total 16590 · Misc. Expense 930.75 249.99 680.76 2,018.97 500.10 1,518.87 93,800.00

16009 · Miscellaneous Expenses - Other 0.00 5,000.00

Total 16009 · Miscellaneous Expenses 930.75 249.99 680.76 7,018.97 500.10 6,518.87 93,800.00

16356 · Contract Labor- Streets 0.00 7,500.00 -7,500.00 0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 90,000.00

2:51 PM City of Montgomery - General Fund
01/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis November 2020

Page 5
19



Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

16500 · Leases - Parks and Recreation
16504 · Adams Park 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00

Total 16500 · Leases - Parks and Recreation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00

16550 · HOME Grant Expense 29,805.00 325,050.00
17500 · Tax Rebatement

17500.1 · Sales Tax Rebate 17,243.75 17,243.75 0.00 34,487.50 34,487.50 0.00 206,925.00
17500.2 · 380 Ad Valorem Tax Rebate 9,480.25 9,480.25 0.00 18,960.50 18,960.50 0.00 113,763.00
17500.3 · PID Property Tax Reimbursement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38,815.00

Total 17500 · Tax Rebatement 26,724.00 26,724.00 0.00 53,448.00 53,448.00 0.00 359,503.00

Total Expense 281,691.60 307,480.48 -25,788.88 852,943.00 626,036.04 226,906.96 3,901,735.00

Net Ordinary Income 419,289.63 14,602.87 404,686.76 82,498.85 -94,369.54 176,868.39 -50,000.00

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

14000.3 · Transfers In
14620.2 · Admin Transfer from MEDC 3,958.33 3,958.33 0.00 7,916.66 7,916.66 0.00 47,500.00
14620.4 · Admin Trf from Court Security 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00

Total 14000.3 · Transfers In 3,958.33 3,958.33 0.00 7,916.66 7,916.66 0.00 50,000.00

Total Other Income 3,958.33 3,958.33 0.00 7,916.66 7,916.66 0.00 50,000.00

Net Other Income 3,958.33 3,958.33 0.00 7,916.66 7,916.66 0.00 50,000.00

Net Income 423,247.96 18,561.20 404,686.76 90,415.51 -86,452.88 176,868.39 0.00

2:51 PM City of Montgomery - General Fund
01/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis November 2020

Page 6
20



Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

14000.1 · Taxes & Franchise Fees
14103 · Beverage Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,634.48 7,500.00 -2,865.52 31,000.00
14111 · Franchise Tax 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 2,671.74 5,000.00 -2,328.26 94,000.00
14320 · Ad Valorem Taxes

14320.1 · PID Tax Revenue 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 38,815.00
14320 · Ad Valorem Taxes - Other 336,684.81 250,000.00 86,684.81 384,769.45 262,500.00 122,269.45 847,070.00

Total 14320 · Ad Valorem Taxes 336,684.81 270,000.00 66,684.81 384,769.45 282,500.00 102,269.45 885,885.00

14330 · Penalties & Interest on Adv Tax 177.15 416.67 -239.52 1,571.18 1,249.97 321.21 5,000.00
14331 · Rendition Penalties 4.70 8.33 -3.63 5.81 25.03 -19.22 100.00
14600 · Sales Tax

14600.1 · Sales Tax ILO AdValorem Tax 57,443.45 50,000.00 7,443.45 218,562.20 187,500.00 31,062.20 750,000.00
14600 · Sales Tax - Other 114,886.90 100,000.00 14,886.90 437,124.39 375,000.00 62,124.39 1,500,000.00

Total 14600 · Sales Tax 172,330.35 150,000.00 22,330.35 655,686.59 562,500.00 93,186.59 2,250,000.00

Total 14000.1 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 509,197.01 423,425.00 85,772.01 1,049,339.25 858,775.00 190,564.25 3,265,985.00

14000.2 · Permits & Licenses
14105 · Building Permits/MEP 15,417.00 20,416.67 -4,999.67 51,990.00 61,249.97 -9,259.97 245,000.00
14146 · Vendor/Beverage Permits 0.00 50.00 -50.00 80.00 150.00 -70.00 600.00
14611 · Sign Fee 0.00 166.67 -166.67 150.00 499.97 -349.97 2,000.00
14612 · Misc Permit Fees(plats,& Zoning 210.00 750.00 -540.00 985.00 2,250.00 -1,265.00 9,000.00

Total 14000.2 · Permits & Licenses 15,627.00 21,383.34 -5,756.34 53,205.00 64,149.94 -10,944.94 256,600.00

14000.4 · Fees for Service
14380 · Community Bldg Rental 300.00 250.00 50.00 1,200.00 750.00 450.00 3,000.00
14385 · Right of Way Use Fees 2.26 666.67 -664.41 1,571.61 1,999.97 -428.36 8,000.00

Total 14000.4 · Fees for Service 302.26 916.67 -614.41 2,771.61 2,749.97 21.64 11,000.00

14000.5 · Court Fines & Forfeitures
14101 · Collection Fees 587.83 1,166.67 -578.84 1,770.17 3,499.97 -1,729.80 14,000.00
14102 · Asset Fortfeitures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
14106 · Child Belt/Safety (Dedicated) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
14110 · Fines 38,343.20 22,916.67 15,426.53 85,432.48 68,749.97 16,682.51 275,000.00
14118 · OMNI 25.33 133.33 -108.00 109.92 400.03 -290.11 1,600.00
14125 · Warrant Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00
14126 · Judicial Efficiency (Dedicated) 3.95 58.33 -54.38 15.45 175.03 -159.58 700.00
14130 · Accident Reports 36.00 41.67 -5.67 54.00 124.97 -70.97 500.00

Total 14000.5 · Court Fines & Forfeitures 38,996.31 24,316.67 14,679.64 87,382.02 72,949.97 14,432.05 292,450.00

14000.6 · Other Revenues
14199 · Leose Funds - PD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00
14200 · Christmas Parade Revenues 50.00 1,405.00

2:50 PM City of Montgomery - General Fund
01/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis December 2020

Page 1
21



Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

14201 · Light up the Park Revenues 250.00 250.00
15380 · Unanticipated Income 110.00 1,083.33 -973.33 3,810.54 3,250.03 560.51 13,000.00

15391 · Interest Income 50.84 41.67 9.17 141.41 124.97 16.44 500.00
15392 · Interest on Investments 20.67 416.67 -396.00 93.11 1,249.97 -1,156.86 5,000.00

Total 14000.6 · Other Revenues 481.51 1,541.67 -1,060.16 5,700.06 4,624.97 1,075.09 19,700.00

15393 · Grant Revenue - Police 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00
15395 · HOME Grant Revenue 29,805.00 331,453.00

Total Income 594,409.09 471,583.35 122,825.74 1,529,850.94 1,003,249.85 526,601.09 3,851,735.00

Gross Profit 594,409.09 471,583.35 122,825.74 1,529,850.94 1,003,249.85 526,601.09 3,851,735.00

Expense
16000 · Personnel

16353.1 · Health Ins. 16,177.68 15,416.67 761.01 46,644.73 46,249.97 394.76 185,000.00
16353.4 · Unemployment Ins. 0.00 325.00 -325.00 0.00 975.00 -975.00 3,900.00
16353.5 · Workers Comp. 1,981.69 2,958.34 -976.65 5,945.07 8,874.94 -2,929.87 35,500.00
16353.6 · Dental & Vision Insurance 1,461.83 1,441.67 20.16 4,222.25 4,324.97 -102.72 17,300.00
16353.7 · Life & AD&D Insurance 373.08 308.33 64.75 975.82 925.03 50.79 3,700.00
16353.8 · Crime-Ins 40.71 50.00 -9.29 122.13 150.00 -27.87 600.00
16560 · Payroll Taxes 19,376.77 11,250.00 8,126.77 37,731.21 33,750.00 3,981.21 135,000.00
16600 · Wages 173,909.45 125,445.00 48,464.45 398,950.87 376,335.00 22,615.87 1,505,340.00
16600.1 · Overtime 13,003.51 3,750.00 9,253.51 25,063.40 11,250.00 13,813.40 45,000.00
16620 · Retirement Expense 11,745.42 7,916.66 3,828.76 25,950.93 23,750.06 2,200.87 95,000.00

Total 16000 · Personnel 238,070.14 168,861.67 69,208.47 545,606.41 506,584.97 39,021.44 2,026,340.00

16001 · Communications
16338 · Advertising/Promotion

16338.1 · Legal Notices and Pub 0.00 541.67 -541.67 0.00 1,624.97 -1,624.97 6,500.00
16338.2 · Recording Fees 0.00 208.33 -208.33 54.00 625.03 -571.03 2,500.00
16338 · Advertising/Promotion - Other 0.00 208.34 -208.34 0.00 624.94 -624.94 2,500.00

Total 16338 · Advertising/Promotion 0.00 958.34 -958.34 54.00 2,874.94 -2,820.94 11,500.00

Total 16001 · Communications 0.00 958.34 -958.34 54.00 2,874.94 -2,820.94 11,500.00

16002 · Contract Services
16102 · General Consultant Fees

16102.1 · Sales Tax Tracking 1,400.00 583.33 816.67 4,200.00 1,750.03 2,449.97 7,000.00
16102 · General Consultant Fees - Other 225.00 1,166.67 -941.67 4,484.11 3,499.97 984.14 14,000.00

Total 16102 · General Consultant Fees 1,625.00 1,750.00 -125.00 8,684.11 5,250.00 3,434.11 21,000.00

16220 · Omni Expense 0.00 208.33 -208.33 570.00 625.03 -55.03 2,500.00
16242 · Prosecutors Fees 900.00 833.33 66.67 2,250.00 2,500.03 -250.03 10,000.00
16280 · Mowing 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,080.00 20,363.64 -9,283.64 112,000.00
16281 · Records Shredding 110.19 104.17 6.02 113.30 312.47 -199.17 1,250.00

2:50 PM City of Montgomery - General Fund
01/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis December 2020

Page 2
22



Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

16299 · Inspections/Permits/Backflow Ex 12,240.79 16,041.67 -3,800.88 29,864.30 48,124.97 -18,260.67 192,500.00
16310 · Judge's Fee 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 12,000.00
16320 · Legal 0.00 2,708.33 -2,708.33 0.00 8,125.03 -8,125.03 32,500.00

16321 · Audit Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00
16322 · Engineering 0.00 8,500.00 -8,500.00 9,152.50 25,500.00 -16,347.50 102,000.00

16326 · Collection Agency Fees 0.00 1,250.00 -1,250.00 2,051.37 3,750.00 -1,698.63 15,000.00
16333 · Accounting Fees 0.00 4,166.67 -4,166.67 4,685.00 12,499.97 -7,814.97 50,000.00
16335 · Repairs & Maintenance

16332 · Downtown Repairs 424.20 0.00 424.20 579.11 0.00 579.11 500.00
16335.1 · Maintenance - Vehicles & Equip

16334 · Gas/Oil 12.75 3,354.16 -3,341.41 7,101.85 10,062.56 -2,960.71 40,250.00
16343 · Tractor & Mower 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
16357 · Auto Repairs 422.50 1,916.67 -1,494.17 6,270.53 5,749.97 520.56 23,000.00
16373 · Equipment repairs 97.89 563.42 -465.53 710.31 1,690.22 -979.91 6,761.00
16374 · Building Repairs-City Hall/Comm 2,832.98 1,387.33 1,445.65 1,531.71 4,162.03 -2,630.32 16,648.00
16375 · Street Repairs - Minor

16375.1 · Streets-Preventive Maintenance 0.00 416.67 -416.67 0.00 1,249.97 -1,249.97 5,000.00
16375 · Street Repairs - Minor - Other 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 404.89 4,500.00 -4,095.11 18,000.00

Total 16375 · Street Repairs - Minor 0.00 1,916.67 -1,916.67 404.89 5,749.97 -5,345.08 23,000.00

16335.1 · Maintenance - Vehicles & Equip - Oth... 39.13 250.00 -210.87 627.04 750.00 -122.96 3,000.00

Total 16335.1 · Maintenance - Vehicles & Equip 3,405.25 9,388.25 -5,983.00 16,646.33 28,164.75 -11,518.42 113,159.00

16335.3 · City Hall Cleaning - COVID 19 0.00 750.00
16335 · Repairs & Maintenance - Other 0.00 858.33 -858.33 1,550.00 2,575.03 -1,025.03 10,300.00

Total 16335 · Repairs & Maintenance 3,829.45 10,246.58 -6,417.13 19,525.44 30,739.78 -11,214.34 123,959.00

16335.2 · Mosquito Spraying 0.00 458.33 -458.33 580.00 1,375.03 -795.03 5,500.00
16337 · Street Signs 0.00 143.75 -143.75 41.74 431.25 -389.51 1,725.00
16340 · Printing & Office supplies 0.00 725.00 -725.00 1,401.90 2,175.00 -773.10 8,700.00

16342 · Computers/Website 0.00 1,393.33 -1,393.33 760.00 4,180.03 -3,420.03 16,720.00
16350 · Postage/Delivery 0.00 437.51 -437.51 960.53 1,312.41 -351.88 5,250.00
16351 · Telephone 2,934.50 2,291.67 642.83 7,700.59 6,874.97 825.62 27,500.00
16360 · Tax Assessor Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,842.22 1,875.00 967.22 7,500.00
16370 · Election 0.00 1,333.33 -1,333.33 526.50 4,000.03 -3,473.53 16,000.00
17030 · Mobil Data Terminal 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 12,000.00
17040 · Computer/Technology

17040.1 · COVID-19 Computer Tech 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.00 600.00 -600.00 2,400.00
17040 · Computer/Technology - Other 3,781.18 2,975.00 806.18 16,649.11 8,925.00 7,724.11 35,700.00

Total 17040 · Computer/Technology 3,781.18 3,175.00 606.18 16,649.11 9,525.00 7,124.11 38,100.00

17510 · State Portion of Fines/Payouts 36,200.28 11,458.33 24,741.95 36,200.28 34,375.03 1,825.25 137,500.00
16002 · Contract Services - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00

2:50 PM City of Montgomery - General Fund
01/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis December 2020

Page 3
23



Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Total 16002 · Contract Services 62,621.39 69,225.33 -6,603.94 158,638.89 229,914.67 -71,275.78 976,704.00

16003 · Supplies & Equipment
16244 · Radio Fees 0.00 433.33 -433.33 0.00 1,300.03 -1,300.03 5,200.00
16328 · Uniforms & Safety Equip 282.60 1,041.66 -759.06 1,219.45 3,125.06 -1,905.61 12,500.00
16328.1 · Protective Gear 0.00 583.33 -583.33 0.00 1,750.03 -1,750.03 7,000.00
16358 · Copier/Fax Machine Lease 2,015.00 1,708.33 306.67 6,424.93 5,125.03 1,299.90 20,500.00
16460 · Operating Supplies (Office)

16460.1 · Streets and Drainage 0.00 190.25 -190.25 2,693.59 570.75 2,122.84 2,283.00
16460.2 · Cedar Brake Park 20.11 66.25 -46.14 55.44 198.75 -143.31 795.00
16460.3 · Homecoming Park 0.00 7.92 -7.92 35.33 23.72 11.61 95.00
16460.4 · Fernland Park 0.00 33.25 -33.25 79.97 99.75 -19.78 399.00
16460.5 · Community Building 0.00 107.92 -107.92 35.34 323.72 -288.38 1,295.00
16460.6 · Tools, Etc 0.00 108.33 -108.33 496.85 325.03 171.82 1,300.00
16460.7 · Memory Park 0.00 107.92 -107.92 0.00 323.72 -323.72 1,295.00
16460 · Operating Supplies (Office) - Other 540.53 1,800.00 -1,259.47 5,380.42 5,400.00 -19.58 21,600.00

Total 16460 · Operating Supplies (Office) 560.64 2,421.84 -1,861.20 8,776.94 7,265.44 1,511.50 29,062.00

16503 · Code Enforcement Expenses 0.00 83.33 -83.33 0.00 250.03 -250.03 1,000.00
17010 · Emergency Equipment 0.00 1,125.00 -1,125.00 8,158.14 3,375.00 4,783.14 13,500.00
17100 · Capital Purchase Furniture 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00
16003 · Supplies & Equipment - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00

Total 16003 · Supplies & Equipment 2,858.24 7,396.82 -4,538.58 24,579.46 22,190.62 2,388.84 92,262.00

16004 · Staff Development
16339 · Dues & Subscriptions 186.00 729.17 -543.17 485.25 2,187.47 -1,702.22 8,750.00
16341 · Community Relations 0.00 547.09 -547.09 160.07 1,641.19 -1,481.12 6,565.00
16354 · Travel & Training (Travel) 220.00 3,378.34 -3,158.34 3,867.22 10,134.94 -6,267.72 40,540.00
16004 · Staff Development - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

Total 16004 · Staff Development 406.00 4,654.60 -4,248.60 4,512.54 13,963.60 -9,451.06 55,955.00

16005 · Maintenance
16228 · Park Maint-Memory Pk 1,287.30 416.67 870.63 4,029.09 1,249.97 2,779.12 5,000.00
16229 · Park Maint - Fernland 0.00 333.33 -333.33 88.04 1,000.03 -911.99 4,000.00
16230 · Park Maint-Cedar Brake Park 60.00 500.00 -440.00 2,833.77 1,500.00 1,333.77 6,000.00
16231 · Park Maint. - Homecoming Park 0.00 83.33 -83.33 457.86 250.03 207.83 1,000.00

Total 16005 · Maintenance 1,347.30 1,333.33 13.97 7,408.76 4,000.03 3,408.73 16,000.00

16006 · Insurance
16353.2 · Liability Ins. 2,328.88 1,973.33 355.55 8,637.99 5,920.03 2,717.96 23,680.00
16353.3 · Property Ins. 848.07 1,046.26 -198.19 2,097.11 3,138.66 -1,041.55 12,555.00
16353.9 · Insurance Bond 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
16353.A · Employee Assistance Program 2,000.00 2,000.00

Total 16006 · Insurance 5,176.95 3,019.59 2,157.36 12,735.10 9,058.69 3,676.41 36,735.00

2:50 PM City of Montgomery - General Fund
01/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis December 2020

Page 4
24



Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

16007 · Utilities
16352.0 · Electronic Sign-City 68.35 83.33 -14.98 191.93 250.03 -58.10 1,000.00
16352.1 · Street Lights 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 2,202.81 3,000.00 -797.19 12,000.00
16352.2 · Downtown Utilities 90.13 100.00 -9.87 297.27 300.00 -2.73 1,200.00
16352.3 · Utilities-Cedar Brake Park 190.15 183.33 6.82 495.13 550.03 -54.90 2,200.00
16352.4 · Utilities-Homecoming Park 89.51 108.33 -18.82 309.72 325.03 -15.31 1,300.00
16352.5 · Utilities-Fernland Park 554.12 375.00 179.12 1,254.21 1,125.00 129.21 4,500.00
16352.6 · Utilities - City Hall 857.80 875.00 -17.20 2,639.11 2,625.00 14.11 10,500.00
16352.8 · Utilities - Comm Center Bldg 413.65 358.33 55.32 1,014.16 1,075.03 -60.87 4,300.00
16352.9 · Utilities-Memory Pk 0.00 666.67 -666.67 510.71 1,999.97 -1,489.26 8,000.00

Total 16007 · Utilities 2,263.71 3,749.99 -1,486.28 8,915.05 11,250.09 -2,335.04 45,000.00

16008 · Capital Outlay
17070 · Capital Outlay - Police Cars

17070.1 · Emergency Lights, Decals 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 6,000.00
17070.4 · Tsf To CPF-Vehicle Replacement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00
17070 · Capital Outlay - Police Cars - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 -101.74 0.00 -101.74 0.00

Total 17070 · Capital Outlay - Police Cars 0.00 500.00 -500.00 -101.74 1,500.00 -1,601.74 21,000.00

17071 · Cap Purchase - Computers/Eqip
17071.1 · Copsync 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,509.24 5,500.00 7,009.24 14,933.00
17071.2 · Radar 0.00 416.67 -416.67 140.00 1,249.97 -1,109.97 5,000.00
17071.4 · Laserfiche (Software) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,503.00
17071.6 · Investigative and Testing Equip 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,700.00 3,700.00 0.00 4,000.00
17071.7 · Ballistic Vests & Shields 0.00 250.00 -250.00 1,058.35 750.00 308.35 3,000.00
17071 · Cap Purchase - Computers/Eqip - Other 0.00 1,625.00 -1,625.00 0.00 4,875.00 -4,875.00 19,500.00

Total 17071 · Cap Purchase - Computers/Eqip 0.00 2,291.67 -2,291.67 17,407.59 16,074.97 1,332.62 52,936.00

17071.5 · Patrol Weapons 0.00 583.33 -583.33 413.70 1,750.03 -1,336.33 7,000.00
17071.B · Office Maintenance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00
17081 · Cap Outlay-Drainage Improvement 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.00 750.00 -750.00 3,000.00

Total 16008 · Capital Outlay 0.00 3,625.00 -3,625.00 17,719.55 20,075.00 -2,355.45 91,936.00

16009 · Miscellaneous Expenses
16590 · Misc. Expense

16590.4 · Tsf to CPF - Infr Inv (43949.3) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 46,700.00
16590.5 · Christmas Parade Expenses 2,663.09 2,663.09
16590.6 · Transfer to Surplus 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 34,100.00
16590.7 · Tsf to CPF -Mob Inv (43949.4) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00
16590.8 · Light up the Park Expenses 2,029.50 2,388.46
16590 · Misc. Expense - Other 126.00 249.99 -123.99 1,786.01 750.09 1,035.92 3,000.00

Total 16590 · Misc. Expense 4,818.59 249.99 4,568.60 6,837.56 750.09 6,087.47 93,800.00

16009 · Miscellaneous Expenses - Other 0.00 5,000.00

2:50 PM City of Montgomery - General Fund
01/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis December 2020

Page 5
25



Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Total 16009 · Miscellaneous Expenses 4,818.59 249.99 4,568.60 11,837.56 750.09 11,087.47 93,800.00

16356 · Contract Labor- Streets 0.00 7,500.00 -7,500.00 0.00 22,500.00 -22,500.00 90,000.00
16500 · Leases - Parks and Recreation

16504 · Adams Park 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 6,000.00

Total 16500 · Leases - Parks and Recreation 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 6,000.00

16550 · HOME Grant Expense 0.00 325,050.00
17500 · Tax Rebatement

17500.1 · Sales Tax Rebate 17,243.75 17,243.75 0.00 51,731.25 51,731.25 0.00 206,925.00
17500.2 · 380 Ad Valorem Tax Rebate 9,480.25 9,480.25 0.00 28,440.75 28,440.75 0.00 113,763.00
17500.3 · PID Property Tax Reimbursement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38,815.00

Total 17500 · Tax Rebatement 26,724.00 26,724.00 0.00 80,172.00 80,172.00 0.00 359,503.00

Total Expense 344,286.32 303,298.66 40,987.66 1,197,229.32 929,334.70 267,894.62 3,901,735.00

Net Ordinary Income 250,122.77 168,284.69 81,838.08 332,621.62 73,915.15 258,706.47 -50,000.00

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

14000.3 · Transfers In
14620.2 · Admin Transfer from MEDC 3,958.34 3,958.34 0.00 11,875.00 11,875.00 0.00 47,500.00
14620.4 · Admin Trf from Court Security 0.00 625.00 -625.00 0.00 625.00 -625.00 2,500.00

Total 14000.3 · Transfers In 3,958.34 4,583.34 -625.00 11,875.00 12,500.00 -625.00 50,000.00

Total Other Income 3,958.34 4,583.34 -625.00 11,875.00 12,500.00 -625.00 50,000.00

Net Other Income 3,958.34 4,583.34 -625.00 11,875.00 12,500.00 -625.00 50,000.00

Net Income 254,081.11 172,868.03 81,213.08 344,496.62 86,415.15 258,081.47 0.00

2:50 PM City of Montgomery - General Fund
01/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Basis December 2020

Page 6
26



City of Montgomery - Capital Projects

Cash Flow Report - Const CkgW&S Proj 1058544 Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $238.07

Receipts
Transfer from BOKF 2017A - Outlay Request #7 16,299.44
Transfer from Utility Fund - Engineering Fees 26,900.00
Transfer from BOKF 2017B - Outlay Request #9 13,478.28

Total Receipts 56,677.72

Disbursements
1347 Jones & Carter, Inc. Engineering Fees - Capital Projects (17,759.36)
1348 BGE, Inc. Town Creek GLO - Hydrology and Hydraulics Stu (4,567.38)
1349 DL Glover, Inc. Pay Est #2 & Final - Const of 18 Inch Gravity S.S. (14,210.21)
1350 Jones & Carter, Inc. Engineering Fees - Capital Projects (6,740.97)
Total Disbursements (43,277.92)

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $13,637.87

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX8544

27



City of Montgomery - Capital Projects

Cash Flow Report - BOKF, NA  Escrow  Series 2017A Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $121,827.85

Receipts
Interest on account 11/30/2020 0.63
Interest on account 12/31/2020 0.61

Total Receipts 1.24

Disbursements
Wire Transfer from BOKF 2017A - Outlay Request #7 (16,299.44)
Total Disbursements (16,299.44)

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $105,529.65

BOK Financial - #XXXX3014

28



City of Montgomery - Capital Projects

Cash Flow Report - BOKF, NA  Escrow  Series 2017B Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $1,528,349.89

Receipts
Interest on account 11/30/2020 7.86
Interest on account 12/31/2020 7.61

Total Receipts 15.47

Disbursements
Wire Transfer from BOKF 2017B - Outlay Request #9 (13,478.28)
Total Disbursements (13,478.28)

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $1,514,887.08

BOK Financial - #XXXX4012
29



 Accrual Basis  City of Montgomery - Capital Projects Acct

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 November 2020

Nov 20 Budget % of Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget % of Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

43901 · Capital Proj Funding Sourc

43911 · Transfer From MEDC 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 160,000.00

43947 · Transfer from Utility Fund

43947A · Tsf from Utility - Cap (27002) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 536,039.00

43947B · Tsf from Utility - Maint 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43947C · Tsf fr Utility - Cap Costs Proj 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

Total 43947 · Transfer from Utility Fund 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 536,039.00

43949 · Transfers from General Fund

43949.1 · Tsf fr Gen - Police Veh (17070) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 15,000.00

43949.2 · Tsf from Gen-Streets/Sidewalk 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43949.3 · Trs fm Gen - Inf Inv (16590.4) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 46,700.00

43949.4 · Tsf fm Gen - Mob Inv (16590.7) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 10,000.00

Total 43949 · Transfers from General Fund 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 71,700.00

43952 · Other Fund Reserves/Transfers

43952.1 · 380 Agt-1st Hrtford-18" SS line 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43952.3 · Proceeds GLO 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 2,280,000.00

Total 43952 · Other Fund Reserves/Transfers 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 2,280,000.00

Total 43901 · Capital Proj Funding Sourc 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 3,047,739.00

43959 · FEMA Grant Revenue

43956.3 · Impact Fees (26901.3) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 90,000.00

Total 43959 · FEMA Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 90,000.00

43961 · Grant Funds-CDBG

43961.2 · CDBG Block Grant - Baja 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 56,985.00

Total 43961 · Grant Funds-CDBG 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 56,985.00

45391 · Interest Earned

45391.1 · Interest Earned Ser 2017A 0.63 16.67 3.78% 1.24 33.30 3.72% 200.00

45391.2 · Interest Earned Ser 2017B 7.86 66.67 11.79% 15.49 133.30 11.62% 800.00

Total 45391 · Interest Earned 8.49 83.34 10.19% 16.73 166.60 10.04% 1,000.00

45900 · Use of Surplus 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 1,382,989.00

Total Income 8.49 83.34 10.19% 16.73 166.60 10.04% 4,578,713.00

Expense

43889 · Grant Administrative Expenses

43889.2 · Baja Project CDBG #7217320 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 3,325.00

43889.3 · GLO  - All Proj 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 108,360.00

Total 43889 · Grant Administrative Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 111,685.00

43890 · Engineering

43890.2 · WP #3 Improvements-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 65,000.00

43890.3 · Lift St #1 Expansion-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 5,114.72 0.00 100.0% 1,000.00

43890.4 · Waterline replacement/HouSt 0.00 491.25

43890.5 · LS#3/Force Main Re-Rte-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43890.7 · Downtown/SH105 Imp-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 75,000.00

43890.8 · 18" SS Line 0.00 0.00 0.0% 1,135.00 0.00 100.0% 2,000.00

30



 Accrual Basis  City of Montgomery - Capital Projects Acct

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 November 2020

Nov 20 Budget % of Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget % of Budget Annual Budget

43890.A · Baja Project - CDBG  0037-00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43890.C · Atkins Ck W,SS,STS Rep-FEMA4281 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43890.E · Eng-All GLO 0.00 0.00 0.0% 4,567.38 0.00 100.0% 225,000.00

Total 43890 · Engineering 0.00 0.00 0.0% 11,308.35 0.00 100.0% 368,000.00

43995 · Const Cost-Contingencies

43995.1 · LS#3 Force Main ReRoute- TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43995.2 · LS#1 Replacement/Expans - TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43995.3 · WP#3 Improvements- TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 45,000.00

43995.4 · Downtown/SH105 Improve - TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 45,000.00

Total 43995 · Const Cost-Contingencies 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 90,000.00

44000 · Wastewater System

44006 · LS #1-Replmnt/Expans-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 100,000.00

44007 · LS#3 Forcemain Reroute-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

44008 · 18" Gravity S.S. Line Const 0.00 0.00 0.0% 14,210.21 0.00 100.0% 14,000.00

44009 · Lift St #3 Improvements-GLO 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

Total 44000 · Wastewater System 0.00 0.00 0.0% 14,210.21 0.00 100.0% 114,000.00

45000 · Water System- Capital Proj

43975 · WP #3 Generator - GLO 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 501,000.00

43976.1 · Downtown/SH 105 W Ln Imp-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 913,838.00

43992.1 · Water Plant #3 - Imp-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 996,550.00

43992.4 · WP#3 Imp - Other Costs-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43992.5 · Baja/MLK Wtr&Drg Imp-TXCDBG7320 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 38,000.00

Total 45000 · Water System- Capital Proj 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 2,449,388.00

46000 · Roadway System Improvements

46007 · Roadway Construction 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

Total 46000 · Roadway System Improvements 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

48000 · Cap Outlay-Fac, Equip, Etc

48002 · Utili ProjPrev Maint 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

48004 · Police Vehicle Replacement 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

48005.A · Baja / MLK - GLO 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 722,600.00

48007 · Impact Fee-WL Ext-Pkwy/Buff Sp 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

48008 · Andres Branch - GLO 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 668,040.00

48009 · GLO Environmental 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 15,000.00

48010 · GLO Aquisition - Land 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 40,000.00

Total 48000 · Cap Outlay-Fac, Equip, Etc 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 1,445,640.00

Total Expense 0.00 0.00 0.0% 25,518.56 0.00 100.0% 4,578,713.00

Net Ordinary Income 8.49 83.34 10.19% -25,501.83 166.60 -15,307.22% 0.00

Net Income 8.49 83.34 10.19% -25,501.83 166.60 -15,307.22% 0.00

31



 Accrual Basis  City of Montgomery - Capital Projects Acct

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 December 2020

Dec 20 Budget % of Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget % of Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

43901 · Capital Proj Funding Sourc

43911 · Transfer From MEDC 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 160,000.00

43947 · Transfer from Utility Fund

43947A · Tsf from Utility - Cap (27002) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 536,039.00

43947B · Tsf from Utility - Maint 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43947C · Tsf fr Utility - Cap Costs Proj 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

Total 43947 · Transfer from Utility Fund 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 536,039.00

43949 · Transfers from General Fund

43949.1 · Tsf fr Gen - Police Veh (17070) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 15,000.00

43949.2 · Tsf from Gen-Streets/Sidewalk 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43949.3 · Trs fm Gen - Inf Inv (16590.4) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 46,700.00

43949.4 · Tsf fm Gen - Mob Inv (16590.7) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 10,000.00

Total 43949 · Transfers from General Fund 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 71,700.00

43952 · Other Fund Reserves/Transfers

43952.1 · 380 Agt-1st Hrtford-18" SS line 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43952.3 · Proceeds GLO 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 2,280,000.00

Total 43952 · Other Fund Reserves/Transfers 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 2,280,000.00

Total 43901 · Capital Proj Funding Sourc 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 3,047,739.00

43959 · FEMA Grant Revenue

43956.3 · Impact Fees (26901.3) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 90,000.00

Total 43959 · FEMA Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 90,000.00

43961 · Grant Funds-CDBG

43961.2 · CDBG Block Grant - Baja 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 56,985.00

Total 43961 · Grant Funds-CDBG 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 56,985.00

45391 · Interest Earned

45391.1 · Interest Earned Ser 2017A 0.61 16.67 3.66% 1.85 49.97 3.7% 200.00

45391.2 · Interest Earned Ser 2017B 7.61 66.67 11.41% 23.10 199.97 11.55% 800.00

Total 45391 · Interest Earned 8.22 83.34 9.86% 24.95 249.94 9.98% 1,000.00

45900 · Use of Surplus 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 1,382,989.00

Total Income 8.22 83.34 9.86% 24.95 249.94 9.98% 4,578,713.00

Expense

43889 · Grant Administrative Expenses

43889.2 · Baja Project CDBG #7217320 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 3,325.00

43889.3 · GLO  - All Proj 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 108,360.00

Total 43889 · Grant Administrative Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 111,685.00

43890 · Engineering

43890.2 · WP #3 Improvements-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 65,000.00

43890.3 · Lift St #1 Expansion-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 5,114.72 0.00 100.0% 1,000.00

43890.4 · Waterline replacement/HouSt 0.00 491.25

43890.5 · LS#3/Force Main Re-Rte-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43890.7 · Downtown/SH105 Imp-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 75,000.00

43890.8 · 18" SS Line 0.00 0.00 0.0% 1,135.00 0.00 100.0% 2,000.00

32



 Accrual Basis  City of Montgomery - Capital Projects Acct

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 December 2020

Dec 20 Budget % of Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget % of Budget Annual Budget

43890.A · Baja Project - CDBG  0037-00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43890.C · Atkins Ck W,SS,STS Rep-FEMA4281 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43890.E · Eng-All GLO 0.00 0.00 0.0% 4,567.38 0.00 100.0% 225,000.00

Total 43890 · Engineering 0.00 0.00 0.0% 11,308.35 0.00 100.0% 368,000.00

43995 · Const Cost-Contingencies

43995.1 · LS#3 Force Main ReRoute- TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43995.2 · LS#1 Replacement/Expans - TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43995.3 · WP#3 Improvements- TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 45,000.00

43995.4 · Downtown/SH105 Improve - TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 45,000.00

Total 43995 · Const Cost-Contingencies 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 90,000.00

44000 · Wastewater System

44006 · LS #1-Replmnt/Expans-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 100,000.00

44007 · LS#3 Forcemain Reroute-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

44008 · 18" Gravity S.S. Line Const 0.00 0.00 0.0% 14,210.21 0.00 100.0% 14,000.00

44009 · Lift St #3 Improvements-GLO 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

Total 44000 · Wastewater System 0.00 0.00 0.0% 14,210.21 0.00 100.0% 114,000.00

45000 · Water System- Capital Proj

43975 · WP #3 Generator - GLO 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 501,000.00

43976.1 · Downtown/SH 105 W Ln Imp-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 913,838.00

43992.1 · Water Plant #3 - Imp-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 996,550.00

43992.4 · WP#3 Imp - Other Costs-TWDB 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

43992.5 · Baja/MLK Wtr&Drg Imp-TXCDBG7320 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 38,000.00

Total 45000 · Water System- Capital Proj 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 2,449,388.00

46000 · Roadway System Improvements

46007 · Roadway Construction 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

Total 46000 · Roadway System Improvements 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

48000 · Cap Outlay-Fac, Equip, Etc

48002 · Utili ProjPrev Maint 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

48004 · Police Vehicle Replacement 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

48005.A · Baja / MLK - GLO 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 722,600.00

48007 · Impact Fee-WL Ext-Pkwy/Buff Sp 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

48008 · Andres Branch - GLO 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 668,040.00

48009 · GLO Environmental 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 15,000.00

48010 · GLO Aquisition - Land 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 40,000.00

Total 48000 · Cap Outlay-Fac, Equip, Etc 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.0% 1,445,640.00

Total Expense 0.00 0.00 0.0% 25,518.56 0.00 100.0% 4,578,713.00

Net Ordinary Income 8.22 83.34 9.86% -25,493.61 249.94 -10,199.89% 0.00

Net Income 8.22 83.34 9.86% -25,493.61 249.94 -10,199.89% 0.00

33



City of Montgomery - Debt Service

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $186,871.54

Receipts
Tax Transfer thru 11/17/19 10,404.01
Interest 6.09
Tax Transfer thru 12/11/20 14,200.63
Interest 7.03

Total Receipts 24,617.76

Disbursements
No Disbursements Activity 0.00

Total Disbursements 0.00

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $211,489.30

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX4730
34



 City of Montgomery - Debt Service
 Profit & Loss Budget Performance

 November 2020

Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget
Income

34000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees
34320 · Ad Valorem Taxes 14,196.54 15,000.00 -803.46 23,361.92 17,500.00 5,861.92 360,873.00
34330 · Penalty & Interest 4.09 270.83 -266.74 1,242.72 541.70 701.02 3,250.00

Total 34000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 14,200.63 15,270.83 -1,070.20 24,604.64 18,041.70 6,562.94 364,123.00
34100 · Transfers

34301.4 · Transfers in-MEDC Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 34100 · Transfers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
35000 · Other Revenues

35390 · Interest on Checking 0.00 8.33 -8.33 0.00 16.70 -16.70 100.00
35391 · Interest on Investments 30.02 137.50 -107.48 63.37 275.00 -211.63 1,650.00

Total 35000 · Other Revenues 30.02 145.83 -115.81 63.37 291.70 -228.33 1,750.00
35500 · Use of Surplus Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300,627.00

Total Income 14,230.65 15,416.66 -1,186.01 24,668.01 18,333.40 6,334.61 666,500.00
Expense

37000 · Debt Service
37360 · Interest Payments On Note 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39,500.00
37363 · Paying Agent Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00
37365 · Interest 2012 Series Premium 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 169,500.00
37395 · Principal Note Payments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 455,000.00

Total 37000 · Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 666,500.00
Total Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 666,500.00

Net Income 14,230.65 15,416.66 -1,186.01 24,668.01 18,333.40 6,334.61 0.00

 Page 1 of 135



 City of Montgomery - Debt Service
 Profit & Loss Budget Performance

 December 2020

Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget
Income

34000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees
34320 · Ad Valorem Taxes 135,061.36 130,000.00 5,061.36 158,423.28 147,500.00 10,923.28 360,873.00
34330 · Penalty & Interest 160.58 270.83 -110.25 1,403.30 812.53 590.77 3,250.00

Total 34000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 135,221.94 130,270.83 4,951.11 159,826.58 148,312.53 11,514.05 364,123.00
34100 · Transfers

34301.4 · Transfers in-MEDC Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 34100 · Transfers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
35000 · Other Revenues

35390 · Interest on Checking 0.00 8.33 -8.33 0.00 25.03 -25.03 100.00
35391 · Interest on Investments 25.30 137.50 -112.20 88.67 412.50 -323.83 1,650.00

Total 35000 · Other Revenues 25.30 145.83 -120.53 88.67 437.53 -348.86 1,750.00
35500 · Use of Surplus Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300,627.00

Total Income 135,247.24 130,416.66 4,830.58 159,915.25 148,750.06 11,165.19 666,500.00
Expense

37000 · Debt Service
37360 · Interest Payments On Note 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 39,500.00
37363 · Paying Agent Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00
37365 · Interest 2012 Series Premium 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 169,500.00
37395 · Principal Note Payments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 455,000.00

Total 37000 · Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 666,500.00
Total Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 666,500.00

Net Income 135,247.24 130,416.66 4,830.58 159,915.25 148,750.06 11,165.19 0.00

 Page 1 of 136



City of Montgomery - Ct Security Fund

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $7,218.21

Receipts
Transfer from General for Revenues thru 11/17/2020 20.10
Transfer from General for Revenues thru 12/11/2020 37.38

Total Receipts 57.48

Disbursements
No Disbursements Activity 0.00

Total Disbursements 0.00

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $7,275.69

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX0580
37



 City of Montgomery - Ct Security Fund

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 November 2020

Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

84110 · Court Fines & Forfeitures

84110.1 · Court Security Fees 37.38 333.33 -295.95 57.48 666.70 -609.22 4,000.00

Total 84110 · Court Fines & Forfeitures 37.38 333.33 -295.95 57.48 666.70 -609.22 4,000.00

Total Income 37.38 333.33 -295.95 57.48 666.70 -609.22 4,000.00

Net Ordinary Income 37.38 333.33 -295.95 57.48 666.70 -609.22 4,000.00

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

86560 · Interfund Tranfers

86551 · Baliff Transfer to General Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00

Total 86560 · Interfund Tranfers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00

Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -2,500.00

Net Income 37.38 333.33 -295.95 57.48 666.70 -609.22 1,500.00

38



 City of Montgomery - Ct Security Fund

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 December 2020

Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

84110 · Court Fines & Forfeitures

84110.1 · Court Security Fees 19.78 333.33 -313.55 77.26 1,000.03 -922.77 4,000.00

Total 84110 · Court Fines & Forfeitures 19.78 333.33 -313.55 77.26 1,000.03 -922.77 4,000.00

Total Income 19.78 333.33 -313.55 77.26 1,000.03 -922.77 4,000.00

Net Ordinary Income 19.78 333.33 -313.55 77.26 1,000.03 -922.77 4,000.00

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

86560 · Interfund Tranfers

86551 · Baliff Transfer to General Fund 0.00 625.00 -625.00 0.00 625.00 -625.00 2,500.00

Total 86560 · Interfund Tranfers 0.00 625.00 -625.00 0.00 625.00 -625.00 2,500.00

Total Other Expense 0.00 625.00 -625.00 0.00 625.00 -625.00 2,500.00

Net Other Income 0.00 -625.00 625.00 0.00 -625.00 625.00 -2,500.00

Net Income 19.78 -291.67 311.45 77.26 375.03 -297.77 1,500.00

39



City of Montgomery - Ct Tech Fund

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $39,814.90

Receipts
Revenues transfer from 11/17/2020 28.75
Interest 0.95
Revenues transfer from 12/11/2020 49.83
Interest 1.01

Total Receipts 80.54

Disbursements
No Disbursements Activity 0.00

Total Disbursements 0.00

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $39,895.44

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX8361
40



 City of Montgomery - Ct Tech Fund
 Actual to Budget Performance

 November 2020

Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
74100 · Court Fines and Forfeitures

74110 · Court Technology Fees 49.83 291.67 -241.84 78.58 583.30 -504.72 3,500.00
Total 74100 · Court Fines and Forfeitures 49.83 291.67 -241.84 78.58 583.30 -504.72 3,500.00
74200 · Other Revenues

74291 · Interest Income 0.95 0.00 0.95 1.99 0.00 1.99 0.00
Total 74200 · Other Revenues 0.95 0.00 0.95 1.99 0.00 1.99 0.00

Total Income 50.78 291.67 -240.89 80.57 583.30 -502.73 3,500.00
Expense

76200 · Contract Services
76362 · Computer/Website Services 0.00 166.67 -166.67 0.00 333.30 -333.30 2,000.00

Total 76200 · Contract Services 0.00 166.67 -166.67 0.00 333.30 -333.30 2,000.00
Total Expense 0.00 166.67 -166.67 0.00 333.30 -333.30 2,000.00

Net Ordinary Income 50.78 125.00 -74.22 80.57 250.00 -169.43 1,500.00
Net Income 50.78 125.00 -74.22 80.57 250.00 -169.43 1,500.00

41



 City of Montgomery - Ct Tech Fund
 Actual to Budget Performance

 December 2020

Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
74100 · Court Fines and Forfeitures

74110 · Court Technology Fees 26.38 291.67 -265.29 104.96 874.97 -770.01 3,500.00
Total 74100 · Court Fines and Forfeitures 26.38 291.67 -265.29 104.96 874.97 -770.01 3,500.00
74200 · Other Revenues

74291 · Interest Income 1.01 0.00 1.01 3.00 0.00 3.00 0.00
Total 74200 · Other Revenues 1.01 0.00 1.01 3.00 0.00 3.00 0.00

Total Income 27.39 291.67 -264.28 107.96 874.97 -767.01 3,500.00
Expense

76200 · Contract Services
76362 · Computer/Website Services 0.00 166.67 -166.67 0.00 499.97 -499.97 2,000.00

Total 76200 · Contract Services 0.00 166.67 -166.67 0.00 499.97 -499.97 2,000.00
Total Expense 0.00 166.67 -166.67 0.00 499.97 -499.97 2,000.00

Net Ordinary Income 27.39 125.00 -97.61 107.96 375.00 -267.04 1,500.00
Net Income 27.39 125.00 -97.61 107.96 375.00 -267.04 1,500.00

42



City of Montgomery - Grant

Cash Flow Report - Grant Account Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $80.73

Receipts
No Receipts Activity 0.00

Total Receipts 0.00

Disbursements
No Disbursements Activity 0.00

Total Disbursements 0.00

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $80.73

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX8479
43



City of Montgomery - Grant

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $5,737.63

Receipts
No Receipts Activity 0.00

Total Receipts 0.00

Disbursements
No Disbursements Activity 0.00

Total Disbursements 0.00

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $5,737.63

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX9104
44



City of Montgomery - Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $15,039.23

Receipts
Hotel Revenue 10/20 621.00
Interest 0.37
Interest 0.40

Total Receipts 621.77

Disbursements
No Disbursements Activity 0.00

Total Disbursements 0.00

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $15,661.00

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX5253
45



 City of Montgomery - Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 November 2020

Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Income

44300 · Taxes & Franchise Fees

44330 · Hotel Occupancy Taxes 621.00 0.00 621.00 621.00 500.00 121.00 2,000.00

Total 44300 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 621.00 0.00 621.00 621.00 500.00 121.00 2,000.00

44400 · Other Revenues

44360 · Interest Earned On Checking 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.00

44490 · Interest Income 0.37 0.76

Total 44400 · Other Revenues 0.37 0.00 0.37 0.76 0.00 0.76 3.00

Total Income 621.37 0.00 621.37 621.76 500.00 121.76 2,003.00

Expense

46600 · Miscellaneous Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00

Total Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00

Net Income 621.37 0.00 621.37 621.76 500.00 121.76 1,003.00

46



 City of Montgomery - Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 December 2020

Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Income

44300 · Taxes & Franchise Fees

44330 · Hotel Occupancy Taxes 0.00 0.00 0.00 621.00 500.00 121.00 2,000.00

Total 44300 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 621.00 500.00 121.00 2,000.00

44400 · Other Revenues

44360 · Interest Earned On Checking 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.00

44490 · Interest Income 0.40 1.16

Total 44400 · Other Revenues 0.40 0.00 0.40 1.16 0.00 1.16 3.00

Total Income 0.40 0.00 0.40 622.16 500.00 122.16 2,003.00

Expense

46600 · Miscellaneous Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00

Total Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00

Net Income 0.40 0.00 0.40 622.16 500.00 122.16 1,003.00

47



City of Montgomery - MEDC

Cash Flow Report - MEDC Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $94,816.29

Receipts
Light Up the Park - Transfer made 11/17/2020 100.00
Light Up the Park - Transfer made 12/11/2020 125.00
Sales Tax Transfer 12/20 57,443.45
Transfer to Checking for MISD Loan 750,000.00

Total Receipts 807,668.45

Disbursements
2007 Rebecca Huss October 2020 Social Media Services (1,000.00)
2008 JK Graphics, Inc. Inv 35177 - Graphics for Light up the Park (98.00)
2009 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of Expense - Website Marketing (75.00)
2010 TEDC Fall Basic ED Course for Richard Tramm (700.00)
2011 City of Montgomery- Utility Fund Utility Grant Application - The Ranchers Daughter (250.00)
2012 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of Expense - Website / Social Med (1,016.87)
2013 Megan Dodd 1st Place - Pole Decorating Contest (50.00)
2014 Montgomery Junior High School 2nd Place - Pole Decorating Contest (25.00)
2015 Jeff and Lisa Waddell 3rd Place - Pole Decorating Contest (10.00)
2016 Lisa Martin 1st Place - Residential Lighting Contest (200.00)
2017 Paul and Jennifer Brown 2nd Place - Residential Lighting Contest (150.00)
2018 Cheryl King 3rd Place - Residential Lighting Contest (100.00)
2019 TEDC Webinars - Sales Tax / Financing Local Food Sys. / (724.00)
2020 McCoy's Building Supply Goat Cutouts - Invoice 11353487 (34.02)
2021 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of Expense - String for Signs of Pa (2.58)
2022 Rebecca Huss Reimbursement of Expense - Website Marketing (24.99)
2023 Bride & Bloom Floristry & Farm Wreaths -12/5/20 (Light up Montgomery) Inv  000 (135.00)
AL Transfer to General Fund for Amount due from M (549.49)
AL Old Republic Title Co. Payment to Old Republic Title for MISD Purchase (750,512.50)
AL First Financial Bank Wire Fee for Old Republic Title Co Transfer - To b (25.00)
Total Disbursements (755,682.45)

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $146,802.29

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX7938
48



 City of Montgomery - MEDC

 Actual to Budget Performance
 November 2020

Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Income

55000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees

55400 · Sales Tax 104,139.36 75,000.00 29,139.36 161,118.74 125,000.00 36,118.74 675,000.00

Total 55000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 104,139.36 75,000.00 29,139.36 161,118.74 125,000.00 36,118.74 675,000.00

55300 · Other Revenues

55391 · Interest Income 156.98 333.33 (176.35) 324.70 666.70 (342.00) 4,000.00

Total 55300 · Other Revenues 156.98 333.33 (176.35) 324.70 666.70 (342.00) 4,000.00

Total Income 104,296.34 75,333.33 28,963.01 161,443.44 125,666.70 35,776.74 679,000.00

Expense

56000 · Pub Infrastructure - Category I

56000.6 · Downtown Dev Improvements 0.00 9,333.33 (9,333.33) 0.00 18,666.70 (18,666.70) 112,000.00

56000.7 · Streets & Sidewalks 0.00 833.33 (833.33) 0.00 1,666.70 (1,666.70) 10,000.00

56000.8 · Utility Extensions 0.00 4,166.67 (4,166.67) 0.00 8,333.30 (8,333.30) 50,000.00

56000.B · City Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,000.00

Total 56000 · Pub Infrastructure - Category I 0.00 14,333.33 (14,333.33) 0.00 28,666.70 (28,666.70) 332,000.00

56001 · Business Dev & Ret -Category II

56001.8 · Sales Tax Reimbursement 9,583.33 9,583.33 0.00 19,166.66 19,166.66 0.00 115,000.00

56001.9 · Economic Development Grant Prog 0.00 1,666.67 (1,666.67) 0.00 3,333.30 (3,333.30) 20,000.00

Total 56001 · Business Dev & Ret -Category II 9,583.33 11,250.00 (1,666.67) 19,166.66 22,499.96 (3,333.30) 135,000.00

56002 · Quality of Life - Category III

56002.2 · Removal of Blight 0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 15,000.00

56002.3 · Events

56100.1 · Neighborhood Water Party 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00

56100.5 · Light up Montgomery 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00

56100.6 · Southern Rum Runner 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,800.00

56100.7 · Mudbugs and Music 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00

56100.8 · Christmas Parade 0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 250.00 (250.00) 1,500.00

56100.9 · Contests/Prizes 198.00 333.33 (135.33) 198.00 666.70 (468.70) 4,000.00

56002.3 · Events - Other 0.00 1,391.67 (1,391.67) 0.00 2,783.30 (2,783.30) 16,700.00

Total 56002.3 · Events 198.00 1,850.00 (1,652.00) 198.00 3,700.00 (3,502.00) 41,000.00

56002.4 · Downtown Enhancement Projects 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 0.00 5,000.00 (5,000.00) 30,000.00

Total 56002 · Quality of Life - Category III 198.00 5,600.00 (5,402.00) 198.00 11,200.00 (11,002.00) 86,000.00

56003 · Marketing & Tourism-Category IV

56003.5 · Brochures/Printed Literature 0.00 333.33 (333.33) 0.00 666.70 (666.70) 4,000.00

56003.C · Website 0.00 666.67 (666.67) 0.00 1,333.30 (1,333.30) 8,000.00

56003.F · Social Media Advertising 75.00 250.00 (175.00) 100.00 500.00 (400.00) 3,000.00

56003.G · Historical Signage 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 333.30 (333.30) 2,000.00

Total 56003 · Marketing & Tourism-Category IV 75.00 1,416.67 (1,341.67) 100.00 2,833.30 (2,733.30) 17,000.00

56004 · Administration  - Category V

56004.1 · Admin Transfers to Gen Fund 3,958.33 3,958.33 0.00 7,916.66 7,916.66 0.00 47,500.00

56004.3 · Miscellaneous Expenses 0.00 41.67 (41.67) 0.00 83.30 (83.30) 500.00

56004.6 · Consulting (Professional servi) 1,054.49 4,083.33 (3,028.84) 2,339.49 8,166.70 (5,827.21) 49,000.00

56004.7 · Travel  & Training Expenses 604.00 833.33 (229.33) 724.00 1,666.70 (942.70) 10,000.00

56004.9 · Technology 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 333.30 (333.30) 2,000.00

49



 City of Montgomery - MEDC

 Actual to Budget Performance
 November 2020

Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Total 56004 · Administration  - Category V 5,616.82 9,083.33 (3,466.51) 10,980.15 18,166.66 (7,186.51) 109,000.00

Total Expense 15,473.15 41,683.33 (26,210.18) 30,444.81 83,366.62 (52,921.81) 679,000.00

Net Income 88,823.19 33,650.00 55,173.19 130,998.63 42,300.08 88,698.55 0.00

50



 City of Montgomery - MEDC

 Actual to Budget Performance
 December 2020

Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Income

55000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees

55400 · Sales Tax 57,443.45 45,000.00 12,443.45 218,562.19 170,000.00 48,562.19 675,000.00

Total 55000 · Taxes & Franchise Fees 57,443.45 45,000.00 12,443.45 218,562.19 170,000.00 48,562.19 675,000.00

55300 · Other Revenues

55391 · Interest Income 107.57 333.33 (225.76) 432.27 1,000.03 (567.76) 4,000.00

Total 55300 · Other Revenues 107.57 333.33 (225.76) 432.27 1,000.03 (567.76) 4,000.00

Total Income 57,551.02 45,333.33 12,217.69 218,994.46 171,000.03 47,994.43 679,000.00

Expense

56000 · Pub Infrastructure - Category I

56000.6 · Downtown Dev Improvements 0.00 9,333.33 (9,333.33) 0.00 28,000.03 (28,000.03) 112,000.00

56000.7 · Streets & Sidewalks 0.00 833.33 (833.33) 0.00 2,500.03 (2,500.03) 10,000.00

56000.8 · Utility Extensions 0.00 4,166.67 (4,166.67) 0.00 12,499.97 (12,499.97) 50,000.00

56000.B · City Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,000.00

Total 56000 · Pub Infrastructure - Category I 0.00 14,333.33 (14,333.33) 0.00 43,000.03 (43,000.03) 332,000.00

56001 · Business Dev & Ret -Category II

56001.8 · Sales Tax Reimbursement 9,583.34 9,583.34 0.00 28,750.00 28,750.00 0.00 115,000.00

56001.9 · Economic Development Grant Prog 0.00 1,666.67 (1,666.67) 0.00 4,999.97 (4,999.97) 20,000.00

Total 56001 · Business Dev & Ret -Category II 9,583.34 11,250.01 (1,666.67) 28,750.00 33,749.97 (4,999.97) 135,000.00

56002 · Quality of Life - Category III

56002.2 · Removal of Blight 0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.00 3,750.00 (3,750.00) 15,000.00

56002.3 · Events

56100.1 · Neighborhood Water Party 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00

56100.5 · Light up Montgomery 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 2,000.00

56100.6 · Southern Rum Runner 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,800.00

56100.7 · Mudbugs and Music 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00

56100.8 · Christmas Parade 0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 375.00 (375.00) 1,500.00

56100.9 · Contests/Prizes 0.00 333.33 (333.33) 198.00 1,000.03 (802.03) 4,000.00

56002.3 · Events - Other 0.00 1,391.67 (1,391.67) 0.00 4,174.97 (4,174.97) 16,700.00

Total 56002.3 · Events 0.00 3,850.00 (3,850.00) 198.00 7,550.00 (7,352.00) 41,000.00

56002.4 · Downtown Enhancement Projects 34.02 2,500.00 (2,465.98) 34.02 7,500.00 (7,465.98) 30,000.00

Total 56002 · Quality of Life - Category III 34.02 7,600.00 (7,565.98) 232.02 18,800.00 (18,567.98) 86,000.00

56003 · Marketing & Tourism-Category IV

56003.5 · Brochures/Printed Literature 0.00 333.33 (333.33) 0.00 1,000.03 (1,000.03) 4,000.00

56003.C · Website 0.00 666.67 (666.67) 0.00 1,999.97 (1,999.97) 8,000.00

56003.F · Social Media Advertising 24.99 250.00 (225.01) 124.99 750.00 (625.01) 3,000.00

56003.G · Historical Signage 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 499.97 (499.97) 2,000.00

Total 56003 · Marketing & Tourism-Category IV 24.99 1,416.67 (1,391.68) 124.99 4,249.97 (4,124.98) 17,000.00

56004 · Administration  - Category V

56004.1 · Admin Transfers to Gen Fund 3,958.34 3,958.34 0.00 11,875.00 11,875.00 0.00 47,500.00

56004.3 · Miscellaneous Expenses 0.00 41.67 (41.67) 0.00 124.97 (124.97) 500.00

56004.6 · Consulting (Professional servi) 1,250.00 4,083.33 (2,833.33) 3,589.49 12,250.03 (8,660.54) 49,000.00

56004.7 · Travel  & Training Expenses 0.00 833.33 (833.33) 724.00 2,500.03 (1,776.03) 10,000.00

56004.9 · Technology 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 499.97 (499.97) 2,000.00

51



 City of Montgomery - MEDC

 Actual to Budget Performance
 December 2020

Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Total 56004 · Administration  - Category V 5,208.34 9,083.34 (3,875.00) 16,188.49 27,250.00 (11,061.51) 109,000.00

56006 · Miscellaneous Expenses 25.00 25.00

Total Expense 14,875.69 43,683.35 (28,807.66) 45,320.50 127,049.97 (81,729.47) 679,000.00

Net Income 42,675.33 1,649.98 41,025.35 173,673.96 43,950.06 129,723.90 0.00

52



City of Montgomery - Police Asset Forfeiture

Cash Flow Report - Checking Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $8,591.98

Receipts
Revenue transfer thru 12/11/2020 3,494.82

Total Receipts 3,494.82

Disbursements
No Disbursements Activity 0.00

Total Disbursements 0.00

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $12,086.80

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX7745
53



 City of Montgomery - Police Asset Forfeiture
 Profit & Loss Budget Performance

 November 2020

Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
74000 · Police Asset Forfeitures

74102 · Asset Forfeitures 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 0.00
Total 74000 · Police Asset Forfeitures 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 0.00

Total Income 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 0.00
Net Ordinary Income 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 0.00

Net Income 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 0.00

54



 City of Montgomery - Police Asset Forfeiture
 Profit & Loss Budget Performance

 December 2020

Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
74000 · Police Asset Forfeitures

74102 · Asset Forfeitures 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 0.00
Total 74000 · Police Asset Forfeitures 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 0.00

Total Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 0.00
Net Ordinary Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 0.00

Net Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,494.82 0.00 3,494.82 0.00

55



City of Montgomery - Water & Sewer 

Cash Flow Report - Water & Sewer Fund Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

BALANCE AS OF  11/01/2020 $953,566.64

Receipts
Interest on Checking 31.92
A/R Collections 282,607.66
A/R Collections O/S 9,332.76
Customer Meter Deposits 2,600.00
Fee Revenue 742.50
Fee Revenue O/S 76.25
A/R Collections 171,269.63
A/R Collections O/S 1,134.82
Customer Meter Deposits 1,475.00
Fee Revenue 29.05
Fee Revenue O/S 30.00
Interest on Checking 38.58

Total Receipts 469,368.17

Disbursements
15126 AG + Oil 365 Energy LLC Deposit Refund - Emmas Way (474.50)
15127 Automatic LP Gas Deposit Refund - 14900 Liberty St (474.50)
15128 Badger Meter Inv  #80061963 (937.17)
15129 Betty Middleton Deposit Refund - 127 Brocks Lane (73.02)
15130 Brady & Jamie Bell Deposit Refund - 149 Waterstone Dr (64.73)
15131 Consolidated Communications 936-597-4826/0 10/20 (45.30)
15132 CSLC Utilities Deposit Refund - Buffalo Springs Dr (479.70)
15133 DataProse, LLC Acct# 1216  Inv#DP2003873  Billing Period  10/1 (623.45)
15134 Debra L Bowers Deposit Refund - 120 Racetrack Lane (41.07)
15135 DH Homes Deposit Refund - 19029 Villa Lane (43.74)
15136 Electrical Field Services, Inc. Lift Station 13 & Water Plant 3 - Invoice 34018 ; 33 (3,003.65)
15137 Entergy October Invoices (8,189.49)
15138 Faustino D Villarreal III Deposit Refund - 298 Berkley (75.88)
15139 James E Jackson Deposit Refund - 1628 Martin Luther King (67.89)
15140 Jones & Carter, Inc Engineering Fees - August & September 2020 (18,956.24)
15141 Liberty Home Builders Deposit Refund - 316 Terra Vista Pl ; 313 Terra Vis (122.36)
15142 Michael Bray Deposit Refund - 187 Racetrack Lane (75.39)
15143 Robert & Sheila Long Deposit Refund - 105 Peninsula Point (26.91)
15144 Scott Harper Deposit Refund - 177 Abner Lane (100.00)
15145 Stylecraft Builders Deposit Refund - 129 Scenic Hills ; 147 Scenic Hills (531.72)
15146 Trendview Construction Deposit Refund - 171 Abner Lane ; 177 Abner Lan (259.96)
15147 Twillia Wright Deposit Refund - 243 Racetrack Lane (57.51)
15148 Consolidated Communications 936-597-8846 ; 7657 ; 3353 - 10/20 (133.39)
15149 Entergy October Invoices. (29.97)
15150 LDC CM100268 Hwy 105 West, CM100264 149 South  1 (98.67)
15151 Texas Excavation Safety System, Inc. Monthly Message Fees for 09/20 Inv#20-20137 (59.85)
15152 TML - IRP Insurance Premiums November 2020 (3,416.60)
15153 USA BlueBook Supplies Inv 386234 (113.90)
15154 Waste Management Customer ID# 7-23067-13005   inv 5698161-1792- (12,015.59)
15155 Waste Management (2) Acct 7-23166-83000 - Inv5698561-1792-5  11/1-11 (1,128.70)
15156 Tyler Technologies Monthly Maintenance-Support and Host Web Site  (41.00)
15157 BMP Industrial Service, LLC Lift Station Clean Up - Invoice 12189 (480.00)
15158 DataProse, LLC November 2020 Calendar Insert - Inv 3P50067 (169.44)
15159 DXI Industries Inc. Chlorine WP#3 DE05009164-20 ; 055019293 / 05 (960.84)
15160 Electrical Field Services, Inc. Lift Station 5 Replace Surge Protection - Invoice 34 (1,200.00)

56



City of Montgomery - Water & Sewer 

Cash Flow Report - Water & Sewer Fund Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Disbursements
15161 McCoy's Building Supply Acct#0900-98046487-001 Inv 11352506 ; 11352507 (66.30)
15162 Solomon Electric, Inc. Shop - 265 S. Buffalo Springs Inv 22404 (378.00)
15163 Accurate Utility Supply, LLC Operating Supplies Inv #164444 (3,555.00)
15164 BMP Industrial Service, LLC Lift Station Clean Up - Invoice 12184 ; 12210 ; 122 (1,600.00)
15165 Consolidated Communications 936-597-4774/0  11/11/20-12/03/2020 (45.30)
15166 Gulf Utility Service, Inc. Operations - Inv 18072  10/31/20 (23,663.19)
15167 Tyler Technologies Utility Billing Training #025-309813 (255.00)
15168 Badger Meter Inv  #80063629 (951.41)
15169 Consolidated Communications 936-597-4826/0 11/20 (45.30)
15170 DataProse, LLC December 2020 Calendar Insert - Inv 3P50465 / N (835.02)
15171 Electrical Field Services, Inc. Lift Station 13 Lift Pump #1 Repairs to Lift Pump (5,030.00)
15172 Entergy November Invoices (2,104.39)
15173 TML - IRP Insurance Premiums December 2020 (3,009.50)
15174 BMP Industrial Service, LLC Lift Station Clean Up - Invoice 12232 ; 12233 ; 122 (1,600.00)
15175 Cole Sullivan Deposit Refund - 123 Racetrack Ln (29.47)
15176 DH Homes Deposit Refund - 19059 Minero Ln ; 19067 Minero (161.54)
15177 Electrical Field Services, Inc. WWTP - Blower Not Running - Invoice 33488 (365.40)
15178 Entergy November Invoices (5,006.02)
15179 Kevin Behrle Deposit Refund - 212 N Waterstone (73.67)
15180 LDC CM100268 Hwy 105 West, CM100264 149 South  1 (50.66)
15181 Lone Star Groundwater Conservation Dist Invoices - 21-1005, 1015, 1074 - Permit Fees 2021 (13,299.05)
15182 M J Sheridan Deposit Refund - Buffalo Springs (296.28)
15183 Samuel Dorsey Thompson Deposit Refund - 111 Abner Lane (75.39)
15184 Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Inv CWQ0063773 WWTP Permit  Description 001 (620.00)
15185 Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Inv CWQ0064867WWTP Permit  Descr 00147370 (2,249.70)
15186 Texas Commission on Environmental Quality Inv PHS0197037 - Water System Fee FY20    Acct (2,231.95)
15187 Texas Excavation Safety System, Inc. Monthly Message Fees for 11/20 Inv#20-21875 (25.65)
15188 Waste Management Customer ID# 7-23067-13005   inv 5701578-1792- (13,107.71)
15189 Consolidated Communications 936-597-8846 ; 7657 ; 3353 - 11/20 (139.76)
15190 DXI Industries Inc. Chlorine WP#3 DE05010105-20 ; 055021571-20 (213.61)
15191 Entergy November Invoices (206.06)
15192 Hahn Equipment Co.  Inc. Lift Pumps for Lift Station 14 - Invoice 108106 (14,464.00)
15193 K-3 Resources,  LP Sludge Haul  Inv 211565 (7,410.00)
15194 K&K Construction, Inc. Sack Stabilized Sand - Invoice 20-5990 ; 20-5913 (368.65)
15195 McCoy's Building Supply Acct#0900-98046487-001 Inv 11353874 (22.92)
15196 Waste Management (2) Acct 7-23166-83000 - Inv5699194-1792-7  12/1-12 (1,057.33)
15197 Consolidated Communications 936-597-4774/0  12/11/20-01/03/2021 (45.30)
15198 DXI Industries Inc. Chlorine WP#3  055021572-20 (113.61)
15199 Jones & Carter, Inc Engineering Fees - October 2020 (14,145.00)
15200 Tyler Technologies Monthly Maintenance-Support and Host Web Site  (41.00)
15201 DataProse, LLC January 2021 Calendar Insert / 2021 Important Dat (508.32)
ACH State Comptroller TIN 1-74-2063592-6 Sales Tax - Fees - 10/2020 (1,170.81)
ACH State Comptroller Sales Tax - Fees - 11/2020 (1,181.81)
AL First Financial Transfer to Capital Projects - Engineering Fees (26,900.00)
AL First Financial Reimbursement of Expenses thru 11/17/2020 (19,700.63)
AL First Financial Reimbursement of Expenses thru 11/19/2020 (11,916.09)
AL First Financial Reimbursement of Expenses thru 12/11/2020 (17,618.50)
Recap 
11/20

First Financial Billing Charges (1,816.36)

57



City of Montgomery - Water & Sewer 

Cash Flow Report - Water & Sewer Fund Account
As of  December  31,  2020

Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Disbursements
Recap 
12/20

First Financial Billing Charges (4,876.47)

Total Disbursements (259,219.26)

BALANCE AS OF  12/31/2020 $1,163,715.55

FIRST FINANCIAL BANK - #XXXX7383
58



 City of Montgomery - Water & Sewer Fund

 Actual to Budget Performance - Utility Fund
 November 2020

Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

24000 · Charges for Service

24100 · Water Revenue 68,699.40 45,000.00 23,699.40 139,334.46 95,000.00 44,334.46 620,000.00

24118 · Surface Water Revenue 787.50 533.33 254.17 1,601.60 1,066.70 534.90 6,400.00

24119 · Application Fee 30.00 125.00 (95.00) 30.00 250.00 (220.00) 1,500.00

24120 · Disconnect Reconnect 296.33 395.83 (99.50) 812.41 791.70 20.71 4,750.00

24200 · Sewer Revenue 62,616.55 45,000.00 17,616.55 122,783.96 95,000.00 27,783.96 630,000.00

24310 · Tap Fees/Inspections 118,391.00 22,500.00 95,891.00 134,414.70 45,000.00 89,414.70 270,000.00

24319 · Grease Trap Inspections 1,750.00 1,500.00 250.00 3,250.00 3,000.00 250.00 18,000.00

24330 · Late Charges 1,990.17 1,250.00 740.17 3,304.35 2,500.00 804.35 15,000.00

24333 · Returned Ck Fee 0.00 16.67 (16.67) 100.00 33.30 66.70 200.00

24334 · Backflow Testing 0.00 1,333.33 (1,333.33) 0.00 2,666.70 (2,666.70) 16,000.00

25403 · Solid Waste Revenue 14,396.86 12,083.33 2,313.53 28,659.26 24,166.70 4,492.56 145,000.00

Total 24000 · Charges for Service 268,957.81 129,737.49 139,220.32 434,290.74 269,475.10 164,815.64 1,726,850.00

24101 · Taxes and Franchise Fees

24110 · Sales Tax Rev for Solid Waste 1,178.19 1,000.00 178.19 2,345.28 2,000.00 345.28 12,000.00

Total 24101 · Taxes and Franchise Fees 1,178.19 1,000.00 178.19 2,345.28 2,000.00 345.28 12,000.00

24121 · Groundwater Reduction Revenue 18,562.50 14,250.00 4,312.50 37,752.00 28,500.00 9,252.00 171,000.00

25000 · Other Revenues

25000.1 · Impact Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 90,000.00

25391 · Interest Income 31.92 33.33 (1.41) 64.95 66.70 (1.75) 400.00

25392 · Interest earned on Investments 76.81 250.00 (173.19) 164.11 500.00 (335.89) 3,000.00

25399 · Misc Rev & ETS Rev 818.75 333.33 485.42 1,601.25 666.70 934.55 4,000.00

Total 25000 · Other Revenues 927.48 616.66 310.82 1,830.31 1,233.40 596.91 97,400.00

25500 · Utility Contracts 196.77 358.55

Total Income 289,822.75 145,604.15 144,218.60 476,576.88 301,208.50 175,368.38 2,007,250.00

Expense

26001 · Personnel

26353.1 · Health Ins. 3,332.80 3,250.00 82.80 7,427.75 6,500.00 927.75 39,000.00

26353.4 · Unemployment Ins 0.00 37.50 (37.50) 0.00 75.00 (75.00) 450.00

26353.5 · Workers Comp. 312.46 400.00 (87.54) 624.92 800.00 (175.08) 4,800.00

26353.6 · Dental Insurance 241.35 266.67 (25.32) 506.02 533.30 (27.28) 3,200.00

26353.7 · Life & AD&D Insurance 64.62 83.33 (18.71) 131.58 166.70 (35.12) 1,000.00

26353.8 · Crime Insurance 40.72 41.67 (0.95) 81.44 83.30 (1.86) 500.00

26501 · Retirement Expense 1,221.92 1,250.00 (28.08) 2,486.50 2,500.00 (13.50) 15,000.00

26560 · Payroll Taxes 1,535.37 1,666.67 (131.30) 3,106.98 3,333.30 (226.32) 20,000.00

26600 · Wages 19,839.31 19,312.50 526.81 40,383.80 38,625.00 1,758.80 231,750.00

26600.1 · Overtime 0.00 416.67 (416.67) 0.00 833.30 (833.30) 5,000.00

Total 26001 · Personnel 26,588.55 26,725.01 (136.46) 54,748.99 53,449.90 1,299.09 320,700.00

26200 · Contract Services

26102 · General Consultant Fees 0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 15,000.00

26320 · Legal Fees 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.00 3,000.00 (3,000.00) 18,000.00

26322 · Engineering 0.00 6,250.00 (6,250.00) 14,145.00 12,500.00 1,645.00 75,000.00

59



 City of Montgomery - Water & Sewer Fund

 Actual to Budget Performance - Utility Fund
 November 2020

Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

26323 · Operator 3,300.00 3,365.00 (65.00) 6,600.00 6,730.00 (130.00) 40,380.00

26324 · Billing and Collections 1,827.43 1,991.67 (164.24) 3,598.49 3,983.30 (384.81) 23,900.00

26325 · Backflow Testing 0.00 1,333.33 (1,333.33) 0.00 2,666.70 (2,666.70) 16,000.00

26328 · Testing 92.88 1,250.00 (1,157.12) 242.63 2,500.00 (2,257.37) 15,000.00

26331 · Sales Tax for Solid Waste 1,181.81 1,000.00 181.81 2,352.62 2,000.00 352.62 12,000.00

26336 · Sludge Hauling 7,444.38 2,000.00 5,444.38 7,444.38 4,000.00 3,444.38 24,000.00

26340 · Printing 128.57 33.33 95.24 128.57 66.70 61.87 400.00

26350 · Postage 0.00 416.67 (416.67) 0.00 833.30 (833.30) 5,000.00

26351 · Telephone 588.06 475.00 113.06 1,169.69 950.00 219.69 5,700.00

26370 · Tap Fees & Inspections 1,480.00 4,166.67 (2,686.67) 3,886.00 8,333.30 (4,447.30) 50,000.00

26380 · Disconnect/Reconnect Expense 0.00 33.33 (33.33) 0.00 66.70 (66.70) 400.00

26399 · Garbage Pickup 14,236.41 11,666.67 2,569.74 27,726.94 23,333.30 4,393.64 140,000.00

Total 26200 · Contract Services 30,279.54 36,731.67 (6,452.13) 67,294.32 73,463.30 (6,168.98) 440,780.00

26300 · Communications

26338 · Advertising/Promotion 0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 250.00 (250.00) 1,500.00

Total 26300 · Communications 0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 250.00 (250.00) 1,500.00

26326 · Permits & Licenses 15,753.00 3,833.33 11,919.67 19,185.95 7,666.70 11,519.25 46,000.00

26371 · Dues & Subscriptions 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 333.30 (333.30) 2,000.00

26400.1 · Supplies & Equipment

26342 · Chemicals 3,708.23 2,333.33 1,374.90 4,669.07 4,666.70 2.37 28,000.00

26358 · Copier/Fax Machine Lease 0.00 135.00 (135.00) 0.00 270.00 (270.00) 1,620.00

26460 · Operating Supplies 3,574.97 6,666.67 (3,091.70) 4,404.84 13,333.30 (8,928.46) 80,000.00

26485 · Uniforms 670.80 375.00 295.80 897.62 750.00 147.62 4,500.00

27040 · ComputerTechnology Equipment 1,400.65 700.00 700.65 2,443.67 1,400.00 1,043.67 8,400.00

26400.1 · Supplies & Equipment - Other 0.00 50.00 (50.00) 0.00 100.00 (100.00) 600.00

Total 26400.1 · Supplies & Equipment 9,354.65 10,260.00 (905.35) 12,415.20 20,520.00 (8,104.80) 123,120.00

26401 · Groundwater Reduction Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

26500 · Staff Development

26354 · Travel & Training (Travel) 110.00 458.33 (348.33) (274.20) 916.70 (1,190.90) 5,500.00

26355 · Employee Relations (Education) 0.00 41.67 (41.67) 0.00 83.30 (83.30) 500.00

Total 26500 · Staff Development 110.00 500.00 (390.00) (274.20) 1,000.00 (1,274.20) 6,000.00

26600.2 · Maintenance

26335 · Repairs & Maintenance 12,321.07 18,812.50 (6,491.43) 33,064.24 37,625.00 (4,560.76) 225,750.00

26335.1 · Vehicle Rep. & Maint. 94.56 250.00 (155.44) 672.83 500.00 172.83 3,000.00

26349 · Gas & Oil 0.00 645.83 (645.83) 37.87 1,291.70 (1,253.83) 7,750.00

Total 26600.2 · Maintenance 12,415.63 19,708.33 (7,292.70) 33,774.94 39,416.70 (5,641.76) 236,500.00

26700 · Insurance Expense

26353.2 · Liability Ins. 662.23 266.67 395.56 895.91 533.30 362.61 3,200.00

26353.3 · Property Ins. 2,401.19 2,333.33 67.86 4,723.48 4,666.70 56.78 28,000.00

Total 26700 · Insurance Expense 3,063.42 2,600.00 463.42 5,619.39 5,200.00 419.39 31,200.00

26800 · Utilities Expense

26352.1 · Utilities - Gas for Generators 50.66 83.33 (32.67) 149.33 166.70 (17.37) 1,000.00

26352.2 · Utilities-Water Plants 6,576.52 5,666.67 909.85 13,420.34 11,333.30 2,087.04 68,000.00

26352.3 · Utilities-WW Treatment Plants 78.75 2,500.00 (2,421.25) 427.99 5,000.00 (4,572.01) 30,000.00

60



 City of Montgomery - Water & Sewer Fund

 Actual to Budget Performance - Utility Fund
 November 2020

Nov 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Nov 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

26352.4 · Utilities - Lift Stations 1,167.28 1,333.33 (166.05) 2,379.96 2,666.70 (286.74) 16,000.00

Total 26800 · Utilities Expense 7,873.21 9,583.33 (1,710.12) 16,377.62 19,166.70 (2,789.08) 115,000.00

26901 · Util Projects/Prev Maint

26901.3 · Impact Fees - Tsf to CPF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 90,000.00

26901 · Util Projects/Prev Maint - Other 6,449.84 3,859.25 2,590.59 16,122.34 7,718.50 8,403.84 46,311.00

Total 26901 · Util Projects/Prev Maint 6,449.84 3,859.25 2,590.59 16,122.34 7,718.50 8,403.84 136,311.00

27000 · Miscellaneous Expenses

26361 · Bank Charges/ETS 2,603.22 1,000.00 1,603.22 5,805.98 2,000.00 3,805.98 12,000.00

Total 27000 · Miscellaneous Expenses 2,603.22 1,000.00 1,603.22 5,805.98 2,000.00 3,805.98 12,000.00

Total Expense 114,491.06 115,092.59 (601.53) 231,070.53 230,185.10 885.43 1,471,211.00

Net Ordinary Income 175,331.69 30,511.56 144,820.13 245,506.35 71,023.40 174,482.95 536,039.00

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

27001 · Other Expenses

27002 · Transfer to Construction Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 536,039.00

Total 27001 · Other Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 536,039.00

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 536,039.00

Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (536,039.00)

Net Income 175,331.69 30,511.56 144,820.13 245,506.35 71,023.40 174,482.95 0.00

61



 City of Montgomery - Water & Sewer Fund

 Actual to Budget Performance - Utility Fund
 December 2020

Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

24000 · Charges for Service

24100 · Water Revenue 53,038.26 40,000.00 13,038.26 192,372.72 135,000.00 57,372.72 620,000.00

24118 · Surface Water Revenue 568.68 533.33 35.35 2,170.28 1,600.03 570.25 6,400.00

24119 · Application Fee 0.00 125.00 (125.00) 30.00 375.00 (345.00) 1,500.00

24120 · Disconnect Reconnect 900.00 395.83 504.17 1,712.41 1,187.53 524.88 4,750.00

24200 · Sewer Revenue 50,438.52 45,000.00 5,438.52 173,222.48 140,000.00 33,222.48 630,000.00

24310 · Tap Fees/Inspections 8,030.00 22,500.00 (14,470.00) 142,444.70 67,500.00 74,944.70 270,000.00

24319 · Grease Trap Inspections 1,700.00 1,500.00 200.00 4,950.00 4,500.00 450.00 18,000.00

24330 · Late Charges 1,646.59 1,250.00 396.59 4,950.94 3,750.00 1,200.94 15,000.00

24333 · Returned Ck Fee 350.00 16.67 333.33 450.00 49.97 400.03 200.00

24334 · Backflow Testing 0.00 1,333.33 (1,333.33) 0.00 4,000.03 (4,000.03) 16,000.00

25403 · Solid Waste Revenue 14,540.76 12,083.33 2,457.43 43,200.02 36,250.03 6,949.99 145,000.00

Total 24000 · Charges for Service 131,212.81 124,737.49 6,475.32 565,503.55 394,212.59 171,290.96 1,726,850.00

24101 · Taxes and Franchise Fees

24110 · Sales Tax Rev for Solid Waste 1,190.06 1,000.00 190.06 3,535.34 3,000.00 535.34 12,000.00

Total 24101 · Taxes and Franchise Fees 1,190.06 1,000.00 190.06 3,535.34 3,000.00 535.34 12,000.00

24121 · Groundwater Reduction Revenue 13,404.60 14,250.00 (845.40) 51,156.60 42,750.00 8,406.60 171,000.00

25000 · Other Revenues

25000.1 · Impact Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 90,000.00

25391 · Interest Income 38.58 33.33 5.25 103.53 100.03 3.50 400.00

25392 · Interest earned on Investments 58.62 250.00 (191.38) 222.73 750.00 (527.27) 3,000.00

25399 · Misc Rev & ETS Rev 59.05 333.33 (274.28) 1,660.30 1,000.03 660.27 4,000.00

Total 25000 · Other Revenues 156.25 616.66 (460.41) 1,986.56 1,850.06 136.50 97,400.00

25500 · Utility Contracts 196.75 555.30

Total Income 146,160.47 140,604.15 5,556.32 622,737.35 441,812.65 180,924.70 2,007,250.00

Expense

26001 · Personnel

26353.1 · Health Ins. 3,399.48 3,250.00 149.48 10,827.23 9,750.00 1,077.23 39,000.00

26353.4 · Unemployment Ins 0.00 37.50 (37.50) 0.00 112.50 (112.50) 450.00

26353.5 · Workers Comp. 312.46 400.00 (87.54) 937.38 1,200.00 (262.62) 4,800.00

26353.6 · Dental Insurance 241.35 266.67 (25.32) 747.37 799.97 (52.60) 3,200.00

26353.7 · Life & AD&D Insurance 66.60 83.33 (16.73) 198.18 250.03 (51.85) 1,000.00

26353.8 · Crime Insurance 40.72 41.67 (0.95) 122.16 124.97 (2.81) 500.00

26501 · Retirement Expense 1,867.19 1,250.00 617.19 4,353.69 3,750.00 603.69 15,000.00

26560 · Payroll Taxes 2,131.42 1,666.67 464.75 5,238.40 4,999.97 238.43 20,000.00

26600 · Wages 30,327.28 19,312.50 11,014.78 70,711.08 57,937.50 12,773.58 231,750.00

26600.1 · Overtime 0.00 416.67 (416.67) 0.00 1,249.97 (1,249.97) 5,000.00

Total 26001 · Personnel 38,386.50 26,725.01 11,661.49 93,135.49 80,174.91 12,960.58 320,700.00

26200 · Contract Services

26102 · General Consultant Fees 0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.00 3,750.00 (3,750.00) 15,000.00

26320 · Legal Fees 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.00 4,500.00 (4,500.00) 18,000.00

26322 · Engineering 0.00 6,250.00 (6,250.00) 14,145.00 18,750.00 (4,605.00) 75,000.00

62



 City of Montgomery - Water & Sewer Fund

 Actual to Budget Performance - Utility Fund
 December 2020

Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

26323 · Operator 0.00 3,365.00 (3,365.00) 6,600.00 10,095.00 (3,495.00) 40,380.00

26324 · Billing and Collections 2,171.93 1,991.67 180.26 5,770.42 5,974.97 (204.55) 23,900.00

26325 · Backflow Testing 0.00 1,333.33 (1,333.33) 0.00 4,000.03 (4,000.03) 16,000.00

26328 · Testing 0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 242.63 3,750.00 (3,507.37) 15,000.00

26331 · Sales Tax for Solid Waste 1,193.64 1,000.00 193.64 3,546.26 3,000.00 546.26 12,000.00

26336 · Sludge Hauling 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 7,444.38 6,000.00 1,444.38 24,000.00

26340 · Printing 0.00 33.33 (33.33) 128.57 100.03 28.54 400.00

26350 · Postage 85.69 416.67 (330.98) 85.69 1,249.97 (1,164.28) 5,000.00

26351 · Telephone 1,149.74 475.00 674.74 2,319.43 1,425.00 894.43 5,700.00

26370 · Tap Fees & Inspections 0.00 4,166.67 (4,166.67) 3,886.00 12,499.97 (8,613.97) 50,000.00

26380 · Disconnect/Reconnect Expense 0.00 33.33 (33.33) 0.00 100.03 (100.03) 400.00

26399 · Garbage Pickup 13,614.57 11,666.67 1,947.90 41,341.51 34,999.97 6,341.54 140,000.00

Total 26200 · Contract Services 18,215.57 36,731.67 (18,516.10) 85,509.89 110,194.97 (24,685.08) 440,780.00

26300 · Communications

26338 · Advertising/Promotion 0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 375.00 (375.00) 1,500.00

Total 26300 · Communications 0.00 125.00 (125.00) 0.00 375.00 (375.00) 1,500.00

26326 · Permits & Licenses 143.48 3,833.33 (3,689.85) 19,329.43 11,500.03 7,829.40 46,000.00

26371 · Dues & Subscriptions 0.00 166.67 (166.67) 0.00 499.97 (499.97) 2,000.00

26400.1 · Supplies & Equipment

26342 · Chemicals 763.24 2,333.33 (1,570.09) 5,432.31 7,000.03 (1,567.72) 28,000.00

26358 · Copier/Fax Machine Lease 0.00 135.00 (135.00) 0.00 405.00 (405.00) 1,620.00

26460 · Operating Supplies 27.54 6,666.67 (6,639.13) 4,432.38 19,999.97 (15,567.59) 80,000.00

26485 · Uniforms 0.00 375.00 (375.00) 897.62 1,125.00 (227.38) 4,500.00

27040 · ComputerTechnology Equipment 40.26 700.00 (659.74) 2,483.93 2,100.00 383.93 8,400.00

26400.1 · Supplies & Equipment - Other 0.00 50.00 (50.00) 0.00 150.00 (150.00) 600.00

Total 26400.1 · Supplies & Equipment 831.04 10,260.00 (9,428.96) 13,246.24 30,780.00 (17,533.76) 123,120.00

26401 · Groundwater Reduction Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

26500 · Staff Development

26354 · Travel & Training (Travel) 0.00 458.33 (458.33) (274.20) 1,375.03 (1,649.23) 5,500.00

26355 · Employee Relations (Education) 0.00 41.67 (41.67) 0.00 124.97 (124.97) 500.00

Total 26500 · Staff Development 0.00 500.00 (500.00) (274.20) 1,500.00 (1,774.20) 6,000.00

26600.2 · Maintenance

26335 · Repairs & Maintenance 3,586.61 18,812.50 (15,225.89) 36,650.85 56,437.50 (19,786.65) 225,750.00

26335.1 · Vehicle Rep. & Maint. 0.00 250.00 (250.00) 672.83 750.00 (77.17) 3,000.00

26349 · Gas & Oil 0.00 645.83 (645.83) 37.87 1,937.53 (1,899.66) 7,750.00

Total 26600.2 · Maintenance 3,586.61 19,708.33 (16,121.72) 37,361.55 59,125.03 (21,763.48) 236,500.00

26700 · Insurance Expense

26353.2 · Liability Ins. 255.13 266.67 (11.54) 1,151.04 799.97 351.07 3,200.00

26353.3 · Property Ins. 2,401.19 2,333.33 67.86 7,124.67 7,000.03 124.64 28,000.00

Total 26700 · Insurance Expense 2,656.32 2,600.00 56.32 8,275.71 7,800.00 475.71 31,200.00

26800 · Utilities Expense

26352.1 · Utilities - Gas for Generators 49.60 83.33 (33.73) 198.93 250.03 (51.10) 1,000.00

26352.2 · Utilities-Water Plants 6,143.48 5,666.67 476.81 19,563.82 16,999.97 2,563.85 68,000.00

26352.3 · Utilities-WW Treatment Plants 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 427.99 7,500.00 (7,072.01) 30,000.00

63



 City of Montgomery - Water & Sewer Fund

 Actual to Budget Performance - Utility Fund
 December 2020

Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget Oct - Dec 20 YTD Budget $ Over Budget Annual Budget

26352.4 · Utilities - Lift Stations 1,205.33 1,333.33 (128.00) 3,585.29 4,000.03 (414.74) 16,000.00

Total 26800 · Utilities Expense 7,398.41 9,583.33 (2,184.92) 23,776.03 28,750.03 (4,974.00) 115,000.00

26901 · Util Projects/Prev Maint

26901.3 · Impact Fees - Tsf to CPF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 90,000.00

26901 · Util Projects/Prev Maint - Other 14,464.00 3,859.25 10,604.75 30,586.34 11,577.75 19,008.59 46,311.00

Total 26901 · Util Projects/Prev Maint 14,464.00 3,859.25 10,604.75 30,586.34 11,577.75 19,008.59 136,311.00

27000 · Miscellaneous Expenses

26361 · Bank Charges/ETS 5,552.39 1,000.00 4,552.39 11,358.37 3,000.00 8,358.37 12,000.00

Total 27000 · Miscellaneous Expenses 5,552.39 1,000.00 4,552.39 11,358.37 3,000.00 8,358.37 12,000.00

Total Expense 91,234.32 115,092.59 (23,858.27) 322,304.85 345,277.69 (22,972.84) 1,471,211.00

Net Ordinary Income 54,926.15 25,511.56 29,414.59 300,432.50 96,534.96 203,897.54 536,039.00

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

27001 · Other Expenses

27002 · Transfer to Construction Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 536,039.00

Total 27001 · Other Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 536,039.00

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 536,039.00

Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (536,039.00)

Net Income 54,926.15 25,511.56 29,414.59 300,432.50 96,534.96 203,897.54 0.00

64



City of Montgomery

District Debt Service Payments
01/01/2021 - 01/01/2022

Paying Agent Series Date Due Date Paid Principal Interest Total Due

Debt Service Payment Due 03/01/2021
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 - Refunding 03/01/2021 115,000.00 34,756.25 149,756.25
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 - WS&D 03/01/2021 130,000.00 51,462.50 181,462.50
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015 - Refunding 03/01/2021 80,000.00 5,526.25 85,526.25
Bank of Texas 2017A - WS&D 03/01/2021 50,000.00 4,767.25 54,767.25
Bank of Texas 2017B - WS&D 03/01/2021 80,000.00 9,753.25 89,753.25

Total Due 03/01/2021 455,000.00 106,265.50 561,265.50

Debt Service Payment Due 09/01/2021
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 - Refunding 09/01/2021 0.00 33,318.75 33,318.75
Amegy Bank of Texas 2012 - WS&D 09/01/2021 0.00 49,512.50 49,512.50
First National Bank of Huntsville 2015 - Refunding 09/01/2021 0.00 4,646.25 4,646.25
Bank of Texas 2017A - WS&D 09/01/2021 0.00 4,767.25 4,767.25
Bank of Texas 2017B - WS&D 09/01/2021 0.00 9,681.25 9,681.25

Total Due 09/01/2021 0.00 101,926.00 101,926.00

District Total $455,000.00 $208,191.50 $663,191.50

65



January 20, 2021 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Montgomery 
101 Old Plantersville Road 
Montgomery, Texas 77316 

Re:  Engineering Report 
 Council Meeting: January 26, 2021 
 City of Montgomery 

Dear Mayor and Council: 

The following information summarizes our activities on your behalf since the December 8th Council Meeting: 

Status of Previously Authorized Projects: 

All projects discussed below are shown on the enclosed maps of active developments and capital projects. 
 

a) Baja Road Water and Drainage Improvements, Phase I & Phase II (CDBG) 
We are working with the Contractor, City, and GrantWorks to ensure all required documentation is 
prepared and submitted as required by the Texas Department of Agriculture to close out the project.  
 

b) Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan – CP No. 3 – Downtown and SH-105 Waterline 
Replacement 
We held a pre-construction meeting at City Hall on December 8th. The contractor has mobilized near 
Cedar Brake Park and is installing silt fencing and performing locates of existing utilities. 

c) Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan – CP No. 9 - Water Plant No. 3 Improvements 
We are preparing the contract documents and plan to provide them to the contractor this week for 
execution. We are also working with the TWDB to complete project initiation documents.  

d) GLO Projects 
We are coordinating with GrantWorks to determine which of the solutions presented by BGE, Inc. will 
fit within the budget. We also plan to coordinate with City Staff this month to discuss an engineering 
contract and potential time extension.  
 

e) Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Master Plan – CP No. 3b – Lift Station No. 1 Replacement 
We met with City Staff and the contractor to discuss liquidated damages that will be assessed on the 
contract. We are working with City Staff and the contractor to collect additional supporting information 
for the damages for further discussion.  
 
 
 



City of Montgomery 
    Page 2 

January 20, 2021 

Status of Previously Authorized Projects (cont.): 
 

f) Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Master Plan – CP No. 10 – Lift Station No. 3 Force Main Re-Route 
As a reminder, this project is included in TWDB CWSRF loan. The design is substantially complete, has 
received TxDOT approval, and is temporarily on hold.    
 

Existing and Upcoming Developments: 

a) Feasibility Studies 

i. Kammerer Tract Feasibility Study – We have completed the feasibility study and plan to present 
our findings at this month’s City Council meeting. 

b) Plan Reviews   

i. Moon Over Montgomery – We received revised plans for the development on December  17th 
and provided comments to the plans on January 6th. 

ii. Town Creek Crossing, Section 1 – We received revised plans for the development on January 14th 
and plan to return comments to the plans this week. 

iii. Panda Express -  We received plans for review on January 20th and plan to complete our review 
next week.  

c) Plat Reviews  

i. Moon Over Montgomery Minor Plat – We did not receive a revised plat this month. 

d) Ongoing Construction  

i. Hills of Town Creek Section 4 – The contractor has completed the installation of a majority of 
the underground utilities and is currently working on paving.  

e) One-Year Warranty Inspections 

i. Villas of Mia Lago, Section 2 – It is our understanding the contractor is working to address the 
items identified at the one-year warranty inspection. 

ii. Hills of Town Creek, Section 3 – The one-year warranty inspection was held on January 7, 2020. 
The contractor for Hills of Town Creek Section 4 will be replacing the defective section of paving 
identified during the inspection.   

iii. Emma’s Way – The one-year warranty inspection was held on February 18, 2020. The contractor 
for Hills of Town Creek Sect. 4 is going to be replacing the defective portion of Emma’s Way 
identified during the inspection. . 



City of Montgomery 
    Page 3 

January 20, 2021 

Meetings and Ongoing Activities:  

a) Town Creek Inspection – TxDOT cleared out the portion of the channel within the Right-of-Way and are 
waiting on material to finish the installation of the rip-rap.  
 

b) Biweekly Operations Conference Call – We continue hosting a biweekly conference call with 
representatives from Gulf Utility Service, Inc. and City Staff. Items of note discussed during the previous 
month included updates on various warranty inspections, general updates on all active design and 
construction projects, and general operations of the City’s water and sanitary sewer facilities. 
 

c) FM 149 & SH-105 Right Turn Lane –TxDOT has advised that the project is scheduled to be let in 2021.   
 

Please contact Katherine Vu or me if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

 
Chris Roznovsky, PE 
Engineer for the City 
 

CVR/kmv 
K:\W5841\W5841-0900-00 General Consultation\Meeting Files\Status Reports\2021\Engineer's Report 1-26-2021.docx 
Enclosures:  Active Capital Projects Map 

  Active Developments Map 
Cc (via email):     The Planning and Zoning Commission – City of Montgomery 

 Mr. Richard Tramm – City of Montgomery, City Administrator 
Ms. Susan Hensley – City of Montgomery, City Secretary 
Mr. Alan Petrov – Johnson Petrov LLP, City Attorney 



SH 105

LONE STAR PKWY

FM 2854

W FM
 10

97

SH 105  W

FM
 14

9

LIBERTY ST

CLU
B DR

N LIBERTY ST

CLEPPER

COLLEGE

OLD PLANTERSVILLE RD

E FM 1097

GRAND PIN E DR

CAROLINE ST

OLD DOBBIN PLANTERSVILLE RD

KINGS LN

JENNY LN

HUFFMAN ST

DR MARTIN LUTHER KING JR DR

BOIS D'ARC BEND RD

POND ST

SERENE WATER DR

BERKLEY DR

BUFFALO SPRINGS DR

ARNSWORTH LN

GRAND VIEW DR

MIA
LA

GO DR

PENINSULA POINT DR

GRANDVIEW
PT

COMMUNIT Y CENTER DR

PLEZ MORGAN DR

HARBOR SIDE BLVD

RENAISSANCE DR
N BUFFALO SPRINGS

DR

C
B

ST
EW

AR
T DR

LOUISA ST

FLAGSHIP BLVD

B AJA RD

GRA
ND

VIE
W

BL
VD

ST
EW

ART CREEK RD

SU
MM

IT
PA

RK
DR

HAVENSHIRE DR

WATERSTONE DR

PRAIRIE ST

HA
RLEY DR

LONE STAR BND

MCCOWAN

WO
RS

HA
M 

ST

HO
US

TO
N 

ST

WOMACK CEMETERY RD

W E
ST

WA
Y DR

MAIDEN LN

ANNA SPRINGS LN

THOMAS ST

VINTA GEO AKS DR

PEEL PT

POWELLCIR

BR
OCK'S LN

HAMILTON RD

AB
NE

R LN

W GRAND POND DR

SU
NN

YF
IEL

D 
FA

RM

SIMONTON ST

LAWSON ST

GRA
ND

VIE
W PK

WY HA
RB

OR
 SI

DE
 LN

SH 105  W

FM 149

W FM 1097

GRAND VIEW DR

       LEGEND       
City Limits
City ETJ
MCAD Parcels

Pat
h: 

V:\
Pra

cti
ce 

Wo
rks

pa
ce\

Co
rpo

rat
e S

erv
ice

s\G
IS\

Scr
atc

h_
Wo

rks
pa

ce\
Jak

e\0
_O

LD
_D

RIV
E\H

O-
HH

M7
\Pr

oje
cts

\D
istr

ict
s\C

ity
Of

Mo
ntg

om
ery

\PR
JTS

\20
20

\M
arc

h\A
cti

ve 
Ca

pit
al P

roj
ect

s (1
1x1

7).
mx

d   
     

  Pr
oje

ct 
Nu

mb
er:

 W
58

41
-09

00
-18

     
     

Da
te:

 3/
17

/20
20

     
     

Us
er 

Na
me

: JC
P

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1 inch equals 20 miles

1 inch equals 1,500 feet .
Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary.  No express warranties are made by
Jones|Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness,
reliability, or usability of the information included within this exhibit.

ACTIVE CAPITAL
PROJECTS

0 1,500750

Feet

Baja Road/MLK Drive
Improvements - Phase I

[CBDG]
(Warranty Ends 02/21)

MLK Drive
Improvements - Phase II

[CBDG]
(Warranty Ends 02/21)

Water Plant No.
3 Improvements

[TWDB]
(Contracts)

Lift Station No. 1
Replacement

[TWDB]
(Construction)

Lift Station No. 3
Force Main Re-route 

[TWDB]
(On Hold)

Downtown and SH-105
Waterline Replacement

[TWDB]
(Construction)

(JANUARY 2021)



SH 105

LONE STAR PKWY

FM 2854

W FM
 10

97

SH 105  W

FM
 14

9

LIBERTY ST

CLU
B DR

N LIBERTY ST

CLEPPER

COLLEGE

OLD PLANTERSVILLE RD

E FM 1097

GRAND PIN E DR

CAROLINE ST

OLD DOBBIN PLANTERSVILLE RD

KINGS LN

JENNY LN

HUFFMAN ST

DR MARTIN LUTHER KING JR DR

BOIS D'ARC BEND RD

POND ST

SERENE WATER DR

BERKLEY DR

BUFFALO SPRINGS DR

ARNSWORTH LN

GRAND VIEW DR

MIA
LA

GO DR

PENINSULA POINT DR

GRANDVIEW
PT

COMMUNIT Y CENTER DR

PLEZ MORGAN DR

HARBOR SIDE BLVD

RENAISSANCE DR
N BUFFALO SPRINGS

DR

C
B

ST
EW

AR
T DR

LOUISA ST

FLAGSHIP BLVD

B AJA RD

GRA
ND

VIE
W

BL
VD

ST
EW

ART CREEK RD

SU
MM

IT
PA

RK
DR

HAVENSHIRE DR

WATERSTONE DR

PRAIRIE ST

HA
RLEY DR

LONE STAR BND

MCCOWAN

WO
RS

HA
M 

ST

HO
US

TO
N 

ST

WOMACK CEMETERY RD

W E
ST

WA
Y DR

MAIDEN LN

ANNA SPRINGS LN

THOMAS ST

VINTA GEO AKS DR

PEEL PT

POWELLCIR

BR
OCK'S LN

HAMILTON RD

AB
NE

R LN

W GRAND POND DR

SU
NN

YF
IEL

D 
FA

RM

SIMONTON ST

LAWSON ST

GRA
ND

VIE
W PK

WY HA
RB

OR
 SI

DE
 LN

SH 105  W

FM 149

W FM 1097

GRAND VIEW DR

       LEGEND       
City Limits
City ETJ
City of Conroe ETJ
MCAD Parcels
Floodway
100-year
500-year

Pat
h: 

V:\
Pra

cti
ce 

Wo
rks

pa
ce\

Co
rpo

rat
e S

erv
ice

s\G
IS\

Scr
atc

h_
Wo

rks
pa

ce\
Jak

e\0
_O

LD
_D

RIV
E\H

O-
HH

M7
\Pr

oje
cts

\D
istr

ict
s\C

ity
Of

Mo
ntg

om
ery

\PR
JTS

\20
20

\M
arc

h\A
cti

ve 
De

vel
op

me
nts

 (1
1x1

7).
mx

d   
     

  Pr
oje

ct 
Nu

mb
er:

 W
58

41
-09

00
-18

     
     

Da
te:

 3/
17

/20
20

     
     

Us
er 

Na
me

: JC
P

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1 inch equals 20 miles

1 inch equals 1,500 feet .
Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary.  No express warranties are made by
Jones| Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness,
reliability, or usability of the information included within this exhibit.

ACTIVE
DEVELOPMENTS

0 1 , 5 0 07 5 0

Feet

T H PM MON T GOMERY
T OWN H OMES T OWN  C REEK  C ROSSI N G 

1 25  A C RES
1 9 9  SI N GL E FA MI L Y  L OT S

4  C OMMERC I A L  RESERVES

K A MMERER T RA C T
DEVEL OPMEN T

H I L L S OF T OWN  C REEK
SEC T I ON  T H REE

4 9  SI N GL E FA MI L Y  L OT S

EMMA ' S WA Y  EX T EN SI ON

MOON  OVER
MON T GOMERY

27 - A C RE C OMMERC I A L
MI X ED U SE RET A I L

MON T GOMERY  SH OPPES
RET A I L  PL A Z A

ST A RBU C K S

VI L L A S OF MI A  L A GO,
SEC T I ON  T WO

4 2 SI N GL E FA MI L Y
L OT S

T ROY ' S DON U T S

H I L L S OF T OWN  C REEK
SEC T I ON  FOU R

3 0 SI N GL E FA MI L Y  L OT S

A U T OZ ON E

J .  A L A N  K EN T

( J A N U A RY  2021 )PA N DA
EX PRESS

MON T GOMERY
FOOD T RU C K

PA RK











 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANALYSIS OF FEASIBILITY FOR  

THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY 

TO PROVIDE WATER AND SANITARY SEWER SERVICE 

TO A PROPOSED 370-ACRE DEVELOPMENT 

“KAMMERER TRACT” 

 

 

JANUARY 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400 
The Woodlands, Texas 77380 

Tel: 281.363.4039 
Fax: 281.363.3459 

www.jonescarter.com 

 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100   

 

 

January 22, 2021 

 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council        

City of Montgomery 

101 Old Plantersville Road 

Montgomery, Texas 77316 

 

Re: Proposed 370-Acre Kammerer Tract Single-Family Development Feasibility Study 

 Devpoint, LLC (Dev. No. 2006) 

City of Montgomery City Limits & ETJ 

 

Dear Mayor and Council: 

 

On October 20, 2020, Devpoint, LLC (the “Developer”) submitted an application for utility service of 

lands situated in the southwestern portion of the City of Montgomery (the “City”). On December 8, 

2020, the City Council authorized the preparation of a Utility and Economic Feasibility Study. We are 

pleased to present this analysis of the feasibility for the City to provide water and sanitary sewer service 

to the referenced 370-acre Kammerer tract (the “Tract”). The purpose of the feasibility is to determine 

whether water and sanitary sewer system capacity is available, to determine how the existing public 

utilities will need to be upgraded or extended to serve the Tract, to examine the development’s impact 

on drainage and traffic, and to offer clarity on the potential financial impact of the development. 

 

General  

 

This undeveloped Tract is located along Old Plantersville Road between Womack Cemetery Road and 

Old Dobbin-Plantersville Road.  The Tract is located partially outside the City’s current Extraterritorial 

Jurisdiction (“ETJ”), partially inside the City’s ETJ, and partially with the current City Limits, therefore the 

Tract will require annexation prior to receiving service. An exhibit displaying the Tract boundary is 

enclosed as Appendix A. Upon annexation, the Tract will be zoned R-1.  

 

A preliminary land plan is enclosed as Appendix B, indicates the Developer intends to construct a 

residential community with public utilities, public streets, and public drainage consisting of 

approximately 517 single-family homes situated on lots ranging from 1/3 to 1/2 acre in size. The 

development also proposes to have multiple amenity/detention ponds as well as a community and 

recreation center.  

 

The Developer estimates the average home sale price to be approximately $500,000 each. Per 

information provided by the Developer, construction and build-out of the development is planned to 

occur in 3 phases over approximately 6 years.  The estimates included in this feasibility are based on the 

anticipated land use provided by the Developer. The final land plan may affect the estimated costs and 

revenues associated with the development. 

 

 



 

 

City of Montgomery 

370-Acre Kammerer Tract Feasibility  

Page 2 

January 22, 2021 

 

 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100   

 

Water Production and Distribution 

 

The Tract is located within the Dobbin-Plantersville Water Supply Company (“DPWSC”) Certificate of 

Convenience and Necessity (“CCN”) service area. However, the developer intends to obtain water 

service from the City. As such, the Developer will need to obtain approval from the Public Utility 

Commission to decertify the tract from the CCN boundaries to receive water service from the City.  

 

The City has three active water wells and two existing water plants with an average daily flow (“ADF”) 

capacity of 568,000 gallons per day (“gpd”) or 875 connections, per Texas Commission on Environmental 

Quality Rules (“TCEQ”). The City is currently proceeding with the construction of a water plant 

improvements project to increase the capacity of the City’s water system to 2,500 connections while 

holding the same average daily flow capacity. Booster pump improvements are not included in this 

project, as the City was not anticipated to reach the additional average daily flow capacity until 

2023/2024 at the time the project was designed. In order to increase the average daily flow capacity, 

the City will need to add additional booster pump capacity at the water plants. By the time the City is 

needing the additional capacity, the City will be needing to begin planning and decision making on an 

elevated storage tank that may alter the sizing and location of the proposed booster pumps.  

 

The current ADF in the City is approximately 355,000 gpd and 1,157 connections. Inclusive of existing 

connections, ultimate future projected connections within current platted developments, and 

developments that are currently in design or feasibility (not including this tract), the City has committed 

approximately 700,000 gpd or 123% of existing ADF capacity and 1,733 connections. A current summary 

of Development Acreages & Service Demands is enclosed as Appendix C.  

 

The Tract’s water capacity requirement is approximately 155,000 gpd (2,160,000 gallons per month). 

The proposed total water capacity committed, including this Tract, the City will have committed 

approximately 855,000 gpd or 150% of ADF capacity and 2,250 connections.  

 

The Tract is located a significant distance from other developments and the City’s water plants. Due to 

the location, we performed an update of the water model for the City’s water supply system and 

modeled the effect of the proposed development on the system. We determined that due to the 

location and the pressure losses experienced in the waterlines to travel such a distance, the City is going 

to have difficulty providing the projected maximum day flow (2.4 times peaking factor on ADF) without 

significant improvements to the water supply system.  

 

In order to serve the initial phase of development, the Developer will need to construct a 12” waterline 

loop from SH-105 at Old Dobbin-Plantersville Road to the existing 8” waterline near the intersection of 

Old Plantersville Road and Womack Cemetary Road, as shown in Appendix D. Additionally, the City will 

need to increase the pressure settings at Water Plant No. 2.  

 



 

 

City of Montgomery 

370-Acre Kammerer Tract Feasibility  

Page 3 

January 22, 2021 

 

 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100   

 

Based on our projections for growth, inclusive of this development, the City will have an average daily 

flow of approximately 673,000 gpd by the end of 2025. In order to meet ADF and fire flow demand for 

the tract, the City will need to complete a handful of capital improvements to meet demand. There are 

multiple alternatives that may include: 

 

1. East Lone Star Parkway Waterline Loop – Approximately 3,500 LF waterline extension to close 

the loop between Plez Morgan and Buffalo Springs Drive. Currently in design as part of the Town 

Creek Crossing Development. 

2. Plez Morgan Waterline Loop – Approximately 300 LF waterline extension to connect the 

waterline on Plez Morgan to FM 149.  

3. Water Plant No. 3 Waterline Shortcut – Approximately 500 LF waterline extension to connect 

Water Plant No. 3 directly to Plez Morgan.  

 

In order to provide maximum day flow to the Tract and maintain system pressures above the TCEQ 

minimum, the City will need to construct Water Plant No. 4 near Hills of Town Creek. Further analysis 

will need to be performed to determine the size and components of the water plant needed to meet the 

demand. The components could include a water well, booster pumps, hydro-pneumatic tank, ground 

storage tank, and/or an elevated storage tank. Alternatively, the City may be able to overhaul Water 

Plant No. 2 to get the required improvements in the vicinity of the Tract. With any development in the 

outer western region of the City, the City will need to aggressively plan and budget for these 

improvements to meet the ultimate maximum day demand.  

 

The ultimate alignment of the waterlines interior to the Tract will depend on the final land plan of the 

proposed development. These waterlines will need to be placed in public utility easements located 

within or along the public right-of-way interior to the development and constructed according to all 

applicable City and TCEQ design criteria. The Developer will be responsible for all costs associated with 

easement acquisitions and recordation.  

 

The Developer is responsible for providing engineered plans and specifications for the water distribution 

system interior to the development to the City Engineer for review and approval prior to commencing 

construction. The Developer is also responsible for obtaining all required Planning and Zoning 

Commission, City Council, and development approvals and permits. The Developer will need to contact 

the City for water taps to serve the lots within the Tract. The cost to tap the interior waterlines will be 

calculated by the City’s Utility Operator in accordance with the City’s Code of Ordinances.   

 

Sanitary Sewer Collection and Treatment 

 

The City’s existing wastewater facilities consist of 18 public lift stations and two wastewater treatment 

plants (one of which is currently decommissioned). The Stewart Creek wastewater treatment plant 



 

 

City of Montgomery 

370-Acre Kammerer Tract Feasibility  

Page 4 

January 22, 2021 

 

 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100   

 

(TPDES Permit No. WQ0011521001) has a permitted capacity of 400,000 gpd. The current ADF at the 

Stewart Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant is approximately 160,000 gpd.  

 

Inclusive of existing connections, platted developments, and developments which are in design or under 

construction, the City has committed approximately 434,000 gpd or 109% of existing permitted capacity 

at full build-out. A current summary of Development Acreages & Service Demands is enclosed in 

Appendix C.  

 

Based upon the City’s historical usage for similar types of development, the Tract’s estimated sanitary 

sewer capacity requirement is approximately 104,000 gpd (3,120,000 gallons per month). Inclusive of 

existing connections, platted developments, developments currently underway, and this development, 

the City will have committed approximately 538,000 gpd or 135% of existing permitted capacity.  

 

The TCEQ requires the City to initiate design of a wastewater treatment capacity expansion when the 

ADF exceeds 75% of the City’s 400,000 gpd permitted capacity for 3 consecutive months. The ADF for 

the City, including this Tract and other tracts under design/feasibility, is not expected to exceed 75% of 

the permitted capacity (300,000 gpd) until early 2023. Additionally, the TCEQ requires the 

commencement of the construction phase of the expansion after 3 consecutive months of ADF 

exceeding 90% of the permitted capacity (360,000 gpd). This is expected to occur in 2024.  

 

Based on the time to complete the evaluation, funding, design, approvals, and construction of additional 

wastewater treatment plant capacity, the City needs to initiate further investigation and planning of 

alternatives in the next few months in order to have adequate time to meet the growing demand.  

 

Given the Tract’s location relative to the City’s existing sanitary sewer facilities, new public lift stations 

and force mains will need to be constructed to serve the Tract. Due to the topography across the Tract, 

2 lift stations will ultimately need to be constructed. The Tract will be served by extending gravity 

sanitary sewer lines to the proposed lift stations.  The lift stations will need to be located and 

constructed to a depth such that future gravity sanitary sewer lines can also be extended to the 

surrounding properties to receive sanitary sewer service in the future. This includes properties along Old 

Plantersville, Womack Cemetery, and Old Dobbin-Plantersville Road.  

 

The lift station pumps will initially be sized to serve only the Tract and existing developed properties 

within the City limits that do not currently receive sanitary sewer service. Additionally, the wet well and 

gravity sanitary sewer lines shall be constructed deep enough to serve a portion of the surrounding 

properties for future development as previously described. The final location of the lift stations will 

determine the depth and diameter of the wet wells. Each lift station will need to be constructed with a 

permanent backup generator, and the pumps, controls, and design shall be reviewed and approved by 

the City. The Developer will be responsible for dedicating the necessary lift station site and easements 

to the City.  



 

 

City of Montgomery 

370-Acre Kammerer Tract Feasibility  

Page 5 

January 22, 2021 

 

 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100   

 

 

One of the two proposed lift stations, will convey flow via a new public force main extending to the 

existing public gravity sanitary sewer line located on Old Plantersville Road near the intersection of 

Rankin Road. We evaluated routing the flow toward Lift Station No. 5; however, Lift Station No. 5 does 

not have the capacity to serve the Tract. Additionally, by discharging the force main near the 

intersection of Old Plantersville Road and Rankin Road, this will minimize the number of times the flow 

would have to be pumped before reaching the City’s wastewater treatment plant. A preliminary layout 

of the improvements can be found in Appendix D, and construction cost estimates for the force main 

can be found in Appendix E. The developer has prepared cost estimates for the proposed lift stations 

and included them in his development cost. The alignment and cost of the improvements are subject to 

change based on the final land plan of the proposed development. The developer will be responsible for 

all costs associated with the improvements required to serve the Tract and all required easements. 

 

We additionally evaluated the capacity of the gravity sanitary sewer line from the proposed discharge 

point on Old Plantersville Road to Lift Station No. 2. The existing 8” gravity sanitary sewer line has 

capacity from Rankin Road to SH-105; however, the gravity line from SH-105 to Lift Station No. 2 does 

not have sufficient capacity to carry peak flows (4 times the average daily flow) at full build-out of this 

Tract and the existing developments upstream. The City will need to consider upsizing this line in the 

future as development continues.  

 

Lift Station No. 2 is also already projected to be over its calculated capacity, based on a 6 hour per day 

run time, at full build-out of the existing developments, not including this Tract. (The reason to limit the 

capacity to 6 hours per day is it then allows for the lift station to handle the 4 times peaking factor.) The 

City will need to proceed with a study in the next few months to finalize the long-term plan to handle 

sanitary sewer treatment, which will include evaluation of future sanitary sewer line and lift station 

upsizing’s.   

 

The ultimate alignment of sanitary sewer lines interior to the Tract will depend on the final land plan of 

the development.  These sanitary sewer lines will need to be placed in public utility easements located 

along public ROW or placed within the public ROW interior to the development, and must be 

constructed per all applicable City and TCEQ design criteria. The Developer will be responsible for all 

costs associated with easement acquisition and recordation.  

 

The Developer is responsible for providing engineered plans and specifications for the sanitary sewer 

conveyance system interior to the development to the City Engineer for review and approval prior to 

commencing construction. The Developer is also responsible for obtaining all required Planning and 

Zoning Commission, City Council, and development approvals and permits.   

 

 

 



 

 

City of Montgomery 

370-Acre Kammerer Tract Feasibility  

Page 6 

January 22, 2021 

 

 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100   

 

Drainage  

 

The onsite storm sewer system will be designated public and accepted by the City upon completion of 

the development. The proposed detention ponds will not be taken over by the City and will require 

maintenance and upkeep by a Property Owners Association, Municipal Utility District, or similar entity. It 

is also important to note that this development is located within the Lake Creek watershed and 

therefore will not have an impact on drainage within the existing City limits.  

 

All drainage and detention improvements must be designed per the City’s Code of Ordinances which 

require compliance with the City’s floodplain regulations and all applicable Montgomery County 

Drainage Criteria Manual Standards. Failure to design and construct the drainage and detention facilities 

per Montgomery County criteria may jeopardize eligibility for acceptance by the City. 

 

The Developer is responsible for providing engineered plans and specifications for the drainage and 

detention system interior to the development to the City Engineer for review and approval prior to 

commencing construction. The Developer is also responsible for obtaining all required Planning and 

Zoning Commission, City Council, and development approvals and permits. The Developer will also be 

required to perform and submit a drainage study showing the development’s impact on the drainage 

downstream of the Tract and on adjacent properties. The drainage study must be submitted to the City 

for review and approval prior to the approval of construction plans. 

 

Paving and Traffic 

 

Based on the number of single-family lots proposed, we estimate the development will generate 

approximately 4,714 total trips per day, in and out combined, with 372 trips at AM peak hour traffic and 

492 trips at PM peak hour traffic. This traffic will ultimately split between 3 entrance/exits onto Old 

Plantersville Road and Spring Branch Road, based on the preliminary land plan. The Developer will need 

to work with the City and Montgomery County to determine the impact of the additional traffic flow on 

Old Dobbin-Plantersville Road, Old Plantersville Road, and Spring Branch Road, as well as whether any 

improvements to the roads are required to accommodate the development. 

 

Per the City’s Major Thoroughfare Plan, there is a proposed major collector, the south loop of Lone Star 

Parkway, that runs through the Tract, along with an additional major collector along the southern 

boundary and a thoroughfare on the eastern boundary, as shown in Appendix F. Per the Developer’s 

request, we studied alternative routes for the major collector going through the property to improve the 

feasibility of developing the Tract. Enclosed as Appendix G is a revised layout of the major thoroughfare 

plan in the vicinity of the tract. The main changes include shifting the major collector running through 

the tract to the north to closely follow the alignment of Old Plantersville Road and shift a major collector 

that was south of the tract to the north along the Tract’s boundary in order to keep spacing relatively 

consistent. There is also a proposed thoroughfare or arterial that runs north and south all the way from 



 

 

City of Montgomery 

370-Acre Kammerer Tract Feasibility  

Page 7 

January 22, 2021 

 

 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100   

 

existing Lone Star Parkway, across SH-105, and continues south along existing Womack Cemetery Road. 

The alignment of this thoroughfare did not change. There is a potential that in the distant future this 

road will need to be an elevated crossing of the railroad. The final design of the crossing will be 

decided in the future when the demand for the road warrants it.  The developer will be required to 

dedicate the necessary right-of-way to achieve sufficient right-of-way width per the plan. The City, 

County, and Developer will need to meet to discuss traffic impact, improvements and repairs to existing 

roads, and modifications to the county-wide major thoroughfare plan currently being updated by 

Montgomery County. 

 

Any paving improvements must be designed per the City’s design criteria. The Developer is responsible 

for providing engineered plans and specifications for the paving design to the City Engineer for review 

and approval prior to commencing construction. The Developer is also responsible for obtaining all 

required Planning and Zoning Commission, City Council, and development approvals and permits. 

 

Development Costs 

 

The Developer will need to engineer and construct on-site and off-site sanitary sewer, water, paving, 

drainage, and detention facilities to serve the proposed Tract.  

 

The Developer will also need to pay water and wastewater impact fees to the City. The impact fees will 

be assessed at the time of recordation of the final plat and collected prior to receiving water and 

sanitary sewer taps. Enclosed as Appendix H is Table 1.1 of the 2017 Revisions to the Montgomery 

Impact Fee Analysis Report. The estimated ADF provided by the Developer requires the equivalent use 

of 517 5/8-inch water meters per the table.  

 

An escrow agreement has been entered into between the Developer and the City, and funds have been 

deposited to cover the cost of this feasibility study, thoroughfare study, and initial coordination with the 

Developer. Due to the size and phasing of the full development, providing a definitive estimate of the 

total escrow amount required is difficult. Based on the preliminary phasing plan for the development,  

an estimated additional $80,000 would be required to cover the City’s projected expenses for the 

development, which include administrative costs, legal fees, plan reviews, developer and construction 

coordination, and construction inspection for the first phase of the project, the offsite waterline, and 

offsite sanitary sewer force main. This estimate is based on an estimated 6 month construction time 

with inspection 4 hours a day for 3 days each week of construction. We recommend that the fees be 

recalculated and phased after a decision is made on the phasing of the project. The City will require that 

there be a positive balance in the account to continue work on the development until a phasing decision 

is made.  

 

 

 



 

 

City of Montgomery 

370-Acre Kammerer Tract Feasibility  

Page 8 

January 22, 2021 

 

 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100   

 

Below is a summary of the estimated costs associated with the development: 

 

Estimated Costs: 

• Offsite Force Main      $    327,000 

• 12” Waterline Loop      $    649,000 

• Escrow Account      $      80,000 

• Water Impact Fee      $    582,142 

• Wastewater Impact Fee     $ 1,299,221 

Subtotal $ 2,937,363 

 

 

The estimate is based on the projected wastewater usage provided by the developer. The actual costs 

will depend on the final land plan, final design, and actual construction costs. The estimated costs for 

the proposed lift station and force main are the total project costs and do not assume the terms of any 

cost-sharing agreement entered into with the City.   

 

Financial Feasibility 

 

The Developer projects the home sales prices to be approximately $500,000. The Developer estimates 

the total assessed value (A.V.) at full development to be approximately $258,500,000. Based on the 

estimated total A.V. and assuming 95% collection, the development would generate approximately 

$293,000 per year in debt service revenue based on the City’s $0.1195/$100 valuation debt service tax 

rate, and approximately $689,000 per year in operations and maintenance revenue based on the City’s 

$0.2805/$100 valuation Operations & Maintenance (O&M) tax rate. 

 

The Developer is evaluating the creation of a Municipal Utility District or similar entity to act as a 

reimbursement mechanism and maintain the proposed parks and recreation facilities. If the 

Development moves forward, the Developer will also be entering into a development agreement with 

the City.  

  

This report is our engineering evaluation of the funds required to complete the anticipated future 

capital improvements for this Tract and of the potential increase in tax revenue to the City. This report is 

not intended to be used for issuance of municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal 

securities. The City’s Financial Advisor(s) can address potential recommendations related to the issuance 

of municipal financial products or issuance of municipal securities. 

 

Summary 

• The 370-acre tract lies partially within the current City Limits, partially within the 

City’s ETJ, and partially outside the City’s ETJ. Annexation will be required to provide 

service to the Tract. 





Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

Proposed 370-Acre Kammerer Tract Development 

Boundary Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SH 105
SH 105  W

LIBERTY ST

FM
 149

COLLEGE

OLD PLANTERSVILLE RD

OLD DOBBIN PLANTERSVILLE RD

CISSYS LN

SPRING BRANCH RD

LO
NE

ST
AR

PK
WY

CAROLINE ST

KINGS LN

HUFFMAN ST

JENNY
LN

W
OM

ACK CEM
ETERY RD

POND ST

P OOL ES
RD

N LIBERTY ST

LO
UI

SA
 S

T

BE RK
LE

Y DR

PRAIRIE ST

MCCOW
A N

CLEPPER

W
OR

SH
AM

 S
T

HO
US

TO
N 

ST

SHANNON CIR

W
ES

TW
AY

DR

HA
RL

EY
 D

R

POWELL
CIR

WADE

BR

OCK'S LN

SU
NN

YF
IE

LD
 FA

RM

EM
M

AS
 W

AY        LEGEND       
Kammerer Tract Boundary

City of Montgomery City Limits

City ETJ

MCAD Property Info

Zone Classification
Commercial (B)
Industrial ID)
Institutional (I)
Multi-Family (R-2)
Planned Development (PD)
Residential (R-1)

TCEQ Water CCN
Dobbin Plantersville WSC

Pat
h: 

V:\
Pra

cti
ce 

Wo
rks

pa
ce\

Co
rpo

rat
e S

erv
ice

s\G
IS\

Pro
jec

ts\
W5

841
_C

ity
OfM

on
tgo

me
ry\

PR
JTS

\Fe
as_

37
0ac

Ka
mm

ere
r_D

eve
lop

me
ntM

ap
.m

xd 
     

    P
roj

ect
 Nu

mb
er:

 W
58

41-
20

06-
00-

007
     

     
Da

te:
 1/

20
/20

21
     

     
Us

er 
Na

me
: C

EH

City of Montgomery
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1 inch equals 10 miles

1 inch equals 1,000 feet .
Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary.  No express warranties are made by
Jones|Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness, reliability,
or usability of the information included within this exhibit.      

370-AC KAMMERER
TRACT DEVELOPMENT

0 1,000500

Feet

370-Ac Kammerer
Tract Development



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

Proposed 370-Acre Kammerer Tract Development 

Preliminary Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



S
P

R
IN

G
 B

R
A

N
C

H
 R

D
.

WOMACK CEMETERY RD.

M ontg omer y C ity L imits
M ontg omer y C ounty

M
ontg om

er y C
ity L im

its

M
ontg om

er y C
ounty

M
ontg om

er y E T J

M
ontg om

er y C ounty

OLD PLANTERSVILLE RD.

OLD DOBBIN PLANTERSVILLE RD.

WOMACK CEMETERY RD.

S
P

R
IN

G
 B

R
A

N
C

H
 R

D
.

P ip eline E asments

P R O P O S E D  R O W WI D E N I N G

SF-1
6 3  L O T S

( T Y P . 1 / 2 A c. - 1 0 0 ’ x2 0 0 ’ )
± 4 3 . 9  A c.

SF-2
3 4  L O T S

( T Y P . 1 / 2 A c. - 1 0 0 ’ x2 0 0 ’ )
± 2 3 . 8  A c.

SF-6
7 0  L O T S

( T Y P . 1 / 2 A c. - 1 0 0 ’ x2 0 0 ’ )
± 5 0 . 7  A c.

SF-3
5 2  L O T S

( T Y P . 1 / 3 A c. - 8 5 ’ x1 7 0 ’ )
± 2 4 . 7  A c.

SF-4
3 8  L O T S

( T Y P . 1 / 3 A c. - 8 5 ’ x1 7 0 ’ )
± 1 7 . 7  A c.

SF-5
7 4  L O T S

( T Y P . 1 / 3 A c. - 8 5 ’ x1 7 0 ’ )
± 3 5 . 5  A c.

SF-7
1 8 6  L O T S

( T Y P . 1 / 3 A c. - 8 5 ’ x1 7 0 ’ )
± 8 8 . 9  A c.

LAKE / DET.
± 1 6 . 1  A c.

LAKE / DET.
± 2 2 . 6  A c.

REC CENTER
± 2 . 9  A c.

LAKE / DET.
± 1 3 . 2  A c.

LAKE / DET.
± 1 3 . 8  A c.

M ontg omer y C ity L imits
M ontg omer y C ounty

M
ontg om

er y C
ity L im

its

M
ontg om

er y C
ounty

M
ontg om

er y E T J

M
ontg om

er y C ounty

L OT  S U M M A R Y

T OTA L  5 1 7  L OT S

  3 5 0  LO T S
16 7  LO T S

  6 8 %
3 2 %

1/ 3  A c - 8 5 ’ x 17 0 ’
1/ 2  A c - 10 0 ’ x 2 0 0 ’

M E T A  P L A N
N

I N
G

 +
 D

E
S

I
G

N

© 2 0 1 9 ,  A L L  R I G H T S  R E S E R V E D

M
E

T
A

 P
L

A
N

N
I N G  +  D E S I G N

THIS DRAWING IS A GRAPHIC REPRESENTATION FOR PRESENTATION PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT FOR COMPUTATION OR 
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES. SAID DRAWING IS A SCANNED IMAGE ONLY AND IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE. 
META PLANNING + DESIGN MAY OR MAY NOT INTEGRATE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OTHER CONSULTANTS, 
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE TOPICS OF ENGINEERING AND DRAINAGE, FLOODPLAINS, AND/OR ENVIRONMENTAL 
ISSUES AS THEY RELATE TO THIS DRAWING. NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, CONCERNING THE PHYSICAL DESIGN, 
LOCATION, AND CHARACTER OF THE FACILITIES SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE INTENDED. ADDITIONALLY, NO WARRANTY IS 
MADE TO THE ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN.

© 2020 META PLANNING + DESIGN, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

M TA - I - 6 1 9
O C T O B E R  2 0 ,  2 0 2 0

SCALE

0 600300150

a  c o n c e p t u a l  d e v e l o p m e n t  p l a n  f o r

p r e p a r e d  f o r

KAMMERER TRACT
±383.8 ACRES OF LAND

GRACEPOINT HOMES
2 4 2 7 5  K a t y  F r e e w a y,  S t e .  2 0 0

K a t y ,  Te x a s  7 7 4 9 4
Te l :  2 8 1 - 8 1 0 - 1 4 2 2

NN



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C 

Proposed 370-Acre Kammerer Tract Development 

Updated Development Acreages & Service Demands 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Montgomery, Texas

Developer Acreages Service Demands (Updated January 21, 2021)

1/21/2021

Page 1 of 3

Current 

Connections

Ultimate 

Connections

Current 

Actual Ultimate Current Ultimate

Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary

Single Family

Buffalo Crossing 1                    13                  225             3,250             150                2,600               1                       225                   150                   1                      225                  150                  1                       225                   150                   2                       450                   300                   2                       450                   300                   
Buffalo Springs, Section 1 24                  24                  5,400          6,000             3,600             4,800               -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Buffalo Springs, Section 2 59                  64                  13,275        16,000           8,850             12,800            2                       450                   300                   1                      225                  150                  -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Estates of Mia Lago, Section 1 4                    27                  900             6,750             1                       225                   1                      225                  1                       225                   3                       675                   3                       675                   
FM 149 Corridor 20                  25                  4,500          6,250             3,000             5,000               1                       225                   150                   -                   -                   -                   1                       225                   150                   1                       225                   150                   1                       225                   150                   
Simonton and Lawson 13                  23                  2,925          5,750             1,950             4,600               1                       225                   150                   -                   -                   1                       225                   150                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Martin Luther King 47                  55                  10,575        13,750           7,050             11,000            1                       225                   150                   -                   -                   1                       225                   150                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Baja Road 7                    11                  1,575          2,750             1,050             2,200               -                   -                   1                      225                  150                  -                   -                   1                       225                   150                   1                       225                   150                   
Community Center Drive 3                    3                    675             750                450                600                  -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Community Center Drive (Water Only) 8                    10                  1,800          2,500             -                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1                       225                   150                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Lake Creek Landing 15                  15                  3,375          3,750             2,250             3,000               -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Gulf Coast Estates, Section 2 -                 4                    -              1,000             -                 800                  2                       450                   300                   2                      450                  300                  -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Lake Creek Village, Section 1 36                  37                  8,100          9,250             5,400             7,400               -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Lake Creek Village, Section 2 34                  45                  7,650          11,250           5,100             9,000               7                       1,575               1,050               1                      225                  150                  -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Estates of Lake Creek Village 9                    22                  2,025          5,500             1,350             4,400               7                       1,575               1,050               6                      1,350               900                  -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Lone Star Estates 10                  10                  2,250          2,500             1,500             2,000               -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Hills of Town Creek, Section 2 42                  51                  9,450          12,750           6,300             10,200            8                       1,800               1,200               -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Hills of Town Creek, Section 3 16                  49                  3,600          12,250           2,400             9,800               8                       1,800               1,200               8                      1,800               1,200               5                       1,125               750                   5                       1,125               750                   5                       1,125               750                   
Hills of Town Creek Sec. 4 -                 30                  -              7,500             -                 6,000               12                     3,000               2,400               16                    4,000               3,200               2                       500                   400                   
Historic/Downtown 129                150                29,025        37,500           19,350           30,000            2                       450                   300                   2                      450                  300                  2                       450                   300                   2                       450                   300                   2                       450                   300                   
Terra Vista Section 1 26                  61                  5,850          15,250           3,900             12,200            10                     2,250               1,500               10                    2,250               1,500               6                       1,350               900                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Villas of Mia Lago Section 1 14                  14                  3,150          3,500             2,100             2,800               -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Villas of Mia Lago Section 2 37                  42                  8,325          10,500           5,550             8,400               -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Waterstone, Section 1 39                  53                  8,775          13,250           5,850             10,600            4                       900                   600                   3                      675                  450                  3                       675                   450                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Waterstone, Section 2 4                    89                  900             22,250           600                17,800            4                       900                   600                   10                    2,250               1,500               10                     2,250               1,500               10                     2,250               1,500               10                     2,250               1,500               
Gary Hammons 1                    1                    225             250                150                200                  
Mobile Home Park (connection) 29                  29                  4,000          4,000             3,300             3,300               
City Hall 1                    1                    1,070          1,070             890                890                  

Community Center 1                    1                    200             200                150                150                  
Buffalo Spring Plant 1                    1                    360             360                250                250                  
Cedar Brake Park Restrooms 1                    1                    200             200                150                150                  
Fernland Park 1                    1                    200             200                150                150                  
Homecoming Park Restrooms 1                    1                    200             200                150                150                  
Water Plant No. 3 1                    1                    4,000          4,000             2,000             2,000               
West Side at the Park 8                    11                  1,800          2,750             1,200             2,200               -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Subtotal 642                975                146,580      244,980        96,140           187,440          71                     16,275             11,100             62                    14,350            9,950               34                     7,700               5,050               24                     5,400               3,150               24                     5,400               3,150               

Commercial Platted and Existing

Buffalo Run, Section 1 1                    6                    1,000          10,000           650                6,500               1                       1,800               1,170               -                   -                   -                   1                       3,300               2,700               
Longview Greens Miniature Golf 1                    1                    1,400          1,200             910                780                  
Summit Business Park, Phase 1 3                    6                    1,300          6,000             845                3,900               1                       1,567               1,018               1                      1,567               1,018               
Prestige Storage (SBP Res. D) 1                    1                    225             360                146                234                  
McCoy's 1                    1                    750             750                488                488                  
AutoZone -                 1                    -              360                -                 234                  1                       360                   234                   
McCoy's Reserves B & D -                 2                    -              5,000             -                 3,250               1                       2,500               1,625               -                   -                   1                       3,600               3,000               
Pizza Shack 1                    1                    4,900          4,000             3,185             2,600               
CareNow & Other Suites 3                    3                    1,200          1,500             780                975                  
KenRoc (Montgomery First) -                 3                    -              12,000           -                 7,800               1                       4,000               2,600               1                      4,000               2,600               
Dusty's Car Wash 1                    1                    18,000        18,000           11,700           11,700            
ProCore Developments 1                    1                    1,500          1,500             975                975                  
Christain Brother 1                    1                    225             225                146                146                  
Madsen and Richards 1                    1                    225             405                146                263                  
Kroger 2                    2                    7,000          9,000             4,550             5,850               
Burger King 1                    1                    1,450          1,450             943                943                  
Buffalo Springs Shopping, Ph. I (Reserve B) 1                    1                    6,300          6,300             4,095             4,095               
Buffalo Springs Shopping, Ph. I (Reserve A2) -                 1                    -              360                -                 234                  -                   -                   -                   -                   
Buffalo Springs Shopping, Ph. I (Reserve E) -                 1                    -              3,000             -                 1,950               -                   -                   -                   -                   
Buffalo Springs Shopping, Ph. I (Reserve D) -                 1                    -              6,000             -                 3,900               1                       6,000               3,900               -                   -                   
Spirit of Texas Bank 1                    1                    2,100          2,100             1,365             1,365               
Heritage Place 1                    1                    360             1,200             234                780                  -                   -                   -                   -                   
Buffalo Springs Shopping, Ph. 2 -                 4                    -              25,000           -                 16,250            1                       6,250               4,063               1                      6,250               4,063               1                       7,500               6,250               
BlueWave Car Wash 1                    1                    7,000          7,000             4,550             4,550               
Brookshire Brothers 2                    2                    1,500          1,500             975                975                  
Ransoms 1                    1                    1,500          1,500             975                975                  
Heritage Medical Center 1                    1                    600             1,200             390                780                  
Lone Star Pkwy Office Building 2                    2                    400             720                260                468                  
Old Iron Work 1                    1                    225             225                146                146                  
Apache Machine Shop 1                    1                    225             225                146                146                  
Montgomery Community Center (lone Star) 1                    1                    850             850                553                553                  
Jim's Hardware 1                    1                    225             225                146                146                  
Town Creek Storage 1                    1                    225             225                146                146                  
Lake Creek Village 3 Commercial -                 5                    -              30,000           -                 19,500            1                       6,000               3,900               1                      6,000               3,900               1                       6,000               4,800               1                       6,000               4,800               1                       6,000               4,800               
Waterstone Commercial Reserve A 1                    10                  650             16,000           423                10,400            1                       1,706               1,109               1                      1,706               1,109               1                       1,500               1,250               1                       1,500               1,250               1                       1,500               1,250               

2025202420232021 2022

Water Wastewater
Development Info & Capacities

K:\W5841\W5841-0900-00 General Consultation\Water Plant Consultation\Projections\Water and Wastewater Usages and Projections 01192021.xlsx



City of Montgomery, Texas

Developer Acreages Service Demands (Updated January 21, 2021)

1/21/2021

Page 2 of 3

Current 

Connections

Ultimate 

Connections

Current 

Actual Ultimate Current Ultimate

Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary

2025202420232021 2022

Water Wastewater
Development Info & Capacities

Commercial Platted and Existing (cont.)

Waterstone Commercial Reserve B 1                    1                    360             4,300             234                2,795               
Waterstone Commercial Reserve C (State Farm) 1                    1                    405             405                263                263                  
Waterstone Commercial Reserve D -                 1                    -              4,000             -                 2,600               -                   -                   -                   -                   
Depado Estates -                 5                    -              10,000           -                 6,500               
The Montgomery Shoppes -                 6                    -              15,000           -                 9,750               1                       2,500               1,625               2                      5,000               3,250               2                       4,000               3,000               2                       4,000               3,000               2                       4,000               3,000               
Retail Center 1                    1                    -              3,000             1,950               
Chick Fil A 1                    1                    1,400          1,400             910                910                  
Panda Express 1                    -              1,400             -                 910                  1                       1,400               910                   
CVS 1                    1                    225             225                146                146                  
Starbucks -                 1                    -              1,000             -                 650                  1                       1,000               650                   
Burger Fresh 1                    1                    240             240                156                156                  
Churches 12                  12                  3,000          3,000             1,950             1,950               
Miscellaneous Commercial 79                  79                  28,000        28,000           18,200           18,200            

Subtotal 131                180                94,965        247,350        61,727           160,778          12                     35,082             22,803             7                      24,522            15,939            7                       25,900             21,000             4                       11,500             9,050               4                       11,500             9,050               

Multi Family

Heritage Plaza (Units) 208                208                21,000        24,000           13,650           15,600            
Town Creek Village, Phase I (Units) 152                152                24,000        26,500           12,000           13,250            
Plez Morgan Townhomes -                 48                  -              12,000           -                 6,000               48                     12,000             6,000               
Montgomery Supported Housing 14                  14                  2,300          2,300             1,150             1,150               
Live Oak Assisted Living 1                    1                    2,300          2,300             1,150             1,150               

Subtotal 375                423                49,600        67,100          27,950           37,150            48                     12,000             6,000               -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Institutional (Schools)

MISD Athletic Complex 2                    2                    6,800          6,800             3,400             3,400               
MISD High School Complex 2                    2                    29,000        29,000           14,500           14,500            
MISD Warehouse (105/Clepper) 1                    1                    360             1,500             250                750                  
Bus Barn 1                    1                    530             530                265                265                  
MISD School (MLK) 2                    2                    1,600          1,600             800                800                  
MISD School (149) 1                    1                    2,800          2,800             1,400             1,400               

Subtotal 9                    9                    41,090        42,230          20,615           21,115            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Irrigation

Single Family Residential 61                  100                16,165        26,500           -                 -                   
Commercial Irrigation 31                  70                  9,300          21,000           -                 -                   
Christain Brothers 1                    1                    1,100          1,100             -                 -                   
MISD High School Irrigation
Chick Fil A 1                    1                    1,600          1,600             -                 -                   
BlueWave 1                    1                    500             500                -                 -                   
CVS 1                    1                    1,200          1,200             -                 -                   
Church 2                    2                    530             530                -                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
City 9                    9                    4,500          4,500             -                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Subtotal 107                185                34,895        56,930          -                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Committed (W/O Irrigation) 1,157            1,587            367,130      658,590        206,432         406,483          131                   63,357             39,903             69                    38,872            25,889            41                     33,600             26,050             28                     16,900             12,200             28                     16,900             12,200             

Committed ESFCs 1,621            2,685            
Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary

Total Projected Committed Volumes: 1,288               430,487           246,336           1,357               469,359          272,225          1,398               502,959           298,275           1,426               519,859           310,475           1,454               536,759           322,675           

Total Projected Committed ESFCs:
Future Development in Feasibility/Design

Town Creek Crossing Commercial Reserves -                 6                    -              7,000             -                 4,550               1                      1,167               758                  
Town Creek Crossing Section 1 101                -              30,300           -                 20,200            20                     6,000               4,000               30                    9,000               6,000               30                     9,000               6,000               20                     6,000               4,000               
Kammerer -                 517                -              155,100        -                 103,400          70                    21,000            14,000            90                     27,000             18,000             90                     27,000             18,000             90                     27,000             18,000             
Moon Over Montgomery -                 15                  -              3,750             -                 3,000               6                       1,500               1,200               9                      2,250               1,800               

Subtotal -                 639                -              196,150        -                 131,150          26                     7,500               5,200               110                  33,417            22,558            120                   36,000             24,000             110                   33,000             22,000             90                     27,000             18,000             

Committed Plus Feasibility 1,157            2,226            367,130      854,740        206,432         537,633          
Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary

Total Projected Committed Volumes Plus Feasibility 1,314               437,987           251,536           1,493               510,276          299,983          1,654               579,876           350,033           1,792               629,776           384,233           1,910               673,676           414,433           

Total Projected Committed ESFCs Plus Feasibility: 1,864               2,104               2,330               2,464               2,578               

2024

2025

2024

202420232021 2022

20232021 2022

K:\W5841\W5841-0900-00 General Consultation\Water Plant Consultation\Projections\Water and Wastewater Usages and Projections 01192021.xlsx



City of Montgomery, Texas

Developer Acreages Service Demands (Updated January 21, 2021)

1/21/2021

Page 3 of 3

Current 

Connections

Ultimate 

Connections

Current 

Actual Ultimate Current Ultimate

Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary

2025202420232021 2022

Water Wastewater
Development Info & Capacities

Potential Future Development (Within Current City Limits)

HEB Tract (HEB store only) -                 1                    -              10,000           -                 6,500               -                   -                   -                   1                      10,000            6,500               
HEB Tract (pad sites only) 5                    15,000           9,750               -                   -                   -                   1                      3,000               1,950               1                       3,000               2,100               1                       3,000               2,100               1                       3,000               2,100               
Summit Business Park, Phase 2 -                 6                    -              4,400             -                 2,860               2                       1,467               953                   2                      1,467               953                  
Waterstone, Section 3 -                 36                  -              9,000             -                 5,850               -                   -                   -                   10                    2,500               1,625               10                     2,500               2,000               10                     2,500               2,000               10                     2,500               2,000               
Waterstone, Section 4 -                 80                  -              20,000           -                 13,000            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   10                     2,500               2,000               10                     2,500               2,000               10                     2,500               2,000               
J. Allen Kent -                 150                -              37,500           -                 30,000            -                   -                   -                   20                    5,000               4,000               20                     5,000               4,000               20                     5,000               4,000               20                     5,000               4,000               
Town Creek Crossing Section 2 98                  24,500           19,600            
1097 Misc. Commercial 10                  -              15,000           9,750               1                       1,500               975                   1                      1,500               975                  1                       1,500               1,250               1                       1,500               1,250               1                       1,500               1,250               
Misc. Undeveloped (Commercial) -                 1,354            -              487,440        -                 316,836          2                       720                   468                   2                      720                  468                  2                       3,000               2,500               2                       3,000               2,500               2                       3,000               2,500               
Misc. Undeveloped (Single Family) -                 1,641            -              410,250        -                 266,663          -                   -                   -                   10                    2,500               1,625               10                     2,500               2,000               10                     2,500               2,000               10                     2,500               2,000               
Misc. Undeveloped (Industrial) -                 1                    -              5,000             -                 3,250               -                   -                   -                   -                   
Peter Hill 5.7 Acre Feasibility -                 5                    -              5,000             -                 3,250               -                   -                   -                   2                      2,000               1,300               
The Woods of Town Creek -                 212                -              53,000           -                 42,400            -                   -                        -                        20                    5,000               4,000               30                     7,500               6,000               30                     7,500               6,000               30                     7,500               6,000               

Subtotal -                 3,599            -              1,096,090     -                 729,709          5                       3,687               2,396               69                    33,687            23,396            84                     27,500             21,850             84                     27,500             21,850             84                     27,500             21,850             

Potential Future Development (ETJ)

80-Ac Mabry Single Family -                 368                -              92,000           -                 59,800            -                   -                   -                   10                    2,500               1,625               30                     6,750               4,500               30                     6,750               4,500               30                     6,750               4,500               
Stewart Landing -                 50                  -              18,000           -                 11,700            10                    3,600               2,340               10                     2,250               1,500               10                     2,250               1,500               10                     2,250               1,500               
Misc. Undeveloped (Single Family) -                 6,595            -              1,648,750     -                 1,071,688       -                   -                   10                    2,500               1,625               10                     2,250               1,500               10                     2,250               1,500               10                     2,250               1,500               
Misc. Undeveloped (Commercial) -                 1,100            -              396,000        -                 257,400          5                       1,800               1,170               5                      1,800               1,170               5                       7,500               6,250               5                       7,500               6,250               5                       7,500               6,250               

Subtotal -                 8,113            -              2,154,750     -                 1,400,588       5                       1,800               1,170               35                    10,400            6,760               55                     18,750             13,750             55                     18,750             13,750             55                     18,750             13,750             

Potential Ultimate Totals 1,157            13,938          367,130      4,105,580     206,432         2,667,929       
Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary Connections GPD Water GPD Sanitary

Total Potential Ultimate 1,324               443,474           255,102           1,607               559,849          333,706          1,907               675,699           419,356           2,184               771,849           489,156           2,441               861,999           554,956           

202520242021 2022 2023

K:\W5841\W5841-0900-00 General Consultation\Water Plant Consultation\Projections\Water and Wastewater Usages and Projections 01192021.xlsx



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix D 

Proposed 370-Acre Kammerer Tract Development 

Proposed Offsite Public Utility Extensions  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



!!2!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2!!2!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

")

[Ú

[Ú

[Ú
!8

!8

!8

!8

!8

!8

!8 !8!8!8
!8 !8

!8!8

!8!8

!8!8 !8
!8

!8 !8

!8

!8

!8

!8

!8

!8

!8

!8

!8!8
!8

!8
!8

!8 !8

!8!8

!8
!8!8

!8
!8 !8

!8

!8
!8 !8

!8

!8

!8

!8 !8!8

!8!8 !8

!8

!8
!8!8

!8

!8!8 !8!8 !8

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!. G!.

G!.

G!.G!.

G!.
G!.

G!.

G!.G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!. G!. G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.
G!.

G!.

G!.
G!.

G!.

l=

l=

l=

#*

#* #*
Forcemain
Discharge
Location

Prop Offsite
Forcemain

Prop. 12"
Waterline Loop

SH 105  W

OLD DOBBIN PLANTERSVILLE RD

SPRING BRANCH RD

W
OM

ACK CEM
ETERY RD

SU
NN

YF
IE

LD
 FA

RM

2'' 

8'
' 

6'' 12'' 
12'' 

12'' 
6'' 6'' 

12'' 12'' 12'' 
12'' 12

'' 

8'
' 

8'' 

6'' 

8'' 

8'
' 

6'' 

       LEGEND       
") Interconnect
!( Plug

#*

Reducer

l= Control Valve

G!. Hydrant

!8 System Valve

Water Main

[Ú Lift Station

3Q Treatment Plant

") Cleanout

!!2 Sewer Manhole

Sewer Force Main

Sewer Gravity Main

Kammerer Tract Boundary

City of Montgomery City Limits

MCAD Property Info

Pat
h: 

V:\
Pra

cti
ce 

Wo
rks

pa
ce\

Co
rpo

rat
e S

erv
ice

s\G
IS\

Pro
jec

ts\
W5

841
_C

ity
OfM

on
tgo

me
ry\

PR
JTS

\Fe
as_

37
0ac

Ka
mm

ere
r_U

tili
tyM

ap
.m

xd 
     

    P
roj

ect
 Nu

mb
er:

 W
584

1-2
00

6-0
0-0

07
     

     
Da

te:
 1/

20
/20

21
     

     
Us

er 
Na

me
: C

EH

City of Montgomery
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1 inch equals 10 miles

1 inch equals 700 feet .
Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary.  No express warranties are made by
Jones|Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness, reliability,
or usability of the information included within this exhibit.      

370-AC KAMMERER
TRACT DEVELOPMENT

UTILITY MAP

0 700350

Feet

370-Ac Kammerer
Tract Development



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix E 

Proposed 370-Acre Kammerer Tract Development 

Cost Estimates 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Item Unit

No. Description Unit Price Quantity Total

1. Move-in and Start-up LS 20,000$    1 20,000$        

2. 12 - inch (12") PVC Waterline (Open Cut) LF 50              6,000 300,000        

3. 12 - inch (12") PVC Waterline (Trenchless with 20" Steel Casing) LF 225           350 78,750          

4. 12-inch (12") Gate Valve EA 2,000        10 20,000          

5. Fire Hydrant EA 4,000        15 60,000          

6. 2" Blow Off Valve and Box EA 1,000        1 1,000            

7. 12" Plug and Clamp EA 1,000        1 1,000            

8. Connection to Existing WL EA 5,000        2 10,000          

9. Trench Safety LF 1                6,100 6,100            

10. Site Restoration LS 10,000      1 10,000          

11. Traffic Control LS 7,500        1 7,500            

12. Stormwater Pollution Prevention LS 5,000        1 5,000            

Construction Subtotal 520,000$      

Contingencies (20%) 104,000        
(2)

Easement Acquisition 15,000          
(3)

Railroad Crossing Coordination/Fees 10,000          
(4)

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST 649,000$      

Notes:
(1)

(2) Contingencies include a 20% cost for additional, unseen, and future costs from time of proposal.
(3)

(4) Includes estimated cost of obtaining approval to cross railroad rights-of-way.

Includes estimated land cost for acquisition of a 10' waterline easement along the force main route. The only 

anticipated easement is from Montgomery Independent School District.

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

FOR

PROPOSED OLD PLANTERSVILLE WATERLINE LOOP

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

January 21, 2021

This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry.

Jones|Carter has no control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of

determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding or market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not

guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate. 

     K:\W5841\W5841-2006-00 Kammerer 389 Ac Development\2 Design Phase\Reports\Cost Estimate - 12 loop and FM.xlsx



Item Unit

No. Description Unit Price Quantity Total

1. Move-in and Start-up LS 10,000$    1 10,000$        

2. 6-inch (6") Force Main (Open Cut) LF 35              4,930 172,550        

3. 6-inch (6") Force Main (Trenchless with 10" Steel Casing) LF 100           200 20,000          

4. Air Release Valve and Manhole EA 5,000        1 5,000            

5. Corrosion Resistant Discharge Manhole EA 7,500        1 7,500            

6. Connect proposed 6-inch (6") Force Main to Manhole EA 2,500        1 2,500            

7. Stormwater Pollution Prevention LS 10,000      1 10,000          

8. Site Restoration LS 15,000$    1 15,000$        

Construction Subtotal 243,000$      

Contingencies (20%) 49,000          
(2)

Easement Acquisition 25,000          
(3)

Railroad Crossing Coordination/Fees 10,000          
(4)

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST 327,000$      

Notes:
(1)

(2) Contingencies include a 20% cost for additional, unseen, and future costs from time of proposal.
(3) Includes estimated land cost for acquisition of a 10' sanitary sewer easement along the force main route.
(4) Includes estimated cost of obtaining approval to cross railroad right-of-way.

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

FOR

PROPOSED OFFSITE FORCE MAIN FOR KAMMERER TRACT DEVELOPMENT

This estimate represents my best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry.

Jones|Carter has no control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; over the Contractor's methods of

determining bid prices; or over competitive bidding or market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not

guarantee that bids will not vary from this cost estimate. 

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

January 21, 2021

     K:\W5841\W5841-2006-00 Kammerer 389 Ac Development\2 Design Phase\Reports\Cost Estimate - 12 loop and FM.xlsx



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix F 

Proposed 370-Acre Kammerer Tract Development 

Existing Major Thoroughfare Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SH 105
SH 105  W

FM
 149

LIBERTY ST

COLLEGE

CISSYS LN

SPRING BRANCH RD

OLD PLANTERSVILLE RD

OLD DOBBIN PLANTERSVILLE RD

CAROLINE ST

HUFFMAN ST

W
OM

ACK CEM
ETERY RD

POND ST

CLEPPERKING S LN

LO
UI

SA
 S

T

SHANNON CIR

PRAIRIE ST

M
CCOW

A NLO
NE

 S
TA

R 
PK

W
Y

W
OR

SH
AM

 S
T

HO
US

TO
N 

ST

W
ES

TW
AY DR

FLAGSHIP BLVD

POOLES RD

JENNY
LN

POWELL
CIR

WADE

BROCK'S LN

SU
NN

YF
IE

LD
 FA

RM

EM
M

AS
 W

AY

       LEGEND       
Kammerer Tract Boundary

City of Montgomery City Limits

City ETJ

MCAD Property Info

Major Thoroughfare Plan
Existing Thoroughfare
Proposed Thoroughfare
Existing Collector
Proposed Collector
Existing Local

Pat
h: 

V:\
Pra

cti
ce 

Wo
rks

pa
ce\

Co
rpo

rat
e S

erv
ice

s\G
IS\

Pro
jec

ts\
W5

841
_C

ity
OfM

on
tgo

me
ry\

PR
JTS

\Fe
as_

37
0ac

Ka
mm

ere
r_E

xis
tM

TFP
Ma

p.m
xd 

     
    P

roj
ect

 Nu
mb

er:
 W

58
41-

200
6-0

0-0
07

     
     

Da
te:

 1/
20

/20
21

     
     

Us
er 

Na
me

: C
EH

City of Montgomery
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1 inch equals 10 miles

1 inch equals 1,000 feet .
Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary.  No express warranties are made by
Jones|Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness, reliability,
or usability of the information included within this exhibit.      

370-AC KAMMERER
TRACT DEVELOPMENT

EXISTING MTP

0 1,000500

Feet

370-Ac Kammerer
Tract Development



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix G 

Proposed 370-Acre Kammerer Tract Development 

Proposed Major Thoroughfare Plan Adjustments and Roadway Classifications 

 

  



       LEGEND       

Pat
h: 

V:\
Pra

cti
ce 

Wo
rks

pa
ce\

Co
rpo

rat
e S

erv
ice

s\G
IS\

Pro
jec

ts\
W5

841
_C

ity
OfM

on
tgo

me
ry\

PR
JTS

\Fe
as_

37
0ac

Ka
mm

ere
r_P

rop
MT

FPM
ap

.m
xd 

     
    P

roj
ect

 Nu
mb

er:
 W

58
41

-20
06

-00
-00

7   
     

  D
ate

: 1/
20

/20
21 

     
    U

ser
 Na

me
: C

EH

City of Montgomery
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1 inch equals 10 miles

.
Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary.  No express warranties are made by
Jones|Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness, reliability,
or usability of the information included within this exhibit.      

370-AC KAMMERER
TRACT DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED MTP
370-Ac Kammerer
Tract Development



City of Montgomery - Thoroughfare Standards 
A thoroughfare system contains a hierarchy of roadways, each of which is intended to serve defined 

needs with a specific balance between movement and access. The characteristics of each thoroughfare 

roadway classification type are listed in the table and illustrated in the typical sections below.   
 

Roadway Classification System 

Roadway 

Classification 

Minimum 

Right-of-Way 

Width (feet) 

Number of 

Lanes 

Divided 

(D)/Undivided 

(U) 

Pavement 

Width 

(feet, F-F) 

Median 

Width 

(feet, F-F) 

Description 

State 

Highway 

(SH / FM) 

Varies 2-6 D or U Varies Varies 

The main purpose of State 

Highways and FM Roadways is to 

move large volumes of traffic 

through urban areas and provide 

direct access to local freeways, 

while also providing controlled 

access to adjacent businesses. 

  

Arterial 
80-100 4 D/U Varies Varies 

Major arterials provide support 

and relief to the SH and FM 

roadways by providing additional 

east-west and/or north-south 

routes designed to accommodate 

high traffic volumes. 

Major 

Collector 
70 4 U 44 N/A 

Collect traffic from local areas and 

distribute it to the arterial 

network. Typically accommodates 

4 lanes of traffic with no on-street 

parking.  

Minor 

Collector 
60 2 U 40 N/A 

Collect traffic from local areas and 

distribute it to the arterial 

network. Typically accommodates 

2 lanes of traffic and on-street 

parallel parking along both sides of 

the roadway.  

Local 50 2 U 24-28 N/A 

Local streets function to provide 

access to abutting property and to 

collect traffic between parcels of 

land and collector and arterial 

streets. Local Streets include all 

other streets that are not included 

in the higher classifications.  

Urban 

Collector 
100 2 U 70 N/A 

Collect traffic from local areas and 

distribute it to the arterial 

network. Typically accommodates 

2 lanes of traffic, on-street parking 

and pedestrian/bike facilities.  

Notes: 

1. The City of Montgomery Major Thoroughfare Plan map shows approximate roadway alignments. The map has been 

produced from various sources. While every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the map, the City of 

Montgomery assumes no liability or damages due to errors or omissions. Actual alignment for new and/or additional 

roadway right-of-way may vary. 

2. Street right-of-way (ROW) width requirements shall comply with the street hierarchy classification. The City reserves the 

right to require additional ROW at intersections or other locations as deemed necessary to enhance mobility. Minor streets 

and/or streets that do not have an assigned classification remain subject to all other applicable City of Montgomery City 

Codes of Ordinances and design requirements.  

3. The roadway lines shown on the Thoroughfare Plan are not precise (site specific) locations of future thoroughfares and are 

considered conceptual in use. 

4. On-street and off-street Pedestrian and Bicycle facilities should be considered for all Roadway Classifications as determined 

by City staff. 





Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix H 

Proposed 370-Acre Kammerer Tract Development 

Excerpt From Impact Fee Analysis 

 

 

 

  



Table 1.1 September 2017 ESFC Table for Commonly Used Meters 

Meter Size 
Maximum Continuous 

Operating Capacity 
(GPM) 

Equivalent 
Single Family 

Home  
(ESFC) 

Maximum 
Assessable Water 

Fee 
($) 

Maximum 
Assessable Waste 

Water Fee 
($) 

Maximum 
Assessable Fee 

($) 

5/8” 15 1.00 1,126 $2,513 $3,639 

3/4” 25 1.67 1,881 $4,198 $6,079 

1” 40 2.67 3,001 $6,711 $9,712 

1 1/2” 120 8.00 9,006 $20,103 $29,112 

2” 170 11.33 12,755 $28,471 $41,226 

3” 350 23.33 26,264 $58,626 $84,890 

4” 600 40.00 44,942 $100,517 $145,429 

6” 1,200 80.00 90,064 $201,035 $291,099 

8” 1,800 120.00 135,096 $301,552 $436,648 

 



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix H 

Proposed 370-Acre Kammerer Tract Development 

Escrow Calculation 

 



ESCROW AGREEMENT, SECTION 2.03 ATTACHMENT 

 

 BY AND BETWEEN 

 

 THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, 

 

 AND 

 

Devpoint, LLC 

 

Dev. No. 2006 

   

THE STATE OF TEXAS   

 

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY   

 

As per section 2.03, the Feasibility Study completed an estimate of the additional escrow amount, 

which was determined for administration costs, legal fees, plan reviews, developer coordination, 

construction coordination, construction inspection, and warranty of services. The required 

additional amount is below: 

 

 

Administration      $   5,000 

City Attorney       $   5,000 

City Engineer        $ 70,000   

  

  TOTAL       $ 80,000 
 


	AGENDA - CITY COUNCIL 012621
	AGENDA - PAGE 1
	AGENDA - PAGE 2&3

	ITEM #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	122220 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
	011221 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES

	ITEM #2A CITY ADMINISTRATORS REPORT
	ITEM #2A CITY ADMINISTRATORS REPORT
	ITEM #2A - CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S DEVELOPMENT REPORT

	ITEM #2C - POLICE ANNUAL AND DEC 2020 REPORTS
	POLICE 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
	Three-year plans, Goals, and Objectives

	POLICE REPORT NOV 2020

	ITEM #2D - COURT REPORT DEC 2020
	ITEM #2E - DEC AND NOV 2020 REPORTS
	UTILITY & DEVELOPMENT DEC 2020 REPORT
	UTILITY & DEVELOPMENT NOV 2020 REPORT

	ITEM #2E - UTILITY & DEVELOPMENT DEC AND NOV 2020 REPORTS
	UTILITY & DEVELOPMENT DEC 2020 REPORT
	UTILITY & DEVELOPMENT NOV 2020 REPORT

	ITEM #2F - WATER REPORT NOV- DEC 2020
	ITEM #2G - FINANCE REPORTS DEC AND NOV 2020
	ITEM #3 - ORDINANCE JOINING COALITION OF CITIES
	ITEM #4 - KAMMERER FEASIBILITY STUDY
	ITEM #4 KAMMERER FEASIBILITY STUDY
	ITEM #4 -  FEASIBILITY STUDY KAMMERER




